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Lloyds TSB Bank plc
Directors’ report

Resuits
The consolidated income statement on page 12 shows a loss atiributable to equity shareholders for the yearended 31 December 2010
of £155 mullion

Principal activities
Lloyds TSB Bank plc (the Bank) and its subsidianes {the Group) provide a wide range of banking and financial services through
branches and offices in the UK and overseas

The Group's revenue 1s eamed through interest and fees on a broad range of financial services products including current and
savings accounts, personal loans, credit cards and mortgages within the retall market, loans and camtal market products to
commercial, corporate and asset finance customers, life, pensions and investment products, general insurance, and private
banking and asset management

Business review

The results for the year reflect the transfer to the Bank of 100 per cent of the ordinary share capital of HBOS plc (HBCS) on 1
January 2010 as part of an internal reorganisation within the Lloyds Banking Group The results of HBOS were therefore included
within the consolidated results of the Bank from 1 January 2010 onwards

Profit before tax increased by £5,103 million, to a profit of £725 million compared to a loss of £4,378 million in 2009 This was
due to the £12,094 million improvement in trading surplus ansing from increased net interest iIncome and the non-recurrence of
both the £2,500 milion Government Asset Protection Scheme (GAPS) fee and the £3,000 million subvention payment paid in
2009, together with the impact of the transfer of HBOS, which resulted in net interest income and operating expenses increasing

Net interest income increased by £7,387 million, or 139 per cent, from £5,299 million to £12,686 million, in ine with the large
increase in loans and advances to customers ansing from the transfer of HBOS, which mcreased from £245 tillion to £611 billion

Other income increased by £14,301 million, or 85 per cent, from £16,890 million to £31,191 million The largest drivers of this
increase were a £3,920 million increase in insurance premium income and £8,953 million increase 1n net trading income

Operating expenses, excluding the GAPS fee and subvention payment, increased from £7,023 mulhion to £13,236 mullion,
reflecting additional operating expenses arnising from the transfer of HBOS and a customer goodwill payments prowision of
£500 mullion, offset by the pension curtaiiment gain of £910 mullion

Impairment losses increased by £6,536 million, or 148 per cent, from £4,416 million to £10,952 millhon, as improved credit
quality expernience 1n Retaill and Wholesale lending was more than offset by the substantial impairment losses incurred by the
HBOS international businesses

A loss of £365 million arose on disposal of businesses in 2010 (2009 £nil}

Loans and advances to customers increased by £365,863 milthon, or 149 per cent, from £245,226 million to £611,08% million
Customer deposits increased by £223,231 million, or 116 per cent, from £193,045 million to £416,276 million resulting in an
increase in the ratio of customer loans to customer deposits from 127 per cent at 31 December 2009 to 147 per cent at
31 December 2010

Debt securities in 1ssue increased by £107,598 million, or 89 per cent, from £120,719 million to £228,317 million

Shareholders’ equity increased by £33,471 mulhion from £13,420 mithion to £46,891 milhon mainly due to £21,394 million from
the 1ssuance of shares on the transfer of HBOS from Lloyds Banking Group plc together with the credit to merger reserves of
£6,348 million ansing on consolidation of HBOS

At the end of December 2010, the Group’s capital ratios increased with a total capital ratio on a Basel |l basis of 14 O per cent
{compared to 11 8 per cent at 31 December 2009) and a tier 1 ratio of 12 1 per cent {compared to 10 4 per cent at 31 December
2009) During 2010, nsk-weighted assets increased by £234,491 million to £408,963 rmullion compared to £174,472 million
at 31 December 2009, this increase reflects the impact of the transfer of HBOS

Financial nsk management objectives and policies
Information regarding the financial nsk management objectives and policies of the Group, in relation to the use of financial
instruments, 15 given in note 55 A discussion of the principal nsks and uncertainties faced by the Group is set out on pages 6 to 9
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Group structure

Following a reorganisation of the Lioyds Banking Group on 1 January 2010, the Bank acquired 100 per cent of the 1ssued ordinary
share capital of HBOS from Lloyds Banking Group plc, the consideration for this transfer was the 1ssue of 21 4 million shares to
Lloyds Banking Group plc for a total vatue of £21,394 muliion

Directors
The names of the directors of the Bank are shown on page 5 Changes to the composition of the board since 1 January 2010 are
shown below

Dr W C G Berndt retired from the board on 6 May 2010

Three directers joined the hoard during the year as follows Mr G R Moreno (1 March 2010}, Mr D L Roberts {1 March 2010} and
Ms A M Frew (1 December 2010)

Mr A Horta-Osdro joined the board on 17 January 2011 Mr J E Daniels will retire from the board on 28 February 2011 and will
be succeeded as group chief executive by Mr A Horta-Osério on 1 March 2011

Directors’ interests
The directors are also directors of Lloyds Banking Group plc and therr interests in shares in Lloyds Banking Group plc are shown
tin the report and accounts of that company

Directors’ conflicts of interest

The board, as permutted by the Bank's articles of association, has authorised all potential conflicts of interest declared by indwvidual
directors Decisions regarding these conflicts of interest could only be taken by directors who had no interest in the matter In taking
the decision, the directors acted In a way they considered, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the Bank's success The
directors had the ability to impose conditions, if thought appropriate, when granting authonsation Any authorities given will be
reviewed at least every 15 months No director i1s permitted to vote on any resolution or matter where he or she has an actual or
potential conflict of interest The board confirms that it did not authanse any matenal conflicts during the year

Directors’ indemnities

The directors, including the former director who retired dunng the year, have entered into individual deeds of indemnity with
Lloyds Banking Group plc which constituted ‘qualifying third party indemnity provisions’ and ‘qualifying pension scheme indemnity
provisions’ for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006 These deeds were in force during the whole of the financial year or from
the date of appointment in respect of the directors who joined the board in 2010 and 2011 The indemnities remain in force for
the duration of a director’s penod of office Deeds for existing directors are available for inspection at the Bank's registered office

Share capital
Infomation about share capital 1s shown in note 46 on page 77

Statement of directors' responsibiiities
The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with apphicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the directors have
prepared the group and parent company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Bank and of the profit or loss of the
Group and the Bank for that period In preparing these financial statements, the directors are reguired to

— select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
— make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and
— state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Umon have been followed

The directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Bank's transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Bank and the Group and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Bank and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detectton of fraud and other irregulanties

A copy of the financial statements 15 placed on the website www lloydsbankinggroup com The directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integnty in relatton to the Bank on that website Legistation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial staterments may differ from legislation in other junsdictions
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Each of the current directors, whose names are shown on page 5 of this annual report, confirms that, to the best of tus or her
knowledge

- the financial statements, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union,
give a true and fair view of the assets, llabilities and financial position of the Bank and Group and the profit or loss of the Group,

— the business review includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Bank
and Group, and

— the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties faced by the Bank and the Group are set out on pages 6 to 9

Going concern

The going concern of the Bank and the Group, 1s dependent on successfully funding their respective balance sheets and maintaining
adequate levels of capital In order to satisfy themselves that the Bank and the Group have adequate resources to continue to
operate for the foreseeable future, the directors have considered a number of key dependencies as discussed in note 1 and
additionally have considered projections for the Group's capital and funding position Hawving considered these, the directors
consider that it 1s appropriate to continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts

Employees
The Bank, as part of Lloyds Banking Group, 1s committed to providing employment practices and pohicies which recognise the
diversity of our workforce and ensure equahty for employees regardless of sex, race, disability, age, sexual onentation or religious behef

In the UK, Lloyds Banking Group belongs to the major employer groups campaigning for equality for the above groups of staff,
including Employers’ Forum on Disabihity, Employers' Forum on Age, Stonewall and the Race for Opportunity Our involvement with
these organisations enables us to identify and implement best practice for our staff

Employees are kept closely involved in major changes affecting them through measures such as team meetings, briefings, mnternal
communtcations and opinion surveys There are well established procedures, including regular meetings with recognised unions,
to ensure that the views of employees are taken into account in reaching decisions

Schemes offering share options or the acquisition of shares are available far most staff, to encourage their financial involvement in
Lloyds Banking Group plc

Lioyds Banking Group 1s committed to providing employees with comprehensive coverage of the economic and financial 1ssues
affecting the Group We have established a full suite of communication channels, including an extensive face-to-face bnefing
programme which allows us to update our employees on cur performance and any financial 1ssues throughout the year

Policy and practice on payment of creditors

The Bank has signed up to the ‘Prompt Payment Code’ published by the Department for Business Innovation and Skills (‘BIS?),
regarding the making of payments to suppliers Information about the ‘Prompt Payment Code’ may be obtained by wisiting
www promptpaymentcode org uk

The Bank's policy 1s to agree terms of payment wath suppliers and these normally provide for settlement within 30 days after the
date of the invoice, except where other arrangements have been negotiated It 1s the policy of the Bank to ahide by the agreed
terms of payment, provided the supplier performs according to the terms of the contract

The number of days required to be shown n this report, to comply with the prowisions of the Companies Act 2006, 1s 32 This
bears the same proporbion to the number of days In the year as the aggregate of the amounts owed to trade creditors at
31 December 2010 bears to the aggregate of the amounts invoiced by suppliers during the vear

Auditors and audit information

Each person who 1s a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that, so far as the director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant
audit information of which the Bank's auditors are unaware and each director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken
as a director to make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Bank's auditors are aware of
that information This confirmation 1s given and should be nterpreted in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006
A resolution will be proposed at the 2011 annual general meeting to reappoint PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors The
Bank’s audit committee is satisfied that the external auditors remain independent and effective

On behalf of the board .
Harry F Baines Cb'\f\‘
Company Secretary

24 February 2011
Company Number 2065
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Principal nsks and uncertainties

At present the most significant nsks faced by the Group are

Credit
Defimtion The nisk of reductions in earnings andfor value, through financial loss, as a result of the failure of the party with whom
the Group has contracted to meet its obhigations (both on and off balance sheet}

Features Ansing in the retail, wholesale and wealth and international operations, reflecting the nsks inherent in the Group's lending
activities and to a much lesser extent in the insurance operations in respect of investment of own funds Adverse changes in the credit
qualty of the Group's UK and/or international borrowers and counterparties, or in their behaviour, would be expected to reduce the
value of the Group's assets and materially increase the Group's wrte-downs and allowances for impairment losses Credit risk ¢an be
affected by a range of factors, including, inter aha, increased unemployment, reduced asset values, increased personal or corporate
insolvency levels, reduced corporate profits, increased interest rates or higher tenant defaults Over the last three years, the global
banking cnisis and economic downturn has driven cyclically high bad debt charges These have ansen from the Group's lending to

— Wholesale customers (including those in wealth and international operations) where companies continue to face difficult
business conditions, resuliing tn elevated corporate default levels, illiguwd commercial property markets and heightened
impairment charges The Group has high levels of exposure in both the UK and internationally, including ireland, USA and
Austraha There are particular concentrations to financial institutions and commercial real estate including secendary and
tertiary locations

— Retail customers this portfolhio will remarn strongly linked to the econemic environment, with inter alia house prices falls,
unemployment increases, consumer over-indebtedness and nising interest rates all likely to impact both secured and unsecured
retail exposures

The Group follows a through the economic cycle, relationship based, business model with risk management processes, appetites
and expenenced staff in place

Legal and regulatory
Defirttion Legal and regulatory nsk 1s the nsk of reductions in earmings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from
failing to comply with the laws, regulations or codes applicable

Features Legal and regulatory exposure 15 driven by the significant volume of current legislation and regulation within the UK and
overseas with which the Group has to comply, along with new or proposed legislation and regulation which needs to be reviewed,
assessed and embedded into day-to-day operational and business practices across the Group as a whaole This is particularly the
case in the current market environment, which 1s witnessing increased levels of government and regulatory intervention 1n the
banking sector

Lloyds Banking Group continues to face political and regulatory scrutiny as a result of the Group's perceived systemic importance
following the acquisiion of HBOS At the time of the acquisition of HBOS ple by Lloyds Banking Group the Office of Fair Trading
(OFT) 1dentified some competition concerns in the UK personal current accounts and mortgages markets and for SME banking in
Scotland The OFT reiterated that it would keep these under review and consider whether to refer any banking markets to the
Competition Commission if it identifies any prevention, restnction or distortion of competition

The UK Government appointed an Independent Commission on Banking to review possible structural measures to reform the
banking system and promote stability and competition That commuission will publish its final report by the end of September
2011 The Treasury Select Committee I1s conducting an examination of competition in retail banking 1t 1s too early to quantify the
potential impact of these developments on the Group

From April 2011, lead regulation and supervision of the Group's activities will begin transitioning from the FSA to the new
Financial Conduct Authonty for conduct of business supervision and the Prudential Regulatory Authonity for capital and hquidity
supervision In addition, from 2011, the European Banking Authonty, the European insurance and Qccupational Pensions Authority
and the European Secunties and Markets Authonity as new EU Supervisory Authonities are hkely to have greater influence on
regulatory approaches across the EU  These could lead to changes in how the Group Is regulated and supervised on a
day-to-day basis

Evolving captal and hquidity requirements continue to be a prionty for the Group In September 2010 and further clanfied In
December 2010, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision put forward proposals for a reform package which changes the
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regulatory capital and liquidity standards, the definition of ‘capital’, introduces new defirmtions for the calculation of counterparty
credit nsk and leverage ratios, additicnal capital buffers and development of a global hquidity standard Implementation of these
changes 1s expected to be phased in between 2012 and 2018

Lloyds Banking Group 1s currently assessing the impacts of these regulatory developments and will participate in the consultation
and cahbration processes to be undertaken by the various regulatory bodies during 2011 The tnsurance division 1s progressing
their plans o achieve Solvency |l comphiance Lloyds Banking Group continues to work closely with the regulatory authonties and
industry assoctations to ensure that it 15 able to identfy and respond to proposed regulatory changes and mitigate against risks to
the Group and ifs stakeholders

There 1s a nsk that certain aspects of the Group's business may be determined by the authonties or the courts as not being
conducted in accordance with applicable laws or regulations, or with what 1 fair and reasenable in their opinion The Group may
also be liable for damages to third parties harmed by the conduct of its business

Liquidity and funding
Definition Liguidity nsk 1s defined as the nsk that the Group has insufficient financial resources to meet its commitments as they
fall due, or can only secure them at excessive cost

Funding nsk 1s defined as the nsk that the Group does not have sufficiently stable and diverse sources of funding or the funding
structure 1s inefficient

Features Ansing in the banking business of the Group through the Retail, Wholesale and Wealth and International divisions are
reflecting the risk that the Group 1s unable to attract and retain either retall, wholesale or corporate deposits or 1ssue debt securties
Like all major banks, the Group 1s dependent on confidence in the short and longer term wholesale funding markets, should the
Group, due to exceptional circumstances, be unable to continue to source sustainable funding and provide iquidity when necessary,
the Group's ability to fund its financial obligations could be impacted

The key dependencies for successfully funding the Group's balance sheet include the continued functioning of the money and
capital markets, successful nght sizing of the Lloyds Banking Group balance sheet, the continuation of HM Treasury and
Bank of England facilities to Lioyds Banking Group in accordance with the terms agreed, himited further detenoration in the UK's,
Lloyds Banking Group’s and the Group’s credit ratings and no significant or sudden withdrawal of deposits resulting in increased
reliance on wholesale funding markets A return to the extreme market conditions of 2008 would place a strain on the Group's
ability to meet its financial commitments

Additionally, the Lloyds Banking Group has entered mto a number of EU state aid related oblgations to achieve reductions in
certan parts of its balance sheet by the end of 2014 The requirement to meet this deadline may result in the Group having to
provide funding to support these asset reductions and/or disposals and may also result in a lower price being achueved

Liquidity and funding rnisks are managed within a board approved framework using a range of metncs to mornutor the Group's profile
against its stated appetite and potential market conditions

Market Risk

Defution The nsk of reductions in earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from unfavourable market moves,
including changes n, and increased volatility of, interest rates, market-implied inflation rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange
rates, equity, property and commodity prices

Features Market nsk 1s managed within a Board approved framework using a range of metncs to monitor the Group's profile
against its stated appetite and potential market conditions

The pnincipal market nsks are as follows

There 15 a nisk to the Group’s banking income ansing from the level of interest rates and the margin of interbank rates over central
bank rates A further banking risk anses from competitive pressures on product terms in exsting loans and deposits, which
sometimes restrict the Group 1n 1ts abilty to change Interest rates applying to customers in response to changes in interbank and
central bank rates

The main equity market risks anse in the life assurance companies and staff pension schemes Credit spread nsk arnises in the life
assurance companies, pension schemes and bartking businesses Equity market movements and changes in credit spreads impact
the Group's resuits
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Continuing concerns about the scale of deficits in {reland and southern European countries resulted in increased credit spreads in
the areas affected, and fears of contagion affected the Euro and widened spreads between central bank and interbank rates

The Group's trading activity 1s small relative to its peers and 1s not considered to be a principal rnisk

Insurance Risk
Defirvtion The nsk of reductions 1in earmings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, due to fluctuations in the timing,
frequency and severity of insured/underwnitten events and to fluctuations in the ttming and amount of claims settlements

Features The major sources of insurance nsk are within the insurance businesses and the staff defined benefit pension schemes

insurance nsk 1s inherent in the insurance business and can be affected by customer behaviour Insurance nsks accepted relate
pnimarily to mortahty, longevity, morbidity, persistency, expenses, property and unemployment

The prime insurance risk carned by the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes 1s related to fongewvity

Insurance nisks typically, and longevity in particular, may crystallise gradually over time Actuaral assumption sethng for financial
reporting and hability management requires expert judgement as to when evidence of an emerging trend 1s sufficient to require an
alteration to long-run assumptions

Customer treatment
Definition The nisk of regulatory censure and/or a reduction in earningsfvalue, through financial or reputational loss, from
Inappropriate or poor customer treatment

Features Customer treatment and how the Group manages its customer relationships affects all aspects of the Group's operations
and 15 closely aligned with achievement of the Group's strategic aim - to create deep long lasting relationships with its custormers
There 1s currently a high level of scrutiny regarding the treatment of customers by financial institutions from the press, politicians
and regulatory bodies

The FSA continues to dnve focus on conduct of business activities and has established a new approach to supervision of Conduct
Risk, replacing the previous ‘Treating Customers Fairly’ inihiative for retail customers Under this new regime the FSA has indicated that
it will seek to place greater emphasis on product governance and contract terms in general, and will seek to intervene much earlier m
the product lifecycle to prevent customer detnment The FSA also continues to carry out thematic reviews on a vanety of 1ssues across
the industry as a whole, for example complaints handling Lloyds Banking Group actively engages with the regulatory authonties and
other stakeholders on these key customer treatment challenges, which includes for example, PP! (see note 53 of the finanaal
statements)

The Group has policies, procedures and governance arrangements in place to facilitate the fair treatment of customers Since the
acquisition of HBOS, the Group has made significant progress in atigning its approach to Treating Customers Fairly across both
hentages In addition the Group has aligned its Treating Customers Fairly governance and management information arrangements,
with customer impact being a key factor in assessing every integration proposition The Group regularly reviews its product range
to ensure that it meets regulatory requirements and 1s competitive in the market place

People

Definttion The nsk of reductions n earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from inappropnate colleague
actions and behaviour, industnat action, legal action in relation to people, or health and safety 1ssues Loss can also be incurred
through failure to recruit, retain, train, reward and incentivise appropnately skilled staff to achieve business objectives and through
fatlure to take appropriate action as a result of staff underperformance

Features The Group aims to attract, retain, and develop high calibre talent Failure to do so presents a significant risk to delivering
the Group’s overall strategy and 1s affected by a range of factors including

— Ongoing regulatory and public interest in remuneration practices
— Delivery of Lloyds Banking Group’s integration commitments, and
— Uncertainty about EU state aid requirements and the Independent Commission on Banking’s proposals for banking reform

The Group’s remuneration arrangements encourage comphant and appropnate behaviour from colleagues, 1n ine with group
policies, values and short and long term people nsk prnionities  The Group has continued to work closely with regulators to seek to
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ensure comphance with our obligations However, there s recognttion that international consensus must be achieved to avoid UK
instituions being significantly disadvantaged i attracting and retaining the highest calibre talent

The Group continues to manage urion relationships actively and the majonty of colleagues are now on harmonised Terms and
Conditions There 13 strong ongoing commitment to support and retain colteagues throughout a pertod of sigrificant integration and
orgamsational change Actwve mornitanng of the Colleague Engagement Survey, allows the Group to understand engagement levels
These continue to increase and are now exceeding industry benchmarking for high performing organisations

The Lioyds Banking Group is closely engaged with the UK Government and regulators on reform proposals, and with the EU on
disposal arrangements, to influence and manage colleague uncertainty

Integration

Defirmtion The nsk that the Group fails to realise the business growth oppoartunities, revenue benefits, cost synergies, operational
efficiencies and other benefits anticipated from, or incurs unanticipated costs and losses associated with, the acquisition of HBOS plc

Features The integration of the two hentage oiganisations continues to be one of the largest integration challenges that has been
seen in the UK financial services industry While there continue to be delivery nsks to the programme, not least the nsk of new
regulatory requirements which may have an effect on resourcing, the Group 1s now two years into the integration programme and
has a fully developed and functioning governance framework to manage these nsks There is a ¢clear understanding of the phased
delwerables to ensure effectrve delivery through to 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LLOYDS TSB BANK PLC

We have audited the Group and the Bank financial statements (the “financial statements”) of Lloyds TSB Bank plc for the year
ended 31 December 2010 which compnise the Consolidated income statement, the Group and Bank statements of comprehensive
income, the Group and Bank balance sheets, the Group and Bank statements of changes in equity, the Group and Bank cash flow
statements and the related notes The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the Bank financial
statements, as appled in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As exptained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities on pages 3 and 4, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Cur responsibility 1s to audit and
express an opinion on the financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Bank's members as a body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands 1t may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's and Bank's circumstances and have been consistently
apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements

Opimion on financial statements
In our opinion

- the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Bank's affairs as at 31 December 2010
and of the Group's loss and Group's and Bank's cash flows for the year then ended,

the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,
the Bank financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with 1IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and
as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards
the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the |AS Regulatton

Opinon on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinicn the infermation given in the Cirectors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
15 consistent with the financial statements

10
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Comparies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, In our
opINion

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Bank, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us, or

the Bank financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

- certain disclosures of the directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

N\ N

lan Rankin (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Edinburgh

24 February 2011

—

a) The mamntenance and integnty of the Lloyds Banking Group plc website 1s the responsibility of the Group directors, the work
carned out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility
for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were imtially presented on the website

b) Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other junisdictions
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2010

interest and simifar income

Interest and similar expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense

Net fee and comrrussion income

Net trading income

Insurance premium income

QOther operating income

Other income

Total income

Insurance claims

Total income, net of insurance claims
Subvention payment

Government Asset Protection Scheme fee
Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Trading surplus

Impairment

Share of results of joint ventures and assocrates
Loss on disposal of businesses

Profit (loss) before tax

TJaxation

Loss for the year

Prafit attributable to non-controlling interests
Loss attnbutable to equity shareholders
Lass for the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

12

2010 2009

Note £ mullion £ mihon
29,682 11,575
(16,996} (6,276)

5 12,686 5,299
4,415 2,821
(1,682) (680)

6 2,733 2,141
7 16,167 7.214
8 8,148 4,228
9 4,143 3,307
31,191 16,890
43,877 22,189

10 {18,511) (9,630)
25,366 12,559

- (3,000)

- (2,500)

(13,236) (7,023)

11 (13,236) (12,523)
12,130 36

12 (10,952) (4,416)
13 (88) 2
14 {365) -
725 {4,378)

15 (818) 1,605
(93) (2,773)

62 24

(155) (2,797)

(93) (2,773}
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Statements of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
The Group £ million £ million
Loss for the year {83) (2,773)
Other comprehensive income
Movements In revaluation reserve in respect of available-for-sale financial assets
Change In fair value 1,231 1,430
Income statement transfers in respect of disposals (399) (1)
Income statement transfers in respect of iImpairment 114 44
Other income statement transfers (110) (29)
Taxation (343) (228)
493 1,216
Movements 1n cash flow hedging reserve
Effective portion of changes in fair value taken to other comprehensive income {1,062) (4)
Net income statement transfers 932 (17)
Taxation 35 6
(95) (15)
Currency translation differences
Currency translation differences, before tax (137) 313
Taxation - (182)
(137) 131
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 261 1,332
Total comprehensive income for the year 168 (1,441)
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 57 5
Total comprehensive income attributable to equity shareholders 111 (1,446)
Total comprehensive income for the year 168 (1,441)
2010 2009
The Bank £ miliion £ million
Loss for the year (280) (1,909)
Other comprehensive income
Movements in revaluation reserve in respect of available-for-sale financial assets
Change in fair value 924 (41)
Income statement transfers in respect of disposals 6 (1}
Income statement transfers in respect of impairment 21 15
Other income statement transfers (44) (58)
Taxation {249) 30
658 (55)
Moverents in cash flow hedging reserve
Effective portion of changes 1n fair value taken to other comprehensive income (13) (4)
Net income statement transfers 41 (17)
Taxation (8) 6
20 (15)
Currency transkation differences
Currency translation differences, before tax 17 (11)
Taxation - -
17 (11)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 695 (81)
Total comprehensive income for the year 415 (1,990)
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Lloyds TSB Bank plc
Balance sheets

at 31 December 2010

Assets
Cash and balances at central banks
Itemms in the course of collection from banks

Trading and other financiat assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Denvative financial instruments

Loans and receivables
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Debt securnties

Availlable-for-sale financral assets
Held-to-matunty investments
Investment properties

Investments in joint ventures and associates
Goodwill

Value of in-force business

Other intangible assets

Tangible fixed assets

Current tax recoverable

Deferred tax assets

Investment in subsidary undertakings
Retirement benefit assets

Other assets

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
Note £ million £ million £ million £ miilion
38,115 36,089 35,585 35,964
1,368 1,045 997 1,004
16 156,276 48,894 4,587 2,633
17 49,600 18,797 21,322 17,937
18 30,272 175,554 152,596 176,556
19 611,089 245,226 251,173 253111
22 25,735 2,636 1,479 2,830
667,096 423,416 405,248 432,457
24 42,955 26,089 24,951 13,514
25 7,905 - 7,905 -
26 5,997 2,340 - -
13 429 56 6 61
27 2,016 2,016 - -
28 7,367 2,403 - -
29 3,496 205 118 111
30 8,190 4,125 1,631 1,374
550 85 828 886
43 4,204 2,438 2,796 2,672
31 - - 40,155 15,960
42 736 - 530 -
32 12,432 4,982 1,243 816
1,008,732 572,980 547,802 525,429

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

The directors approved the financial statements on 24 February 2Q

/y/%?,:w // 4/./

Sir Winfried Bischoff

Chairman Chief Executive
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Lloyds TSB Bank plc
Balance sheets

at 31 December 2010

Equity and habilities

Liabilities

Deposits from banks

Customer deposits

items 1n course of transmission to banks

Trading and other financial iabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Denvative financial instruments

Notes in circulation

Debt securities in 1ssue

Liabilities arising from insurance contracts and participating
investment contracts

Liabilities arising from non-participating investment contracts
Unaltocated surplus within insurance businesses

Other llabilities

Retrrement benefit obligations

Current tax habilities

Deferred tax llabilities

Other provisions

Subordinated Labilities

Total habilities

Equity

Share capital

Share premium account
Other reserves

Retained profits
Shareholders’ equity
Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Total equity and habilities

'Restated — see note 1

The Group The Bank

2010 2009! 2010 2009!

Note £ mthon £ millon £ million £ million
33 50,363 138,557 118,337 160,428
34 416,276 193,045 223,812 201,053
802 542 506 492

35 26,762 6,362 11,268 6,362
17 42,645 16,733 20,260 16,829
1,074 - - -

36 228,317 120,719 115,122 109,870
37 80,749 36,960 - -
39 51,363 15,734 - -
40 643 310 - -
41 30,046 12,263 3,800 3,437
42 423 474 292 131
149 22 19 15

43 247 - - -
44 1,532 547 569 533
45 29,609 15,999 15,574 15,456
961,000 559,267 509,559 514,606

46 1,574 1,547 1,574 1,547
47 35,533 8,555 35,533 8,555
48 5,272 (1,342} 365 (330
49 4,512 4,660 771 1,051
46,891 13,420 38,243 10,823

841 293 - -

47,732 13,713 38,243 10,823
1,008,732 572,980 547,802 525,429

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Statements of changes Iin equity

The Group
Balance at 1 January 2009

As previously stated

Prior year adjustment?
Restated
Comprehensive income
(Loss) profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Movements in revaluation reserve in respect
of avallable-for-sale financial assets, net of tax
Movements in cash flow hedging reserve,
net of tax
Currency translation differences, net of tax
Total other comprehensive iIncome
Total comprehensive income
Transactions with owners
Dividends
Capital injection
Totai transactions with owners
Balance at 31 December 2009!
Comprehensive income
(Loss) profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Movements in revaluation reserve in respect
of available-for-sale financial assets, net of tax
Movements in cash flow hedging reserve,
net of tax
Currency translation differences, net of tax
Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Transactions with owners
Dividends
Issue of ordinary shares

On transfer of HBOS

Other
Reserve ansing on transfer of HBOS
Employee share option schemes —
value of employees services
Adjustment on acquisition
Extinguishment of non-controlling interests
Change in non-controlling interests
Total transactions with owners
Balance at 31 December 2010

'Restated — see note 1

Attributable to equity shareholders

Share Non-
capital and Other Retamned controiling

premium reserves profits Total interests Total
£ million £ millron £ million £ million £ million £ million
4,502 (2,824) 7,588 9,266 306 9,572
- 131 (131) - - -
4,502 (2,693) 7,457 9,266 306 9,572

- - (2,797) (2,797) 24 {(2,773)
- 1,235 - 1,235 (19) 1,216

- {15) - {15} - (15)
- 131 - 131 - 131
- 1,351 - 1,351 (19) 1,332

- 1,351 (2,797) (1,446} 5 (1,441)

- - - - (18) (18)
5,600 - - 5,600 - 5,600
5,600 — - 5,600 (18) 5,582
10,102 (1,342) 4,660 13,420 293 13,713

- - (155} (155) 62 (93)
- 498 498 {5} 493

- (95) - {95) - (95)

- (137) - (137) - {137)
- 266 - 266 (5) 261
- 266 (155) 111 57 168

- - - - {47) {an
21,394 - - 21,394 - 21,394
5,611 - - 5,611 - 5,611
- 6,348 - 6,348 - 6,348

- - 7 7 - 7
- - - - 1,271 1,271

- - - - (735) (735)
- - - - 2 2
27,005 6,348 7 33,360 491 33,851
37,107 5,272 4,512 46,891 841 47,732
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Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Statements of changes in equity

The Bank
Balance at 1 January 2009
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year
ther comprehensive income
Movements in revaluation reserve In respect of available-for-sale
financial assets, net of tax
Movements in cash flow hedging reserve, net of tax
Currency translation differences, net of tax
Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Transactions with owners — capital injection
Balance at 31 December 2009!
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
Movements in revaluation reserve in respect of available-for-sale
financial assets, net of tax
Movements in cash flow hedging reserve, net of tax
Currency translation differences, net of tax
Total other comprehensive iIncome
Total comprehensive income
Transactions with owners
Issue of ordinary shares
On transfer of HBOS
Other
Total transactions with owners
Balance at 31 December 2010

'Restated - see note 1
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Attributable to equity shareholders

Share
capital and Other Retained
premium reserves profits Total
£ million £ million £ million £ millian
4,502 (249) 2,960 7,213
- - {1,909) {1,909)
- {55) - (55}
- {15) - (15)
- {11} - (11)
- {81) - (81)
- {81 {1,909} {1,590)
5,600 — - 5,600
10,102 (330) 1,051 10,823
- - (280) (280)
- 658 - 658
- 20 - 20
- 17 - 17
- 695 - 695
- 695 (280) 415
21,394 - - 21,394
5,611 - - 5,611
27,005 - - 27,005
37,107 365 771 38,243




Lloyds TSB Benk plc

Cash flow statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010

Profit (loss) before tax

Adjustments for

Change In operating assets

Change n operating habilities

Non-cash and other items

Tax received (paid)

Net cash (used 1n) provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of availlable-for-sale financial assets
Proceeds from sale and matunty of available-for-sale
financial assets

Purchase of held-to-matunty investments

Purchase of fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Additional capital injections to subsidianes
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired
Disposal of businesses, net of cash disposed

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Interest paid on subordinated liabilities

Proceeds from i1ssue of subordinated liabilities
Proceeds from issue of crdinary shares

Repayment of subordinated liabihties

Change in non-controlling shareholders

Net cash prowvided by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The Group The Bank

2010 2009 2010 2009

Note £ million £ million £ million £ million
725 (4,378) (566) (3,570}

57a 31,872 (142,905) 21,003 (143,910)
57b (45,561) 132,435 (6,604) 136,658
57c 10,498 4,683 929 (447)
209 83 (32) 16

(2,257) (10,082) 14,730 (11,253)
(42,662} (445,140) (28,411) (420,748)

45,999 474,173 14,831 446,249

(4,228) - (4,228) -

(3,205) (1,310) (5675) (435)

1,353 491 7 19

- - (219) (1)

57§ 9,011 {35) - -
57g 428 - 18 33
6,696 28,179 {18,577) 25117

57e (47) (18) - -
(1,732) (968) (872) (939)

b57e 3,237 3,187 3,237 3,187
- 5,600 - 5,600

57e (684) (1,842) (353) (1,842)
57e 2 - - -
776 5,959 2,012 6,006

479 (210} 17 (87)

5,694 23,846 (1,818) 19,783

56,606 32,760 42,207 22,424

57d 62,300 56,606 40,389 42 207

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Lloyds TSB Bank plc
Notes to the accounts

1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of Lloyds TSE Bank pic have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union (EU) as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 IFRS comprises accounting standards prefixed IFRS 1ssued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and those prefixed IAS issued by the IASB's predecessor body as well as interpretations 1ssued by the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Commuttee (IFRIC) and 1ts predecessor body The EU endorsed version of 1AS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement
relaxes seme of the hedge accounting requirements, the Group has not taken advantage of this relaxation, and therefore there 15 no difference in apptication to the
Group between IFRS as adopted by the EU and IFRS as 1ssued by the 1ASB The financial information has been prepared under the histonical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties, avarabte-for-sale financiat assets, trading secunties and certan other financial assets and liabilives at fair value
through profit or ioss and all denvative contracts

The going concern of the Bank and the Group 15 dependent on successfully funding thetr respective batance sheets and maintaiming adequate fevels of capital In
order to satisfy themselves that the Bank and the Group have adequate resources to continue to operate for the foreseeable future, the directors have considered a
number of key dependencies which are set out in the Principal risks and uncertainties section under Liquidity and funding on page 7 and additionally have considered
projections for the Group's capital and funding position Taking all of these factors into account, the directors consider that it 1s appropriate to continue to adopt the
going concarn basis in preparing the accounts

As explained in note 31, Lloyds Banking Group plc transferred its investment in HBOS pic to Lloyds TSB Bank pic on 1 January 2010 In accordance with the
accounting treatment available under IFRS 3 (Revised) for business combinatians tvolving entities under common contrel, Lloyds TSB Bank plc was not required
to fair value the acguired business at the date of transfer Instead, the assets and labilities were incorporated at the amounts at which they were recorded within
Lloyds Banking Group at that date The difference between the consohidated net asset value of HBOS plc al the date of transfer and the consideration paid, which
was equal to Lloyds Banking Group pic's onginal cost of investment, has been credited to a merger reserve Lloyds TSB Bank plc has not taken advantage of the
option avaiable under IFRS 3 (Revised) to treat HBOS plc as 1f it had been owned throughout the pror year and, accordingly, no comparatives have been restated
as a result of the transfer

During 2010, the [nternational Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee clanfied the treatment of amounts previously recognised in equity in respect of assets
that were transferred from the available-for-sale category to the loans and recevables category When an impairment loss 1s recogrised in respect of such transfereed
financial assets, the unamortised balance of any available-for-sale revaluation reserve that remains «n equity should be transferred to the income statement and
recorcted as part of the impairment less  The Group has changed iis accounting policy to reflect this clanfication Under the Group's previous accounting policy, when
such z transferred financial asset became impaired, not all of the unamortised amounts previously transferred to equity were recycled to the income statement and
therefore continued 1o be accreted over the expected remaiming life of the financral asset This change 1s apphied retrospectively and the effect has been to reduce
retained profits and increase avarlable-for-sale revaluation reserves by £131 million at 1 January 2009, shareholders' equity 15 unchanged There was no matenal
effect on the Group's income statement during 2009

Also dunng 2010, the Group has classified assets as neld-to-matunty for the first time  Purchases of government debt secunties of £4,228 million made in the
second half of 2010 were classified as held to-matunity on acquisition, were initially recogrmised at fair value including direct and incremental transacton costs and
are being measured subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective interest method Further, on 1 November 2010, government debt securities with a carrying
value of £3,601 million, previously classified as available-for-sale, were reclassified to held-to-maturity Unrealised gains on the transferred secunties of £223 million
previousty taken to equity cantinue to be held in the available-for sale revaluation reserve ard will be amortised to the income statement over the remaning lives of
the securities using the effective interest method or unt)l the assets become imparred

The Group has adopted the following new standards and amendments to standards which became effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2010
None of these standards or amendments have had a matenal impact on these financial statements

(i} IFRS 3 Busmess Combinaticns This revised standard applies prospectively to business combinations from 1 January 2010 The revised standard continues to
require the use of the acquisition methed of accounting for business combinations  All payments te purchase a business are to be recorded at fair value at the
acquisiticn date, some contingent payments are subsequently remeasured at fair vaiue through income, goodwill may be calculated based on the parent's share
of net assets or it may include goodwill related to the non-controlling interest, and aif transaction costs are expensed (other than those In relation 1o the ssuance
of detit instruments or share capstal)

(1} 1AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financral Statements Requires the effects of all transactions with non-controlling interests to be recorded 1n equity If there
IS no change i control, any remaining interest in an investee 1s remeasured to fair value in determining the gain or 'oss recognised n profit or loss where control
aver the investee 15 lost

(m) IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners Provides accounting guidance for nen-reciprocal distnbutions of non-cash assets to owners (and those in
which owners may elect to receive a cash alternative)

(v} Amendment to IAS 39 Financial instruments Recognition and Measurement - "Eligible Hedged Items’ Clarfies how the principies underlying hedge accounting
should be apphed in particular situations

{v) improvements fo IFRSs (issued Apni 2009} Sets cut miner amendments to IFRS standards as part of the annual mprovements process

Details of those IFRS pranouncements which will be relevant to the Group but which were not effective at 31 December 2010 and which have not been applied in
preparing these financial statements are given in note 58
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Lioyds TSB Bank plc
Notes to the accounts

2 Accounting policies

The accounting policies are set out below

a Consolidation
The assets, liabilities and results of Group undertakings (including special purpose entities) are included in the financial statements on the basis of accounts made up
to the reporting date Group undertakings include subsicianes, associates and joint ventures

{1} Subsichanes

Subsidiaries include entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies which generally accompanies a shareholding of more
than one haif of the voting rights The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity Subsidianies are fully consolidated from the date on which control 15 transferred to the Group, they are de-consclidated
from the date that control ceases Detalls of the prinipal subsichanes are given in note 31

Investment vehicles, such as Open Ended investment Companies (QEICs), where the Group has contrai, typically through acting as fund manager and the life funds
having a beneficial interest greater than 50 per cent, are consolidated The non-controlling unithelders' interest 1s reported n other babiities

Special purpose entines (SPEs} are consolidated f, in substance, the Group controls the entity A key indicator of such contrel, amongst others, 1s where the Group
15 exposed to the nisks and benefits of the SPE

The treatment of transactions with non-controlling interests depends on whether, as a result of the transaction, the Group loses control of the subsidiary Change in
the parent's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result In a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or receved 1s recogmised directly In equity and attributed to the cwners
of the parent entity Where the group loses control of the subsidiary, at the date when control 1s lost the amaount of any non-controlling interest in that former subsidiary
15 derecogrised and any investment retained in the former subsidiary 1s remeasured to its fair value, the gain or loss that 1s recognised in profit or loss on the partial
disposal of the subsidiary includes the gain or loss on the remeasurement of the retained interest

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gatns and losses on transactions between Group companies are eliminated

The acquisition method of accounting Is used {0 account for business combinations by the Group The consideration for the acquisition of a subsichary 1s the fair
value of the assets transferred, the habihbes incurred and the equity interests 1ssued by the Group The consideration includes the fair value of any asset or hability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement Acquisittion related costs are expensed as incurred except those relating to the issuance of debt instruments
{see 2e(5)) or share capital {see 2r(1)) Identifiable assets acquired and habilities assumed 10 a business combination are measured initally at thelr fair value at the
acquisition date

(2} Joint ventures and associates

Joint ventures are entrhies over which the Greup has jornt control under a contractual arrangement with cther pariies Associates are entities over which the Group
has sigmificant influence, but not control ar joint control, over the financiat and operating policies Significant influence s the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the entity and 1s normally achieved through holding between 20 per cent and 50 per cent of the voting share capital of the entity

The Group utilises the venture capital exemption for investments where sigmificant influence or joint contral 1s present and the business unit operates as a venture
capial business These tnvestments are designated at instial recogmition at fair value through profit or loss Otherwise, the Group's (nvestments in joint ventures and
assoclates are accounted for by the equity method of accounting and are initally recorded at cost and adjusted each year to reflect the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition results of the joint venture or associate based on audited accounts which are cotermincus with the Group or made up to a date which 15 not more
than three months before the Group's reporting date The share of any losses (s restricted to a tevel that reflects an obhgation to fund such losses

b Goodwill

Goodwill anses on business combinations, including the acquisition of subsidianies, and on the acquisition of interests m joint ventures and associates, goodwill
represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, habilities and contingent liabilities acquired Where
the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabthties and contingent habilities of the acquired entity 15 greater than the cost of acquisition, the excess
15 recognised immediately in the ncome statement

Goodwill 1s recognised as an asset at cost and 15 tested at least annualty for impairment If an impairment s identified the carrying value of the goodwill 1s written
down immedately through the income statement and 1s not subsequently reversed Goodwsll ansing on acquisitions of associates and joint ventures is incfuded in
the Group's investment In joint ventures and associates At the date of disposal of a subsidiary, the carrymg value of attnbutable goodwill 1s included in the calculatron
of the profit or loss on disposal except where 1t has been wnitten off directly 1o reserves n the past

c Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets mclude brands, core deposit intangibles, purchased credit card relationships, cusiomer-related intangibles and capitalised software
enhancements Intangible assets which have been determmed to have a fimite useful life are amorhised on a straight line basis over therr estimated useful bfe as
fallows

Capitahsed software enhancements up to 5 years
Brands (which have been assessed as having finite lives) 10-15 years
Customer-related intangibles up to 10 years
Core deposit intangibles up 10 8 years
Purchased credit card relationships 5 years

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date to assess whether there 1s any indication that they are impaired If any such indication
exists the recoverable amount of the asset 1s determined and in the event that the asset's carrying amount 1s greater than its recoverable amount, 1t 1s wnitten down
immedchately Certatn brands have been determined to have an indefinite useful Iife and are not amortised Such mtangible assets are reassessed annuatly to reconfirm
that an sndefinite usefu! life remains appropriate In the event that an ndefinite Iife 18 inapproprate a finite fe 15 determined and an impairment review 1s performed
on the asset

20




Lioyds TSB Bark plc
Notes to the accounts

2 Accounting polictes {continued)

d Revenue recogmtion

Interest income and expense are recognised n the income statement for all interest-beaning financial struments, except for those classified at fair value through
profit or loss, using the effective interest method The effective interest method 15 @ methed of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or hability and of
allocating the interest income o Interest expense over the expected life of the financial instrument The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected 1ife of the financial instrument or, when appropnate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or inancial hakylity

The effective (nterest rate 1s calculated on imihal recognition of the financial asset or hability by estimating the future cash flows after considering all the contractual
terms of the instrument but not future credit losses The calculation includes all amounts expected to be paid or recewed by the Group including expected early
redemption fees and related penalties and premiums and discounts that are an integral part of the overall return Direct incremental transaction costs related to the
acquisibion, issue or disposal of a financiat instrument are also taken into account in the calcuiation Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has
been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income Is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measunng the impairment loss (see h below)

Fees and commissions which are not an integral part of the effective interest rate are generally recogmised when the service has been provided Loan commitment
fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together with related direct costs) and recogmsed as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on the
loan once drawn Where 1t 15 unlikely that loan commitments will be drawn, loan commitment fees are recognised over the life of the faciity Loan syndication fees
are recognised as revenue when the syndication has been compieted and the Group retains no part of the loan package for itself or retains a part at the same effective
nterest rate for all interest-bearing financial instruments, including loans and advances, as for the other participants

Dividend ncome s recognised when the right to receive payment s established
Revenue recognition policies specific to life insurance and general insurance bhusiness are detailed below (see o below)

e Financial assets and habilities

Oninibal recognition, financial assets are classified into fair vatue through profit or {oss, avarable-for-sale financial assets, held-to-matunity investments or loans and
recevables Financial habilities are measured at amortised cost, except for trading habilities and other financial atbilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recogruticn which are held a¢ fair value Purchases and sales of secunities and other financial assets and trading Labilities are recognised on trade date,
being the date that the Group 1s committed to purchase or sell an asset

(1) Financial mstruments at fair value through profit or loss
Financial instruments are classified at fair value through profit or loss where they are trading securities or where they are designated at fair value through profit or
loss by management Dervatives are carned at fair value (see f below)

Trading secunities are debt secunities and equity shares acquired principzlly for the purpose of selling In the short term or which are part of a portfolio which 1S
managed for short-term gains Such secunties are classified as trading secunties and recogmised In the balance sheet at thewr fair value Gains and losses ansing from
changes in their fair value together with interest coupens and dividend incame are recogrised In the income statement wathin net trading income in the pened
wiiich they occur

Other financial assets and habilities at fair value through profit or less are designated as such by management upon imtial recogrution Such assets and abiites are
carned 1in the balance sheet at ther fair value and gains and losses ansing from changes in far value together with interest coupons and dividend income are
recognised in the income statement within net trading income In the perted In which they occur Financial assets and habiities are designated at fair value through
profit or loss on acquisition 1n the following circumstances

— It elimunates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise anse frem measuring the assets and habilities or recognising gains or losses
cn different bases The main type of financial assets designated by the Group at fay value through profit or loss are assets backing insurance contracts and
investment centracts 1ssued by the Group's life insurance businesses Fair value designation allows changes in the fair value of these assets to he recorded in the
income statement aleng with the changes in the value of the associated habihties, thereby significantly reducing the measurement inconsistency had the assets
been classified as avallable-for-sale financial assets

—the assets and liabilities are part of a group which 1s managed, and 1ts performance evaluated, on a farr value basis in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy, with management information also prepared on this basis As noted in a(2) above, certain of the Group’s investments are
managed as venture capital investments and evaluated on the basis of their fair value and these assets are designated at fair value through profit or loss

—where the assets and llabilities contain one or more embedded dervatives that significantly modify the cash flows anising under the contract and would otherwise
need to be separately accounted for

The fair values of assets and habilities traded in active markets are based on cusrent bid and offer prices respectively If the market 1s not active the Group establishes
a fair value by using valuation techniques These include the use of recent arm's length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants Refer to note 3 (Critical accounting
estimates and judgements Fair value of financial instruments) and note 54(3) (Financial instruments Fair values of financrzl assets and Labiliies) for details of
valuation technigues and significant iInputs 1o valuation mode!s

The Group 15 permitied to reclassify, at fair value at the date of transfer, non-derivative financial assets (other than those designated at fair value through profit or loss
by the entity upon imtial recognition) out of the trading category if they are no longer held for the purpose of being sold or repurchased n the near term, as follows

—If the financial assets would have met the defimition of loans and recewables (but for the fact that they had to be classified as held for trading at inittal recognition},
they may be rectassified into loans and receables where the Group has the intention and ability to fold the assets for the foreseeable future or untl matunty,

—if the financial assets would not have met the definition of foans and receivables, they may he reclassified out of the held for trading category into avallable-for-sale
financial assets in ‘rare circumstances’
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(2) Available-for-sale financial assels

Debt securities and equity shares that are not classified as trading secunities, at far value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments or as loans and
recevables are classified as avallable-for-sale financial assets and are recognised 1n the balance sheet at their fair value, inclusive of ransaction costs Available-for-sale
financial assets are those intended to be held for an indeterminate period of time and may be sold In response 1o needs for hquidity or changes in interest rates,
exchange rates or equity prices Gains and losses ansing from changes n the fair value of investments classified as avallable-for-sale are recognised directly «n other
comprehensive income, until the financial asset 1s either sold, becomes impaired or matures, at which tme the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised 1y other
comprehensive Income 1s recognised n the income statement Interest calculated using the effective interest method and foreign exchange gans and losses on debt
secunities dengminated in foreign currencies are recagnised In the Income statement

The Groug 15 permitted to transfer a financial asset from the avallable-for-sate category to the loans ard recevables category where that asset would have met the
definiion of loans and receivables at the time of reclassificaton (f the financial asset had not been designated as available-for-sale) and where there 1s both the
intention and ability to hold that financial asset for the foreseeable future Reclassification of a financial asset from the available-for-sale category to the held-to-maturity
category is permitted when the Group has the ability and intent to held that financial asset to maturity

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable Effective interest rates for
financial assets reclassified to the loans and recevables and held-to-matunty categories are determined at the reclassification date Any previous gain or loss on a
transferred asset that has been recognised in equity s amortised to profit or less over the remaining ide of the Investment using the effective interest methed or until
the asset becomes impatred Any difference between the new amortised cost and the expected cash flows 15 also amertised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest method

When an impairment loss 15 recegnised In respect of available-for-sale assets transferred, the unamortised balance of any available-for-sale reserve that remains in
equity 1s transferred to the income statement and recorded as part of the impairment loss

(3) Loans and recevables

Loans and receivables include leans ang advances to banks and customers and eligible assets including those transferred into this category out of the fair vaiue
through profit or loss or available-for-sale financial assets categones Loans and recewvables are imitally recogrised when cash (s advanced to the borrowers at fair
value inclusive of transaction costs or, for eligible assets transferred into this category, ther fair value at the date of transfer Financial assets classified as loans and
recelvables are accounted for at amortised cost using the effective interest method (see d above) less provision for impairment (see b below}

The Group has entered Into secuntisation and s:milar transactiens to finance certain loans and advances to customers These loans and advances to customers
continue to be recognised by the Group, together with a corresponding hability for the funding

(4} Held-to-maturity mvestments
Held-to-matunty investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to held to maturity other than

(a} those that the Group designates upon inthial recogrition as at fair value through profit or loss,
(b) those that the Group designates as available-for-sale, and
{c) those that meet the definition of loans and receivables

These are imtially recognssed at fair value including direct and incrementat transacticn costs and measured subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective nterest
method, less any provision for impairment

(5} Borrowings
Borrowings (which include deposits from banks, customer deposits, debt securities in issue and subordinated habiities) are recognised mitially at fair value, being
therr 1ssue proceeds net of transacton costs incurred These instruments are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Preference shares and other instruments which carry a mandatory coupon or are redeemable on a specific date are classified as financial hiabihties The coupon on
these instruments 1s recogmised in the income statement as interest expense

An exchange of financial habilities on substantially different terms 1s accounted for as an extinguishment of the onginal financial hability and the recogmiion of a new
financial labilty The difference between the carrying amount of a financial iabihity extinguished and the new financial lakxhty 1s recognised In profit or loss together
with any related costs or fees incurred

When a financial hability 1s exchanged for an equity instrument, the new equity instrument 1S recogrised at fair value and any differance between the oniginal carrying
value of the habihty and the fair value of the new equity is recognised in the profit or loss together with any related costs or fees incurred

(6} Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements {repos) continue to be recognised an the balance sheet where substantially all of the risks and rewards are retained

Funds recerved under these arrangements are included in deposits from banks, customer deposits, or trading habiities Conversely, secunities purchased under
agreements to resell (reverse repgs), where the Group does not acgutre substantially all of the nisks and rewards of ownership, are recorded as loans and recewvables
or trading secunties The difference between sale and repurchase pnce 1s treated as interest and accrued over the life of the agreements using the effective interest
method

Securities lent to counterparties are retained in the financial statements Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financiat statements, unless these are sold to
third parties, in which case the obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading habihity
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(7} Derecognition of financial assets and habilittes
Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual nght to receive cash flows from those assets has expired or when the Group has transterred its contractual
right to receive the cash flows from the assets and either

- substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership have been transferred, or
- the Group has neither retained nor transferred substantially all of the nsks and rewards, but has transferred control

Financial hlabihties are derecognised when they are extinguished (ie when the obligation 15 discharged}, cancelled or expire

f Denvative financial instruments and hedge accounting

All dernvatives are recognised at therr fair value Fair values are ehtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and using
valugtion techniques, Including discounted cash flow and option pricing models, as appropnate Dervatives are carried «n the balance sheet as assets when thair farr
value 1s positive and as liabilities when therr fair value 1s negative Refer to note 3 (Critical accounting estimates and judgements Fair value of inancial instruments)
and note 53(3} (Financial instruments Fair values of financial assets and habmties) for details of valuation technmiques and significant inputs to valuation models

Changes In the fair value of any denvative instrument that 1s not part of a hedging retationship are recognised immediately in the income statement

Derivatives embedded in financial instruments and insurance contracts (unless the embedded dernivative 1s itself an insurance contract) are treated as separate
dervatives when their economic charactenstics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not carned at fair value through
profit or loss These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised In the income statement [n accordance with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts, a policyholder's option to surrender an insurance contract for a fixed amount s not treated as an embedded denvative

The method of recognising the movements I the fair value of derivatives depends on whether they are designated as hedging instruments and, if so, the nature of
the 1tem being hedged Hedge accounting allows one financial instrument, generally a dernvative such as & swap, to be designated as a hedge of ancther financial
instrument such as a loan or deposit or a portfolio of the same At the inception of the hedge relationship, formal documentation s drawn up specifying the hedging
strategy, the hedged item and the hedging instrument and the methodelogy that will be used to measure the effectiveness of the hedge relationship In offsetting
changes n the fair value or cash flow of the hedged nsk The effectiveness of the hedging relationship 15 tested both at inception and threughout its hife and +f at any
point 1115 concluded that it 1s no longer highly effective in achiewing its documented objective, hedge accounting 1s discontinued

The Group designates certain dervatives as either (1) hedges of the fair vatue of the particular nsks inherent in recognised assets or hiabilities {fair value hedges),
(2) hedges of highty probatle future cash flows attributable to recognised assets or hakilities (cash flow hedges), or (3) hedges of net investments in foreign operations
{net investment hedges) These are accounted for as follows

(1) Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement, together with the changes in the
fair value of the hedged asset cr Labihty that are atinibutable to the hedged nisk, this also applies if the hedged asset 1s classified as an avarable-for-sale financial
asset If the hedge no longer meets the cnteria for hedge accountng, changes in the fair value of the hedged item atinbutable to the hedged risk are na longer
recognised In the income statement The cumulative adjustment that has been made to the carrying amount of the hedged item 1s amortised to the income statement
using the effective interest methed aver the penod to matunty

(2} Cash fiow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges I1s recognised In other comprehensive income in
tha cash flow hedge reserve The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion 15 recognised immediately sn the income staterment  Amounts accumulated in equity
are reclassified to the income statement in the periods in which the hedged tem affects profit or loss When a hedging instrument expires ¢r 1s sold, or when a hedge
no longer meets the critena for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that ime rema:ns in equity and s recognised 1n the income
statement when the forecast transaction 1s Lltimately recogmised in the income statement When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or lgss that was reported in equity 15 immedately transferred to the income statement

(3) Net investment hedges

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for simitarly to cash flow hedges Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective
portion of the hedge I1s reccgnised in other comprehensive income, the gain or loss relating to the ineffective portien 1s recognised immediately in the income
staternent Gains and losses accumulated in eguily are included in the income statement when the foreign operation 15 disposed of The hedging mstruments used
In net investment hedges may include non-dersvative hiabilties as well as derivative financial instruments

g Offset

Financial assets and habihties are offset and the net amount reported 11 the balance sheet when there 15 a legally enferceable night of set-off and there 1s an intention
to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the habihty simultanecusly in certain situations, even though master netting agreements exist, the lack of
management intention to settle on & net basis results in the inancial assets and habihties being reported gross on the balance sheet

h Impairment of financial assets

1) Assets accounted for at amortised cost

At each balance sheet date the Group assesses whether, as a result of one or more events cccurning after initial recognition of the financial asset and pnor to the
balance sheet date, there 1s objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financiat assets has become impaired

Where such an event has had an impact on the esttmated future cash flows of the inancial asset or group of financial assets, an impairment allowance 13 recognised
The amount of impairment allowance s the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present velue of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
asset's onginal effective interest rate If the asset has a vanable rate of interest, the discount rate used for measurning the impairment allowance 1s the current effective
Interest rate

Subseguent to the recogniton of an impairment loss on a financal asset or a group of financial assets, interest Income continues to be recognised on an effective
Interest rate basis, on the asset's carrying value net of impairment provisions 1f, in a subsequent pericd, the amount of the imparment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related cbjectively to an event occurming after the impairment was recogrised, such as an improvement in the borrower’s credit rating, the allowance
15 adjusted and the amount of the reversal 1s recognised in the income staterment

23




Lloyds TSB Bank plc
Notes to the accounts

2  Accounting policies (continued)

Impairment allowances are assessed indwicdually for financial assets that are individually significant Such individuat assessment (s used primanty for the Group's
wholesale tending portfolios in the Whelesale and Wealth and International divisions Impairment allowances for portfolios of smaller balance hamogenous foans
such as most residentiai mortgages, personal loans and credit card balances in the Group's retail portfolics 1n both the Retail and Wealth and International divisions
that are below the indmdual assessment thresholds, and for loan 10sses that have been incurred but not separately wentified at the balance sheet date, are
determined on a collective basis

Indvidual assessment

In respect of indwvidually significant financial assets in the Group's wholesale lending portfolios, assets are reviewed on a regular basis and those showing potential
or actual vulnerability are placed on a watch iist where greater monitoring 1s undertaken and any adverse or potentially adverse impact on ability to repay 1s used in
assessing whether an asset should be transferred to a dedicated Business Support Unit Specific examples of trigger events that would lead to the initial recognition
of impairment altowances against lending to corporate borrowers (or the recogniion of additional impairment allowances} include (1) trading losses, loss of business
or major customer of a borrower, (1) matenal breaches of the terms and conditions of a loan facihity, including non-payment of interest or principal, or a fall in the
value of secunty such that it 15 no longer considered adequate, (1) disappearance of an active market because of financial difficulties, or (v} restructuning a facility
with preferential terms to aid recovery of the lending {such as a debt for equity swap)

For such idividually identified financial assets, a review 1s undertaken of the expectec future cash flows which requires significant managament judgement as to the
amount and timing of such cash flows Where the debt (s secured, the assessment reflects the expected cash flows from the realisation of the secunity, net of costs
to realise, whether or not foreclosure or realisation of the collateral 1s prebable

For impaired debt instruments which are held at amortised cost, impairment losses are recognised in subsequent penods when 1t 1s determined that there has been
a further negative 1mpact on expected future cash flows A reduction in fair value caused by general widening of credit spreads would not, of itself, result in addtional
impairment

Coflective assessment

In respect of portfolios of smaller balance, homogenous toans, or otherwise where there 1s no obyective evidence of individual iImpairment, the asset)s included in g
group of financial assets with simdar nsk characteristics and collectively assessed for impairment Segmentation takes into account factors, such as the type of asset,
geographical location, coliateral type, past-due status and other relevant factors These characteristics are relevant te the estimation of future cash flows for groups
of such assets as they are indicative of the borrower's ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated

Generallﬁ, the impairment trigger used within the impairment calculatien for a loan, or group of Ioans, 1s when they reach a pre-defined fevel of delinquency or where
the customer 1s bankrupt Loans where the Group provides arrangements that forgive a portion of interest or principal are also deemed 1o be impaired and loans that
are onginated to refinance currently impaired assets are also defined as impaired

in respect of the Group’s secured mortgage portfolios, the impairment allowance 1s calculated based on a definition of impaired loans which are those six months or
more 1n arrears {or where the borrower 15 bankrupt or I1s in possession} The estimated cash flows are calculated based on historical experience and are dependent
on estimates of the expected value of collateral which takes into account expected future movements in house prices, less costs to seft

For unsecured personal lending portfolios, the impairment trigger 1s genarally when the balance 1s two or more instalments in arrears or where the customer has
exhibited ane or more of the impairment charactenstics noted above While the tngger 5 based on the payment performance or circumstances of each individuai
asset, the assessment of future cash flows uses histoncal expenence of cohorts of sirmilar portfolios such that the assessment 1s considered to be collective Future
cash flows are estmated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the cohort and historical loss experience for similar assets Historical loss
expenence 15 adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the persod on which the historical loss
experience 1s based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist currentty The methodelogy and assumptions used for estimating
future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual 10ss expenence

The ¢ollective provision also includes provision for inherent losses, that 1s loan losses that have been incurred but have not been identified at the balance sheet date
The loans that are not currently recogrnised as impaired are grouped into homogenous portfolios by key nisk drivers An assessment 1s made, based on statistical
techniques, of the hkelihcod of each account becoming recognised as impaired within an emergence perod, with the economic loss that each portiolio 1s hkely to
generate were it to become impaired The emergence period 1s the time between the loss event and the date the impairment s recognised The emergence perad 1S
determined by local management for each portfolio In general the pencds used across the Group vary between one month and twelve months based on historical
expernence

Loan renegotations and forbearance

In certain ciscumstances, the Group will renegotiate the original terms of a customers loan, either as part of an ongoing customer relationship or In response to
adverse changes In the circumstances cf the borrower There are a number of different types of loan renegobiation, including the capitalisation of arrears, payment
holidays, interest rate adjustments and extensions of the due date of payment Where the renegotiated payments of interest and principal will not recover the onginal
carrying value of the asset, this results in the asset continuing to be reported as past due and 1t 1s considered impaired Where the renegotizted payments of interest
and principal will recover the onginal carrying value of the asset, the toan 13 no longer reported as past due or impaired provided that payments are made in
accordance with the revised terms In other cases, renegotiation may lead to a new agreement, which 1S treated as a new loan

Write offs

A loan or advance 13 normally written off, either partially or in fult, against the related allowance when the proceeds from realising any available security have been
received or there 1s no realistic prospect of recovery and the amount of the loss has been determined Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
decrease the amount of impairment losses recorded n the income statement

Debt for equity exchanges

Equity secunties acquired 1in exchange for loans in order to achieve an orderly realisation are accounted for as a disposal of the loan and an acquisttion of equity
secunties Where control 1s obtained over an entity as a result of the transaction, the entity 15 consohdated, where the Group has significant influence over an entity
as a result of the transaction, the investment s accounted for by the equity method of accounting (see (A) above} Any subsequent impatrment of the assets or
business acquired s treated as an impairment of the relevant asset or business and not as an impaisment of the ongmal instrument
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(2} Available-for-sale financial assels

The Group assesses, at each batance sheet date, whether there 15 objective evidence that an available-for sale financial asset 15 impaired In addition to the criterra
for financial assets accounted for at amortised cost set out above, this assessment Involves reviewing the current financial crcumstances (including creditworthiness}
and future prospects of the 1ssuer assessing the future cash flows expected to be realised and, n the case of equity shares, considerning whether there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the asset below its cost If an impasrment loss has been incurred, the cumulative loss measured as the diiference
between the acquisition cost {net of any prncipal repayment and amortisation) and the current far value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recogmised, s reclassified from equity to the income statement For impaired debt instruments, imparrment losses are recognised 1n subsequent periods when 1t 1s
determined that there has been a further negative impact on expected future cash flows, a reduction in fair value caused by general widening of credrt spreads would
not, of «tself, result in additional impairment If, n a subsequent pencd, the fair vatue of a debt instrument classiiied as available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurning after the impairment Joss was recognised, an amount not greater than the onginal smparment loss 15 credited to the
Income statement, any excess IS 1aken to other comprehensive Income Impairment losses recognised (n the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the Income statement

1 Investment property

Investment property comprises freehold and long leasehold land and buildings that are held either to eain rental income or for capital appreciation or both The
Group's Investment property pnmarly relates to property held for long-term rental yields and caprial appreciation within the hife insurance funds investment property
Is carried In the batance sheet at fair value, being the open market value as determined 1n accordance with the guidance published by the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors If this information 15 not available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods such as discounted cash flow projections or recent prices
These valuatons are reviewed at least annualiy by an independent valuation expert Investment property being redeveloped for continuing use as investment
property, or for which the market has become less active, continues to be measured at farr value Changes 1n fair value are recognised in the income statement as
net tradmg income

1 Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are inctuded at cost less accumulated depreciation The value of land (included in premises) 15 not deprectated Depreciation on other assets 1S
calculated using the straight-ine method to allocate the difference between the cost and the residual value over their estimated useful ives, as follows

Premises {excluding land)

- Freehold/long and short leasehold premises shorter of 50 years and the remaining penod of the lease
- Leasehcld improvements shorter of 10 years and, If lease renewal 15 not likely, the remairing penod of the lease

Equipment

— Fixtures and furmshings 10-20 years
- Other equipment and motor vehicles 2-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropniate, at each balance sheet date

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes In circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable In the avent that an
asset's carrying amount 15 determined to be greater than its recoverable amount it 1s written down immediately The recoverable amount 1s the higher of the asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use

k Leases

(1) As lessee

The leases entered inio by the Group are primarnly operating leases Cperating lease rentals payable are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the perniod of the lease

When an operating lease 1s terminated before the end of the lease penod, any payment made to the lessor by way of penalty 1s recognised as an expense in the penod
of termination

{2) As lessor

Assets leased to customers are classified as finance ieases If the lease agreements transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership to the lessee but not
necessarlly legal title All other leases are classified as operating leases When assets are subject te finance leases, the present value of the lease payments, together
with any unguaranteed residual value, 15 recognised as a recervable, net of provisions, within loans and advances to banks and customers The difference between
the gross receivable and the present value of the recewvable 1s recognised as unearned finance fease income Finance lease income 1S reccgnised In Interest Ingome
over the term of the lease using the net Investment method {(before tax) so as 10 give a constant rate of return on the net investmeant in the leases Unguaranteed
residual values are reviewed regularly to identify any impairment

Operating lease assets are included within tangible fixed assets at cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives, which equates to the lives of the leases, after
taking mio account anticipated residual values Operating lease rental income 1s recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease

The Group evaluates non-lease arrangements such as outsourcing and similar contracts to determine if they contain a lease which 15 then accounted for separately

| Pensions and other post-retirement benefits

The Group operates a number of post-retirement benefit schemes for its employees including both defined benefit and defined contnbution pension plans A defined
benefit scheme (s a pension plan that defines an amount of pensien benefit that an employee will receve on retirement, dependent on one or rore factors such as
age, years of service and salary A defined contribution plan is a pension plan inte which the Group pays fixed contributions, there 1S no legal or constructive cbligation
to pay further contnibutions

Full actuanal valuatons of the Group's principal defined benefit schemes are carried out every three years with interin reviews In the intervening years, these
valuations are updated to 31 December each year by qualified independenit actuanes, or in the case of the Scottish Widows Retirement Benefits Scheme, by a
qualified actuary employed by Scottish Widows For the purpases of these annual updates scheme assets are included at their fair value and scheme habilites are
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measured on an actuanal basis using the projected unit credit method adjusted for unrecogrised actuanat gains and losses The defined benefit scheme liabilities
are discounted using rates equivalent 10 the market yields at the balance sheet date on high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated 1n the currency in which
the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to matunity approximating to the terms of the related pension hability

The Group's Income statement charge mcludes the current service cost of providing pension benefits, the expected return on the schemes’ assets, net of expected
admunistration costs, and the nterest cost on the schemes' liabihities Actuanal gaing and losses ansing from expenence adjustments and changes in actuanal
assumptions are not recogrised unless the cumulative unrecognised gan or loss at the end of the previous reporting period exceeds the greater of 10 per cent of the
scheme assets or Labilities (‘the corndor approach’) In these circumstances the excess 15 charged or credited to the income statement over the employees’ expected
average remaining working lives Past service costs are charged immediately to the income statement, unless the charges are conditional on the employees remaining
In service for a specified penod of tirme (the vesting period) In this case, the past service costs are amortised on a straight line basis over the vesting period

The Group’s batance sheet includes the net surplus or deficit, being the difference between the fair value of scheme assets and the discounted value of scheme
liabilities at the balance sheet date adjusted for any cumulative unrecognised actuanal gains or losses Sumluses are only recognised to the extent that they are
recoverable through reduced contributions n the future or through refunds from the schemes

The Group recognises the effect of matenal changes to the terms of its defined benefit pension plans which reduce future benefits as curtallments, gains and losses
are recognised 1n the income staternent when the curtailments occur

The costs of the Group’s defined contnbution plans are charged 1o the income stalement in the penod in which they fall due

m Share-based compensation

Lloyds Banking Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans in respect of services received from certain of 11s employees The value
of the employee services received In exchange for equity instruments granted under these plans 1s recognised as an expense over the vesting peniod of the
instruments This expense 1S determined by reference to the fair value of the number of equity instruments that are expected to vest The fair value of equity
instruments granted 15 based on market prices, if available, at the date of grant In the absence of market prices, the fair value of the instruments at the date of grant
15 estimated using an appropriate valuation technique, such as a Black-Schotes option pricing model The determanation of fair values excludes the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions, which are included in the assumptions used to estimate the number of options that are expected to vest At each balance sheet date,
this estimate 15 reassessed and If necessary revised Any revision of the aniginal estimate 1s recognised 1n the income statement over the remaining vesting period,
together with a corresponding ad)ustment to equity Cancellaucns by employees of contributions te the Group's Save As You Earn plans are treated as non-vesting
conditiens and 1n accordance with IFRS 2 (Revised) the Group recognises, In the year of cancellation, the amount of the expense that would have otherwise been
recogmised over the remainder of the vesting pertod Modifications are assessed at the date of modification and any Iincremental charges are charged to the income
statement over any remaining vesting pericd

n Taxation
Current income tax which 1s payable on taxable profits 1s recognised as an expense in the peniod 11 which the profits arise

For the Group's long-term insurance businesses, the tax charge 1s analysed between 1ax that 1s payable in respect of policyholders’ returns and tax that 15 payable on
equity holders’ returns This allocation 1s based on an assessment of the rates of tax which will be apphed to the returns under current UK tax rules

Deferred tax 1s provided in full, using the hability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and habihiues and thew carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements However, deferred tax 1s not accounted for if it anses from mitia! recogmition of an asset or liability 1n a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects nerther accounting nor taxable profit or loss Deferred tax 1s determened using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date which are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability
1s settled

Deferred tax assets are recogrised where 1t 1s probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utiised Income tax
payable on profits 1s recognised as an expense 1n the period in which those profits anse The tax effects of losses available for carry forward are recognised as an
asset when 1t 15 probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these losses can be utilised Deferred and current tax related to gains and losses
on the fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale investments and cash flow hedges, where these gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
Income, 15 also recogrised in other comprehensive income Such tax 1s subsequently transferred to the income statement together with the gamn or loss

Deferred and current tax assets and liabilities are offset when they arise in the same tax reporting group and where there 1s both a legal nght of offset and the intention
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously

o Insurance

The Group undertakes both hfe insurance and general msurance business

Products sold by the life nsurance husimess are classified into three categories

Insurance contracts — these contracts transfer sigmificant insurance nisk and may also transfer financial sk The Group defines significant insurance nsk as the
possibiity of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event which are significantly more than the benefits payable 1f the insured event were not to
occur These centracts may or may not include discretionary participation features

Investment contracts containing a discretionary participation feature ('participating investment contracts’) - these contracts do not transfer significant insurance nsk,
but contain a contractual nght which gives the holder the night to recerve, in addition to the guaranteed benefits, further additional discrettonary benefits or bonuses
that are likely to be a significant proportion of the total contractual benefits and the amount and timing of which 15 at the discretron of the Group, within the constrants
of the terms and condrtions of the instrument and based upon the performance of specified assets

Non-participating investment contracts — these contracts do not transfer significant insusrance nisk ¢r contain a discretionary participation feature

The general insurance business 1ssues only insurance contracts
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2 Accounting pohicies (continued)

(1) Life insurance business

(1) Accounting for insurance and participating investment contracts

Premiumns and claims

Premiums recewved in respect of insurance and participating investment contracts are recogmised as revenue when due except for unit-hinked contracts on which
premiums are recognised as revenue when received Claims are recorded as an expense on the eashier of the maturity date or the date on which the claim is notified

Liabihtres

- Insurance and participating investment coniracts in the Group’s with-profit funds

Ltablities of the Group's with-profit funds, including guarantees and options embedded within products written by these funds, are stated at thew realistic values in
accordance with the Financial Services Authonty's realistic capital regime, except that projected transfers out of the funds into other Group funds are recorded in the
unallocated surplus (see befow} Changes in the value of these liabilities are recognised through insurance claims

— Insurance and participating imvestment conliracts which are not unit-inked or in the Group’s with-profit funds

A liability for contractual benefits that are expected 10 be incurred in the future 15 recorded when the premiums are recognised The hability 1s calculated by estimating
the future cash flows over the duration of in-force policies and discounting them back to the valuation date allowing for prebabilities of occurrence The habiity will
vary with mgverments 1n interest raies and wath the cost of life insurance and annudy benefits where future mortahty 15 uncertain

Assumptions are made in respect of all matenal factors affecting future cash flows, including future interest rates, mortality and costs
Changes 1n the value of these liabilities are recognised in the income statement through insurance claims

~ Insurance and participating investment contracts which are unit-inked

Liabiliies for unit-linked insurance contracts and participating investment contracts are stated at the bid value of units plus an additional allowance where appropriate
(such as for any excess of future expenses over charges) The liabiity 1s Increased or reduced by the change in the unit prices and 15 reduced by policy administration
fees, mortality and surrender charges and any withdrawals Changes in the value of the hability are recognised in the income statement through insurance claims
Benefit clatms in excess of the account balances incurred in the penod are also charged through insurance claims Revenue consists of fees deducted for moriality,
policy administration and surrender chasges

Unallocated surplus
Any amounts in the with-profit funds not yet determined as beng due to policyholders or shareholders are recognised as an unallocated surplus which 1s shown
separately from habilties ansing from insurance contracts and participating investment contracts

(1) Accounting for non-participating investment contracts

The Group's non-participating investment contracts are pnmarnily unit-linked These contracts are accounted for as financial iabilities whose value 1s contractuaily
linked te the fair values of financial assets within the Group's unitised investment funds The value of the unit-hnked financial hiabilities 1s determined using current
unit prices multtplied by the number of umits attributed to the contract holders at the balance sheet date Therr value 1s never less than the amount payable on
surrender, discounted for the required notice penod where applicable Investment returns (including movements In fair value and investment ;ncome) allocated to
those contracts are recognised (n insurance claims

Deposits and withdrawals are not accounted for through the income statement but are accounted for directly in the balance sheet as adjustments to the non-participating
investment contract hability

The Group receives investment management fees in the form of an inhial adjustment or charge to the amount invested These fees are n respect of services rendered
I conjunciion with the issue and management of investment contracts where the Group actively manages the consideration received from its customers fo fund a
return that 15 based on the investment profile that the customer selected on onigination of the contract These services compnse an indeterminate number of acts over
the lives of the iIndwidual contracts and, therefore, the Group defers these fees and recognises them over the estimated lives of the contracts, m Line wath the provision
of Investment management services

Costs which are directly attnbutable and incremental to securing new non-participating investment contracts are deferred This asset 15 subsequently amortised over
the period of the provision of investment management services and 1s reviewed for impairment in cirgumstances where its carrying amount may not be recoverable
If the asset 15 greater than 1ts recoverable amount 1t 1s written down immediately through fee and commission expense In the income statement All other costs are
recognised as expenses when incurred

(1) Value of in-force business

The Group recognises as an assel the value of in-force busmness n respect of insurance contracts and particspating investment contracts The asset represents the
present value of the shareholders’ interest in the profits expected to emerge from those contracts written at the balance sheet date This 1s determined after making
appropnate assumptions about future economic and operating conditions such as future mortalidy and persistency rates and includes allowances for both non-market
nisk and for the realisuc value of financial options and guarantees Each cash flow 15 valued using the discount rate consistent wath that applied to such a cash flow
tn the capital markets The asset in the consolidated balance sheet 1s presented gross of attnbutable tax and movements in the asset are reflected withun other
operating Income In the income statement

The Group's contractual nghts to benefits from providing investment management services n relation to non-participating snvestment contracts acquired 1n business
combinations and partfolio transfers are measured at farr value at the date of acquisition The resulting asset 1s amoriised over the estimated fives of the contracts
At each reporting date an assessment 15 made 10 determine if there 15 any indication of impaiment Where impairment exists, the carrying value of the asset 1s
reduced 1o 1is recoverable amount ang the impairment loss recognised in the income statement

(2) General insurance business

The Group both underwntes and acts as intermediary in the sale of general insurance products Underwnting premiums are included in snsurance premium income,
net of refunds, n the period tn which insurance cover 1$ provided 1o the customer, premiums received relating to future penods are deferred In the balance sheet
within liabilities ansing from insurance contracts and participating investment contracts and only crechted o the income statement when eamed Broking commission
15 recogrised when the underwriter accepts the nisk of providing insurance caver to the customer Where appropnate, provision 15 made for the effect of future policy
terminations based upon past experience
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The underwnting business makes provision for the estimated cost of claims notified but not settled and claims incurred but not reported at the balance sheet date
The provision for the cost of claims notified but not settled 1s based upon a best estimate of the cost of settling the outstanding claims after taking into account all
known facts In those cases where there 1s insufficient information to determine the required provision, statistical techrigues are used which take into account the
cost of claims that have recently been settlied and make assumptions about the future development of the outstanding cases Similar statistical techniques are used
to deterrmine the provision for claims incurred but not reported at the balance sheet date Claims liabilities are not discounted

(3) Lability adequacy test

At each balance sheet date iability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of insurance and participating investment contract habilities net of related
deferred cost assets and valug of in-force business In performing these tests current best estimates of discounted future contractual cash flows and claims handling
and policy agministration: expenses, as well as investment income from the assets backing such habilities, are used Any deficiency 15 immediately charged to the
income statement, inally by wnting off the relevant assets and subseguently by establishing a provision for losses ansing from liability adequacy tests

(4) Reinsurance
Contracts entered Into by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group 1s compensated for losses on one or more contracts 1ssued by the Group and that meet
the classification reguirements for insurance contracts are classified as remsurance coniracts held

The benefits 1o which the Group is entitled under 155 reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance assets These assets consist of short-term balances
due from reinsurers as well as longer term recervables that are dependent on the expected claims and benefits ansing under the related reinsured contracts Amounts
recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured contracts and in accordance with the terms of each
reinsurance contract and are regularly reviewed for imparment Premiums payable for reinsurance contracts are recogaised as an expense when due within
insurance premium income  Changes in the retnsurance recoverable assels are recognised in the income statement through msurance claims

p Foreign currency transiation
Items included In the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the pnmary economic enviranment in which the entity
operates {the ‘functional currency’) The consolidated financial statements are presented In sterling, which 15 the Company's functional and presentaton currency

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the appropriate functional currency using the exchange rates prevaihng at the dates of the transactions Forergn
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translabion at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and habilities
denominated in forergn currencies are recognised in the income statement, except when recognised In other comprehensive Income as qualifying cash flow or net
investment hedges MNon-monetary assets that are measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined
Translation differences on equities and similar non-monetary items held at fair value through profit and loss are recogrised in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss Translation differences on available-for-sale non-monetary financial assets, such as equity shares, are included in the fair value reserve in equity unless
the asset 15 a hedged item in a faw value hedge

The results and financial position of all group entities that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows

- The assets and hatnhties of foreign operations, including goodwill and fawr vaiue adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign entity, are translated into sterling
at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date

- The mcome and expenses of foreign operations are translated into sterling at average exchange rates unless these do not approximate to the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions In which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions

Foreign exchange differences ansing on the translaticn of a foreign operation are recognised In other comprehensive income and accumulated 1n a separate
component of equity together with exchange differences ansing from the translation of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
nvestments (see f{3) above) On disposal of a foreign eperation, the cumulative amount of exchange differences relating to that foreign operation are reclassified from
equity and included in determining the profit or loss ansing on disposal

q Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised in respect of present obligations ansing from past events where it 1 probable that outflows of resources will be required to settle the
obhgations and they can be rehably estimated

The Group recognises prowisions m respect of vacant leasehold property where the unavoidable costs of the present obligations exceed anticipated rental income

Contingent habihires are possible obligatons whose existence depends on the outcome of uncertain future events or those present abligations where the outflows of
resources are uncertain or cannot be measured reliably Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements but are disclosed uniess they are remote

r Share capital

(1) Share 1ssue cosfs

Incremental costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of new shares or options or to the acquisiion of a business are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds

{(2) Dwidends
Dwdends paid on the Group's ordinary shares are recognised as a reduction in equity in the peniod 1n which they are paid

s Cash and cash equivalents
Far the purposes of the cash flow staternent, cash and cash equwvalents comprise cash and non-mandatory balances with central banks and amounts due from banks
with a maturity of less than three months

t Investment in subsiciaries
Investments in subsidiaries are carried at historical cost, less any provisions for Impairment
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3 Cntical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Group's financizl statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estmates and assumptions in applying the
accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, labdities, income and expenses Dug {o the inherent uncertainty In making estimates, actual results
reported in future periods may be based upon amounts which differ from those estimates Estimates, judgements and assumptions are continualty evaluated and are
based on histencal expenence and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

The significant judgements made by management in applying the Group's accounting pohicies and the key sources of estmation uncertainty in these financiat
staterments, which together are deemed cntical to the Group's results and financeat position, are as follows

The estimates and judgements applied to these areas n the preparation of the Group's financial statements are summarised below

Allowance for impairment losses on loans and receivables

At 31 December 2010 gross loans and receivables totalled £686,047 million (2009 £428,623 mithon) against which impairment allowances of £18,951 million
{2009 £5,207 milion} had been made (see note 23) The Group’s accounting palicy for losses ansing on financeal assets classified as loans and recewables is
described 1n note 2h, this note also provides an overview of the methedologies applied

The allowance for tmpairment josses on loans and recevables 1s management’s best estimate of losses incurred in the portfolio at the balance sheet date Impatrment
allowances are made up of two components, those determined individually and those determined collectively

Individual impairment allowances are generally established against the Group's wholesale lending portiolios The determination of indmwadual impairment allowances
requires the exercise of considerable judgement by management involving matters such as local economic condittens and the resulting trading performance of the
custorner, and the value of the securnity held, for which there may not be a readily accessible market In particular, significant judgement 1s required by management
In the current economic envircnment in assessing the borrower's ¢ash flows and debt servicing capability together with the reahsable value of reat estate collateral
The actual amount of the future cash flows and thewr timing may differ significantly from the assumptions made for the purposes of determining the impairment
allowances and consequently these atlowances can be subject to variation as time progresses and the circumstances of the customer become clearer

Collective impairment allowances are generally established for smaller balance homogenous portfolios The collective impairment allowance 1$ also subject 10
estimation uncertanty and 1n particular 1S sensitive to changes 1n economic and credit conditions, ncluding the interdependency of house prices, unemployment
rates, interest rates, borrowers’ behaviour, and consumer bankruptcy trends 1t 1s, however, inherently difficult to estimate how changes in one or more of these factors
mught impact the collective impairment allewance

Given the relative size of the mortgage porifolo a key vanable 1s UK house prices which determine the collateral value supporting loans in such portfoltos The value
of this ccllateral 1s estimated by applying changes in house price indices to the onginal assessed value of the property If average house prices were 10 per cent lower
than those estimated at 31 December 2010, the Retall division's impaiment charge would increase by approximately £250 million

In addition, a collective unimpaired provision 1s made for loan losses that have been incurred but have not been separately identified at the balance sheet date This
provision Is sensitive 1o changes in the ime between the loss event and the date the impairment is specifically identified This penod 1s known as the loss emergence
perod In the Group's wholesale husiness, an increase of one month in the loss emergence period in respect of the loan portfolio assessed for collective untmpaired
provisions would result in an increase in the collective unimpaired prowision of approximately £333 mithion

Unwind of HBOS acquisition fair value adjustments

The acquisition of HBOS in January 2009 required the Lloyds Banking Group to recognise the dentifiable assets acquired and habilities assumed at their acquisition-
date fair values The overall effect was to increase the book value of HBOS's net assets by £1,241 milhon primanly reflecting a reduction in the value of HBOS's debt
secunities and subordinsted habiltes of £15,439 million, partially offset by a reduction in the carrying value of HBOS's loans and receivables of £14,880 million,
including loans and advances to customers of £13,512 million

In the periods subsequent to the acquisition and following the transfer of HBOS to the Group, many of the fair value adjusiments unwind and are recognised n the
Group's Income statement The farr value adjustments made to debt secunities and subordinated liabihities unwind over the expected rematning life of the related
securities except In the event that the liability 1s extinguished, in which case the remarning unamortised fair value adjustments are recognised 1n the income statement
immediately The fair value adjustment relating to loans and recevables broadly compnses two elements, an element reflecting expected future impairment losses at
the date of acquisition and an element reflecting market liquidity The element relating to market hquidhty unwinds to the income statement over the estimated useful
lives of the related assets However, significant management Judgement 1s required to determine the timing of the unwind of the element relating to future credit
losses This includes the identification of losses which were expected at the date of acquisition and assessing whether anticipated losses will still be incurred In
2010, a net credit of £3,118 milhion {0 the income statement relates to the unwind of HBOS acquisition far value adjustmenis Of that amount, £2,229 mithon
relates to impalrment losses incurred which were expected at the date of acquisition and £845 mullion relates 10 a reassassment of future credit losses

Fair value of financial instruments

In accordance with IFRS 7, the Group categonses financial instruments carned on the balance sheet at fair value using a three level hierarchy Finanoial instruments
categonsed as level 1 are valued using quoted market prices and therefore there (s mimimal judgement applied 1n determining fair value However, the fair value of
financial instruments categensed as level 2 and, in particular, level 3 1s determined using valuation techniques including discounted cash flow analys:s and valuation
meodels These require management judgement and contain significant estmaticn uncertainty

In particular, significant judgement 15 required by management in determining appropriate assumplions 1o be used for tevel 3 inancial Instruments At 31 Decamber
2010, the Group classified £6,292 million of financial assets and £257 million of financial habilities as level 3 The effect of applying reasonably possible alternative
assumptions in determining the fair value of the Group's level 3 financiat assets 1s set out In note 54

Recoverability of deferred tax assets

At 31 December 2010 the Group carred deferred tax assets on 1ts balance sheet of £4,204 million (2009 £2,438 million} and deferred tax habilities of £247 million
(2009 £nil) {(note 43} This presentation takes 1nto account the ability of the Group to net deferred tax assets and liabihties only where there 15 a legally enforceable
night of offset Note 43 presents the Group's deferred tax assets and habilities by type The largest category of deferred tax asset relates to tax losses carned forward
At 31 December 2010, the Group recognised a deferred tax asset of £6,596 million (2009 £2,316 million) in respect of tax losses carried forward
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The recognition of a deferred tax asset n respect of tax losses I1s permutted only o the extent that it 1 probable that future laxable profits will be avallable to ulilise
the tax losses carned forward The assessment of future taxable profits involves significant estimation uncertainty, principally relating to management's projections of
future taxable income which are based on business plans These projections include assumptions about the future strategy of the Group, the econemic and regulatory
environment 10 which the Group operates, future tax legislation, customer behawour, and the ability of the Group to deliver expected integration benefits, amongst
other vanables At 31 December 2010, management has concluded that future taxable profits generated by the Group companies with tax losses carned forward are
expected to be sufficient to utilise the tax losses carried forward n full

Retirement benefit obligations

The net asset recognised in the balance sheet at 31 December 2010 in respect of the Group's retirement benefit obligations was £313 million {compnsing an asset
of £736 milhon and a liabity of £423 milion, 2009 a habiity of £474 million) of which an asset of £479 million (2009 a liability of £360 million) related to
defined benefit pension schemes As explained 1n note 21, the Group adopts the corndor approach to the recognition of actuanal gains and losses In respect of its
pension schemes and as a consequence has not recognised actuanal losses of £959 mullion (2009 £2,361 million} The defined benefit pension schemes' gross
deficit totalled £480 mithion (2009 £2,721 million) representing the difference between the schemes' labilities and the fair value of the related assets at the balance
sheet date

The value of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes' liabilities requires significant management judgement in determining the appropriate assumphons 10 be
used The key areas of estimatton uncertainty are the discount rate applied to future cash flows and the expected lifetime of the schemes’ members The size of the
deficit 1s sensitive to changes 1n the discount rate, which 1s affected by market condiions and therefore potentially subject to significant vanation The cost of the
benefits payable by the schemes will also depend upon the longevity of the members Assumptions are made regarding the expected lifetime of scheme members
based upon recent experience, however given the rate of advance in medical science and increasing levels of obesity, it 1s uncertain whether they will ulimately reflect
actual experience Assumnptions used by management reflect recent longevity experience and extrapolate the improving trend

The efiect on the gross defined benefit pension scheme asset or lability and on the pension charge 1n the Group's Income statement of changes to the principal
actuanial assumpuons are set out n nate 42

Valuation of assets and hiabilities ansing from life insurance business

At 31 December 2010, the Group recognised a value of in-force business asset of £5,898 mitlion (2009 £2,403 mill:on) and an acquired value of in-force business
asset of £1,469 milion (2009 £nil} The value of in-force business asset represents the present value of future profits expected to anse from the portfolio of in-force
life Insurance and participating investment contracts The acquired value of in-force business asset represents the centractual nghts to benefits from prowding
nvestment management services In relation to non-participating investment contracts acquired in business combmations and portfolio transfers The methodology
used o value these assets s set out in nate 20(1) The valuation or recoverability of these assets requires assumptions to be made about future economic and
operating conditions which are inherently uncertain and changes could significantly affect the value attributed to these assets The key assumptions that have been
made n deterrminmg the carrying value of the value of in-force business assets at 31 December 2010 are set out in note 28

At 31 December 2010, the Group carned habiliies ansing from insurance contracts and participating investment contracts of £80,749 mithon {2009
£36,960 million) The methodology used to value these liabilities 15 described in note 20(1) Elements of the hability valuations require assumptions to be made
about future investment returns, future mortality rates and future policyholder behaviour and are subject to significant management judgement and estimation
uncertainty The key assumptions that have been made in determiming the carrying value of these lrabilities are set out in note 37

The effect on the Group’s profit before 13x and sharehalders’ equity of changes in key assumptions used In determining the life Insurance assets and habilities 15 set
out In note 38
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The Lloyds TSB Bank Group provides a wide range of banking and financal services in the UK and in certain locations overseas

The Group Executive Committee of the Lioyds Banking Group has been determined to be the chief operating decision maker {or the Group The Group's operating
segments reflect 1is orgamsational and management structures  The Group Executive Commuttee reviews the Group’s interal reporting based around these segments
n order to assess performance and allocate resources This assessment includes a consideration of each segment's net interest revenue and consequently the total
Interest Income and expense for all reportable segments (s presented on a net basis The segments are differentiated by the type of products provided, by whether
the custormers are individuals or corporate entities and by the geographecal location of the customer

Following the transfer of HBOS to the Group on 1 January 2010, all of the trading activities of the Lloyds Banking Group are carned out within the Group and, as a
result, the chief operating decision maker reviews the Group's performance by considenng that of the Lloyds Banking Group The Lloyds Banking Group's activities
are orgamised into four financial reporting segments Retall, Wholesale, Wealth and Internationat and Insurance The segmental resuits and comparatives are
presented on the basis reviewed by the chief operating decision maker and therefore include the results of HBOS for the penod from 1 January 2009 to 16 January
2009, pror to its acquisiticn by the Lioyds Banking Group

Retail offers a broad range of retall financial service products in the UK, including current accounts, savings, persenal loans, credit cards and mortgages Hisalso a
major general insurer and bancassurance distnibutor, selling a wide range of Jong term savings, investment and general insurance products

The Wholesale division serves in excess of a milion businesses ranging from start-ups and small enterprises to global corporations, with a range of propositions
segmented according to customer need The diviston compnises Corporate Markets, Treasury and Trading and Asset Finance

Wealth and International was created n 2009 to give increased focus and momentum to the Uloyds Banking Group's private banking and asset management
activities and to closely co-erdinate the management of its international businesses Wealth compnises the Group's private banking, wealth and asset manzgement
businesses in the UK and overseas International compnses corporate, commercial, asset finance and retail businesses, principally i Australia and Continental
Europe

The Insurance drvision provides long-tesm savings, investment and protection producis distributed through the retail branch network, intermediary and direct
channels in the UK It1s also a distnbutor of home nsurance in the UK with products sold through the retail branch network, direct channels and strategic corporate
partners The division consists of three business units  Life, Pensions and Investmenis UK, Life, Pensions and Investmenis Europe, and General Insurance

Other inctudes the results of managing the Group's technelogy platforms, branch and head office property estate, operations (including payments, banking operations
and collectons) and procurement services, the costs of which are predominantly recharged to the other divisions It also reflects other items not recharged 1o the
divisions, including hedge ineffectiveness and certain capital and wholesale iquidity funding costs

Inter-segment services are generally recharged at cost, with the exception of the internal commission arrangements between the UK branch and other distnbution
networks and the msurance preduct manufactunng businesses with:n the Group, where a profit margin 15 also charged Inter-segment lending and deposits are
generally entered into at market rates, except that non-interest bearing balances are priced at a rate that reflects the external yield that could be earned on such funds

For those dervative contracts entered into by business units for nsk management purposes, the business unit retains the amount that woutd have been recognised
on an accrual accounting basis (an amount equal to the interest element of the next payment on the swap) and transfers the remainder of the fair value of the swap
to the ceniral group segment where the resulting accounting volatiity 1s managed though the estabiishment of hedge accounting relationships Any change in fair
value of the hedged instrument atinbutabile to the hedged nisk 1s also recorded within the central group segment This allocation of the fair value of the swap and
change n far value of the hedged nstrument attributable to the hedged nsk avoids accounting asymmetry :n segmental results and records volatility in the central
group segment where it 1s managed
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Group
Qperations
Wealth and
and Central Reported
Retanl Wholesale  International Insurance items basis total
2010 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net interest income 9,378 4,426 1,176 (263) (895) 13,822
Other income 1,607 4,136 1,160 2,814 447 10,164
Total income 10,985 B,562 2,336 2,551 {448} 23,986
Insurance claims - - - (542) - (542)
Total income, net of insurance claims 10,985 8,562 2,336 2,009 {448} 23,444
Costs
Operating expenses (4,644) (3,744) {1,536) (854) (150} | (10,928)
Impairment of tangible fixed assets - {150) - - - (150)
(4,644) (3,894) (1,536) {854) (150) (11,078)
Trading surplus 6,341 4,668 800 1,155 (598} 12,366
Impairment (2,747) (4,446) (5,988) - - (13,181)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 17 {95) (8) {10} 5 (91)
Profit {loss) before tax and fair value unwind 3,611 127 (5,196) 1,145 (593) (906}
Fair value unwind 1,105 3,130 372 {43) {1,446) 3,118
Profit {loss) before tax 4,716 3,257 (4,824) 1,102 {2.039) 2,212
Wealth
and Reparted
Retail Wholesale International Insurance Other basis total
2010 £m £m £m £m £m £m
External revenue 13,603 3,969 3,000 3,180 234 23,986
Inter-segment revenue (2,618} 4,593 (664) (629) (682) -
Segment revenue 10,985 8,562 2,336 2,551 {448) 23,986
Segment external assets 370,708 355,582 85,158 144,540 35,586 991,574
Segment customer deposits 235,591 124,262 32,784 - 996 393,633
Other segment items reflected in Income statement above
Depreciation and amortisation 384 1,133 87 135 64 1,803
Moverment in value of in-force business - - 4 787 - 789
Defined benefit scheme charges 176 93 39 32 115 455
Other segment I1tems
Additrons to tangible fixed assets 126 1,748 (20} 585 777 3,216
Investments in joint ventures and associates at end of year 139 127 158 (1) 6 429
Greup
Operaticns
Wealth and
and Central Reported
Retail Wholesale International Insurance Hems bass total
2009 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net interest income 7.970 4,710 1,217 (287) (834) 12,726
Other income 1,804 4,199 1,128 2,944 1,800 11,875
Tota! iIncome 9,774 8,909 2,345 2,657 916 24,601
Insurance claims — — — {637) - {637)
Tota! income, net of insurance claims 9,774 8,909 2.345 2,020 916 23,964
Operating expenses {4,566) (4,106) (1,544) {974) (419) (11,609)
Jrading surplus 5,208 4,803 801 1,046 497 12,355
Impairment {4,227) (15,683) {4,078) - - (23,988)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates (6) (720) (21) (22) 2 {767)
Profit {(loss) before tax and fair vaiue unwind 975 (11,600) (3,298) 1,024 499 (12,400)
Fair value unwind 407 6,897 942 (49) (2,097) 6,100
Profit (loss) before tax 1,382 (4,703) (2,356) 975 (1,598) (6,300)
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2009

External revenue

Inter-segment revenue

Segment revenue

Segment external assets

Segment customer deposits

Other segment items reflected n :ncome statement above
Depreciation and amortisation
Movement (n value of in-force business
Defined benefit scheme charges

Other segment items
Additions to tangible fixed assets

Investments in joint ventures and associates at end of year

Wealth
and Reported
Retal Wholesale International Insurance Other basis total
Em £m Em £m £m Em
14,221 4,165 2,859 3,780 (424) 24,601
(4,447) 4,744 {514} (1,123) 1,340 -
9,774 8,909 2,345 2,657 916 24,601
383,588 401,836 86,272 135,814 19,745 1,027,255
224,149 153,389 29,037 - 166 406,741
196 1,284 84 152 147 1,863
- - (5) 1,097 - 1,092
190 112 40 38 156 537
65 2,969 53 255 487 3,829
30 189 123 (14) 151 479

The reported basis 1S the basis on which financial informatton 1s presented to the chief operating decision maker which excludes certamn items included in the
statutory results The table below reconcites the statutory results to the reported basis

Removal of
Impact of Customer
other Pension goodwill
entities  curtaiiment payments
in the gain and Volatility provision
Lloyds TSB Lloyds  acquisition arising n and lass on
Bank Group Banking related insurance Insurance disposal of Fair value Reported
statutory Group! items?  businesses gross up businesses unwind basis
2010 m £m £m £m £m £m Em £m
Net interest income 12,686 (140) - 26 949 - 301 13,822
Other income 31,191 (270) - (332) (19.162) - (1,263) 10,164
Total income 43,877 410 - (306) (18,213) - (962) 23,986
Insurance claims (18,511) - - - 17,967 - 2 (542)
Total income, net of msurance claims 25,366 (410) - {306) (246) - (960) 23,444
Costs
Operating expenses (13,034} (34) 1,320 - 246 500 74 (10,928}
Impairment of tangible fixed assets (202) - 52 - - - - (150}
(13,236} {34) 1,372 - 246 500 74 (11,078)
Trading surplus 12,130 (444) 1,372 {306) - 500 (886) 12,366
Impairment (10,952) - - - - - (2,229) (13,181)
Share of results of joint ventures and assoclates (88) - - - - - (3) (91)
Loss on dispesal of businesses (365} - - - - 365 - -
Fair value unwind - - - - ~ - 3,118 3,118
Profit (loss) before tax 725 (444) 1,372 (306) - 865 - 2,212

This reftects the inclusion in the results reviewed by the chief operating decision maker of the Bank's fellow subsidiary undertakings and 1ts parent undertaking,

Lloyds Banking Group plc

Comprises the pension curtailment gan (£910 mdhon), integration costs (£1,653 million) and the amertisation of purchased intangibles (£629 millian})
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4 Segmental analysis (continued)

2009

Net (nterest (ncome
Other income

Total income
Insurance claims

Total income, net of insurance claims

Operating expenses

Trading surplus (deficit)

Impairment

Share of results of joint ventures and associates

Gain on acquisition
Fair value unwind
Profit {loss) before tax

.

Assets

Removal of
impact of
other GAPS fee
entities n Pre and Volatility
Lloyds TSB the Lloyds acquisition acqursihon ansing 1n

Bank Group Banking results of related insurance Insurance Fair value Reported
statutory Group' HBOS? ems®  businesses gross up unwind basis
£m £m Em £m £m £m £m £m
5,299 3,727 243 - 11 1.280 2,166 12,726
16,890 19,381 (1,123) - (479)  (21,659) (1,135} 11,875
22,189 23,108 (880) - (468) (20,379) 1,031 24,601
(9,630r  {12,389) 1,349 - - 20,318 (285} (637}
12,559 10,719 469 - (468) (61) 746 23,964
(12,523} (3,461) (293) 4,589 - 61 18 (11,609}
36 7,258 176 4,589 (468) - 754 12,355
(4,416) (12,257) (456) - - - (6,859} (23,988}
2 (754) - - (10} - (5} (767}

- 11,173 - {11,173 - - - -

- - - - 6,100 6,100
(4,378} 5,420 (280) (6,584) (478) - - (6,300}
572,980 454,275 - - - - - 1,027,255

This reflects the mclusion In the results reviewed by the chief operating decision maker of the Bank's fellow subsidiary undertakings and its parent undertaking,

Lloyds Banking Group plc

2This reflects the consclidated resutts of HBOS pic from 1 January 2009 up to its acquisition by Lioyds Banking Group plc on 16 January 2009

3Comprises the Government Asset Protection Scheme fee (£2,500 million}, integration cests (£1,086 million), amertisation of purchased intangibles {£753 million),
goodwill impairment (£240 million) and the gain on acquisiion (£11,173 million)

Geographical areas

The Group's activities are focused in the UK and the analyses of Income and assets below are based on the location of the branch or entety recording the income or assets

Total iIncome
Total assets

2010 2009
UK Non-UK Total UK Non UK Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
39,678 4,199 43,877 20,815 1,374 22,189
890,825 117,907 1,008,732 534,306 38,674 572,980

There was no indvidual non-UK country contributing mare than 5 per cent of total income or total assets
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5 Net interest income

Waighted average effective

interest rate

2010 2009 2010 2009
% % Em £m

Interest and simlar income
Loans and advances to customers, excluding tease and hire purchase receivables 416 395 25,459 9,086
Loans and advances to hanks 120 089 851 1,335
Debt secunties held as loans and recewvables 443 4 35 1,396 123
Lease and hire purchase receivables 674 6 69 626 598
Interest receivable on loans and recevables 3492 285 28,332 11,142
Avallable for-sale financial assets 284 159 1,295 433
Held-to-maturnity investments 251 - 55 -
Total interest and similar income 385 277 29,682 11,575

Interest and similar expense
Deposits from banks, excluding hab:lities under sale and repurchase agreements 230 085 (943) (723)
Custormer deposits, excluding liabiliies under sale and repurchase agreements 142 123 (5,359) (1,944)
Debt secunties in 1ssue 249 159 (5,835) (1,642)
Subordinated labilities 10 54 794 (3,217) (1,242)
Liabiittes under sale and repurchase agreements 118 183 (744) (509)
Interest payable on habilties held at amortrised cost 216 156 {16,098) (6,060)
Gther 697 391 (898) (216)
Total interest and similar expense 224 159 {16,996) (6,276)
Net interest iIncome ’ 12,686 5,289

Included wathin inlerest and similar income 1s £1,288 million (2009 £584 million} 1n respect of imparred financial assets Net interest income also includes a
charge of £932 million (2009 ¢redst of £17 milhon) transferred from the cash flow hedging reserve (see note 48)

6 Net fee and commission tncome

2010 2009
£m £m
Fee and commission iNncome
Current accounts 1,086 761
Credit and debit card fees 812 564
Other 2,517 1,496
Total fee and commission ncome 4,415 2,821
Fee and commission expense {1,682) (680)
Net fee and commission income 2,733 2,141

As discussed 1 note 2(d), fees and commussions which are an integral part of the effective interest rate form part of net interest mcome shown in note 5 Fees and
commissions relating fo instruments that are hetd at fair value through profit or loss are included within net trading income shown In note 7

7 Net trading income

2010 2009

£m £m

Foreign exchange translation gains 29 74
Gains on foreign exchange trading transactions 359 382
Total foreign exchange 388 456
Investment property gans (losses) {note 26) 434 {145)
Secunties and other gains (see below) 15,345 6,903
Net trading income 16,167 7,214
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7 Net trading income (continued}

Securities and other gains comprise net gains ansing on assets and babilires held at farr value through profit or loss and for trading as follows

201C 2009
£m £m
Net income ansing on assets held at fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities, loans and advances 2,286 548
EQuity shares 10,333 4,929
Total net income ansing on assets held al fair value through profit or foss 12,619 5,477
Net expense ansing on habiliies held at fair value through profit or loss - debt secunues in issue (216) (119)
Total net gains ansing on assets and habilities held at fair value through profit or loss 12,403 5,358
Net gains on financial instruments held for trading 2,942 1,545
Securties and other gains 15,345 6903
8 Insurance premium income 2010 2009
£m £m
Life insurance
Gross premiums 7,026 3,753
Ceded resnsurance premiums (253} {183}
Net earned premiums 6,773 3,570
Nan-iife insurance
Gross premiums written 1,332 596
Ceded rensurance premiums (104) (34)
Net written premmums 1,228 562
Change in provision for unearned premiums (note 37(2) 156 85
Change in provision for ceded unearned premiums (note 37(2)) (9) 11
Net earned premiums 1,375 658
Total net earned premiums 8,148 4,228
Life insurance gross premiums can be further analysed as follows 2010 2009
£m £m
Life and pensions 6,428 3278
Annuities 583 462
Other 15 13
Gross premiums 7,026 3,753
Non-hfe msurance gross written premiums can be further analysed as follows 2010 2009
£m £m
Credit protection 363 115
Home 964 476
Health 5 5
Gross written premiums 1,332 596
9 Other operating income 2010 2009
£Em £m
Operating lease rental income 1,410 409
Rental income from investment properties (note 26) 337 180
Other rents recervable 41 32
Gains less losses on disposal of available-for-sale financtal assets (note 48) 399 1
Movement in value of in-force business (note 28) 789 510
Gains on ¢capital transactions 352 1,773
Other iIncome 815 402
Total other operating income 4,143 3,307
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9 Other operating income (continued)

Gains on capital transactions )

Dunng 2010 and 2009, as part of the Lloyds Banking Group's management of capital, the Group exchanged certain existing subordinated debt secunties for new
secunties These exchanges resulted in a gain on extinguishment of the existing liabiliies of £352 million (2009 £1,773 millign), being the difference between the
carrying amount of the secunties extinguished and the fair value of the new securties issued together with related fees and costs

10 Insurance claims

Insurance claims comprise

2010 2009
£m £m
Life insurance and participating investment contracts
Claims ang surrenders
Gross (9,397) (4,062)
Reinsurers’ share 159 76

(9,238) (3,986)
Change in insurance and participating investment contract habilities (aote 37(1))

Change 1n gross liabihties (4,622) (3,178)
Change in reinsurers’ share of habilities 256 25

(4,366) (3,153}
Change in non-participating investment contract habihties

Change in gross liabilities 4,872) (2,179)
Change in rensurers' share of habilities 65 -

(4,807) (2,179)
Change in unallocated surplus {note 40) 439 (40)
Total Iife insurance and participating investment contracts (17,972) (9,358)

Non-life insurance
Claims and claims paid

Gross 470) (233)
Reinsurers' share 11 3
(459) (230}
Change in llabihities (note 37(2))
Gross (82) (40Q)
Reinsurers’ share 2 (2)
(80) (42)
Total non-life insurance (539) (272)
Total insurance claims expense {18,511} {9,630)

Life nsurance and participating investment contracts gross claims can also be analysed as follows

Deaths (662) (270)
Maturibies {1,763} (1,596)
Surrenders (5,904} {1,589)
Annuities (741) {540}
Cther (327) (67)
Total Iife tnsurance gross claims (9,397) {4,062)

A non-life insurance claims development tabie 1s included in note 37
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11 Operating expenses

Staff costs
Salanes
Social secuniy costs
Pensions and other post-retirement benefit schemes (note 42}
Curtailment gain?
Other

Cther staff costs

Premises and eguipment
Rent and rates

Hure of equipment
Repairs and maintenance
Other

Other expenses

Communications and data processing
Advertising and promotion

Professicnal fees

Customer gocdwill payments provision (note 44)
Other

Depreciation and amorhsation

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets (note 30)

Amortisation of acquired value of -force non-participating investment contracts {note 28)
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note 29)

Impairment of tangible fixed assets (note 30)
Goodwill impairment (note 27)

Total operating expenses, excluding subventicn payment and Government Asset Protection Scheme fee

Subvention payment?
Government Asset Protection Scheme fee?
Total operating expenses

2010 2009
£m £m
4,220 2,364
396 194
{910) -
628 362
(282) 362
1,135 788
5,469 3,708
601 348
18 10
199 175
407 202
1,225 735
B91 561
362 188
742 342
500 -
1,413 516
3,908 1,607
1,635 681
76 -
721 52
2,432 733
202 -

- 240
13,236 7,023
- 3,000

- 2,500
13,236 12,523

'Following changes by the Group to the terms of ts defined benefit pension schemes, all future increases to pensionable salary wilt be capped each year at the lowar
of Retad Pnces Index inflation, each employee’s actual percentage increase in pay, and 2 per cent of pensionable pay In addition to this, during the second half of
the year there was a change in commutation factors i certain defined benefit schemes The combined effect of these changes ts a recuction in the Group’s defined
benefit obhgation of £1,081 million and a reduction in the Group's actuanal losses of £171 million, resulting in a net curtailment gain of £910 million recognised

in the Income statement and a reduction i the balance sheet iability

*During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Bank made a payment of £3,000 million to 1ts then fellow subsidiary, Bank of Scotland pic, to support its financial

and repuiaticnal position and to facititate the on-going integration of the group's banking operations

30uring the year ended 31 December 2009, i relation to the Lioyds Banking Group's agreement not to enter into the Government Asset Protection Scheme, the Bank

pasd a fee of £2,500 million to the UK Government

The average number of persons on a headeount basis employed by the Group dunng the year was as follows

UK
Overseas
Total
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2010 2009
118,149 63,891
4,830 2,124
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11 QOperating expenses (continued)

Fees payable 1o the Bank's auditors
During the year the auditors eamed the following fees

2010 2009
£m £m
Fees payable for the audit of the Bank's current year annual repart 63 45
Fees payable for other services
Audit of the Bank's subsidianes pursuant to legislation 116 36
Other services supplied pursuant o legislation 13 25
Other services — audit-related fees . 05 -
Other services relating to taxation 10 04
Services relating to corporate finance transactions 03 02
All cther services 08 10
Total fees payable to the Bank’s auditors 218 12 2
During the year the auditors also earned fees payable by entities outside the consohdated Lloyds TSB Bank Group 1n respect of the following
2010 2009
£m £m
Audits of the Group pension schemes 03 02
Audits of unconsohdated Open Ended Investment Companies managed by the Group 08 06
Reviews of the financial position of corporate and other borrowers 17 2 73
Acquisition due diigence and other work performed in respect of potential venture capital investments 12 14
12 Imparrment 2010 2009
£m £m
Impairment losses on loans and receivables (note 23)
Loans and advances to banks (13) (3)
Loans and advances to customers 10,727 4,248
Debt securiies classified as loans and recewvables 57 108
Total impairment losses on loans and recevables 10,771 4,353
Impairment of avalable-for-sale financial assets 106 25
Other crednt nsk provisions (note 44} 75 38
Total impairment charged to the income statement 10,952 4,416
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13  Investments «n joint ventures and associates

The Group’'s share of results of and investments 1n Jont ventures and associIates COMPSESs

Jount ventures Associates Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m Em £m Em

Share of iIncome statement amounts
Income 318 - 135 2 453 2
Expenses (209) - {91) - (300) -
Impament (126) - {92) - (218) —
Profit (loss) before tax {17} - (48) 2 (65) 2
Tax {22} - (1) - (23} -
Share of post-tax results {39} - (49) 2 (88} 2
Share of balance sheet amounts
Current assets 3,370 54 378 2 3,748 56
Non-current assets 2,868 - 1,183 - 4,051 -
Current liabilihes (588) - {433) - {1,021) -
Non-current liabihities (5,324) - (1,025) - (6,349) -
Share of net assets at 31 December 326 54 103 2 429 56
Movement in investments over the year
At 1 January 54 55 2 - 56 35
Adjustment on transfer of HBOS (note 31) 316 - 107 - 423 -
Additional investments 71 - 3 - 77 -
Disposals (68) - 2) - (70) -
Share of post-tax resuits (39) - (49) 2 (88) 2
Dividends paid - - 1 - {n -
Exchange and other adjustmeants (8) (1) 40 - 32 (1)
Share of net assets at 31 December 326 54 103 2 429 56

The Group's unrecognised share of losses of associates for the year 15 £8 million (2009 £nil) and of joint ventures 18 £180 million (2008 £mil) For entities making
losses, subsequent profits earned are not recognised untl previously unrecognised losses are extinguished The Group's unrecogmsed share of losses net of
unrecognised profits on a cumulative basis of asseciates is £104 million (2009 £nil) and of joint ventures 1s £339 milion (2009 £nil)

The Group's pnncipal joint venture investment at 31 December 2010 was in Sainsbury’s Bank pic, the Group owns 50 per cent of the ordinary share capital of
Sainsbury's Bank plc, whose business 1s banking and principal area of operation is the UK Samnsbury’s Bank plc 1s incorporated in the UK and the Group's interest
1s held by a subsidiary

Where entities have statutory accounts drawn up to a date other than 31 December management accounts are used when accouning for them by the Group

14 Loss on disposal of businesses

During 2009, the Group acquired an oil drilling rig construction business through a previous lending refattonship and consolidated the results and net assets of the
business from the date 1t exercised control

In the first haif of 2010, as a result of a detenorating market, the Group impaired the o1l drilling ngs under construction held by the business by £150 milien to
reflect therr reduced value in use This impairment was recognised in the Wholesale segment

In the second half of 2010, the Group reached agreement to dispose of its interests in the two wholly-owned subsidiary companies through which this business
operates, the sale was completed in January 2011 These companies, which had gross assets of £860 million, were sold to Seadrill Limited, a loss of £365 miltion
arose on disposat

The Group extended vendor financing, on normal commercial terms and negotated on an arms length basis, to Seadnll to facilitate the acquisition of the ng helding
companies The loart 1s not contingent on the peformance of the oil ngs under construction Accordingly, as at 31 December 2010, the subsidiaries were derecognised

40



Lloyds TS8 Bank plc
Notes to the accounts

15 Taxation

a Analysis of tax (charge} credit for the year

UK corporation tax
Current 1ax on profit (loss) for the year
Adjustments In respect of pricr years

Double taxation relief

Foreign tax

Current tax on profit (loss) for the year
Adjustmenis n respect of prior years

Current tax credit (charge)

Deferred tax {note 43}

Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Reduction in UK corporation {ax rate

Adjustments 1n respect of pnor years *

Tax {charge) credit

The (charge) credit for tax on the profit for 2010 and 2009 1s based on a UK corporatton tax rate of 28 O per cent

The above income tax (charge) credit 1s made up as follows

Tax charge attributable to policyholders
Shareholder tax (charge) credit
Tax {(charge) credit

b Factors affecting the tax (charge) credit for the year

2010 2009
Em £m
(243} (309)
315 (128)
72 (437)
1 -
73 (437)
(82) {111)
49 7
(33) (104)
40 (541)
(555) 2,051
(142} -
(161) 95
(858) 2,146
(818) 1,605
2010 2009
£m £m
(315) (44}
(503) 1 649
(818) 1,605

A reconciliation of the (charge) credit that would result from applying the standard UK corporation tax rate to profit before tax to the tax (charge) credit for the year 15

given below

Profit (loss) before tax

Tax {charge) credit thereon at UK corporation tax rate of 28 O per cent (2009 28 0 per cent)
Factors affecting (charge) credit

UK corporation tax rate change

Goodwill impairment

Disallowed and non-taxable items

Overseas tax rate differences

Gains exempted or covered by capital losses

Policyholder interests

Losses surrendered for no payment

Tax losses where no deferred tax provided

Adjustments in respect of previous years

Effect of profit {loss} in joint ventures and associates
QOther items

Tax {charge) credit on profit {loss) on ordinary activities
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2010 2009
£m £m
725 (4,378)
(203) 1,226
(142) -
- {67)
(25) 463
134 (13)
65 14
{227) (32)
{123) -
{478) -
203 12
{25) 1
3 1
(818) 1,605
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16 Trading and other financial assets at fair value threugh profit or loss

Trading assets

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Tota!

These assets are comprised as follows

Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to banks
Debt secunties
Government secunties
Other public sector securities
Bank and building society certificates of deposit
Asset-backed securities
Mortgage-backed securties
Other asset-backed securities
Corporate and other debt secunties

Equity shares
Listed
Unhisted

Treasury bills and other bills
Total

The Group The Bank

2010 2008 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
23,743 510 3,526 510
132,533 48,384 1,061 2,123
156,276 48,894 4,587 2,633

2010 2009 2010 2009
Other Other Other Other
financiat financial financial financial
assets at assats at assets at assets at
fair value farr value fair value fair value
Trading through Trading through Trading through Trading threugh
assets  profnt or loss assets  profit or loss assets  profit or loss asseis  proht or loss
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
9,486 325 273 166 - 325 273 166
2,734 - - - - - - -
1,623 22,217 72 7,866 220 13 72 -
- 919 6 34 - - 6 -
3,692 606 - - - - - -
- 422 - 393 - - - -
1,020 1,592 - 1,656 47 47 - 247
4,955 16,190 159 10,412 3,259 647 159 1,706
11,2590 41,946 237 20,361 3,526 707 237 1,953
- 50,276 - 18,964 - - - -
6 39,986 - 8,893 - 29 - 4
6 90,262 - 27,857 - 29 - 4
227 - - - - . - - -
23,743 132,533 510 48,384 3,526 1,061 510 2,123

At 31 December 2010 £129,792 milhon {2009 £48,307 milhion} of trading and cther financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of the Group and

£2.426 million (2009 £2,478 milion) of the Bank had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or 10ss represent ihe following assets designated into that category

(1) financial assets backing insurance contracts and investment contracts which are so designated because the related liabilwies either have cash flows that are
contractually based on the performance of the assets or are contracts whose measurement takes account of current market conditions and where significant

measurement inconsistencies would otherwise anse,

(1) certain loans and advances 1o customers which are economically hedged by interest rate denivatives which are not in hedge acceunting relationships and where
significant measurement inconsistencies would otherwise anse if the related denvatives were treated as trading labiliies and the loans and advances were

carned at amortised cost, and

() certain private equity investments that are managed, and evaluated, on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented nsk management or invesiment

strategy and reported to key management personnel on that basis

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at 31 December 2010 ¢f the loans and advances to customers designated at fair value through profit or loss by the Bank and the
Group was £325 mithen (2009 £166 million), the Bank and the Group do not hold any credit dervatives or other instruments in mitsgation of this nsk There was no
significant moverment in the fair value of these loans attnbutable to changes in credit risk, this 1s determined by reference to the publicly avaitable credit ratings of the

instruments involved

Included in the amounts reporied above are assets subject to repurchase agreements with a carrying value of £824 milhen (2009 £nil) for the Group, the value of
the related hability 1s £828 milion {2009 £nil} In all cases the transferee has the night to sell or repledge the assets concerned

Included i the amounts reported above are reverse repurchase agreements treated as collateratised loans with a carrying value of £12,211 mihon for the Group
{2009 £ni) Collateral 1s held with a faw value of £14,299 million for the Group {2003 £nil}, all of which the Group 1s able to repledge At 31 December 2010,
£3,161 million had been repledged by the Group (2009 £a1)
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17 Derwative financial nstruments

The Group holds denvatives as part of the following strategies

- Customner driven, where dervatives are held as part of the provision of nsk management products to Group customers,

- To manage and hedge the Group's interest rate and foreign exchange nsk arising from normal banking busingss The hedge accounting strategy adopted by the
Group 15 10 utilise a combination of fair value, cash flow and net invesiment hedge approaches as descnbed in note 55,

— Derivatives held in policyholders funds as permitied by the investment strategies of those funds

Denvatives are classified as trading except those designated as effective hedging mstruments which meet the critena under IAS39 Derwvatives are held at fair value on
the Group's balance sheet A description of the methodology used to determine the fair value of denvative financial instruments and the effect of using reasonably
possible glternative assumptions for those derivatives valued using uncbservable inputs 1s set out in note 54

The principal dernivatives used by the Group are as follows

— Interest rate related contracts include interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and options  An interest rate swap 15 an agreement between two parties to
exchange fixed and floating mterest payments, based upon interest rates defined in the contract, without the exchange of the underlying principal amounts Forward
rate agreements are contracts for the payment of the difference between a specified rate of interest and a reference rate, applied to a notional principal amount at
a specific date in the future An Interest rate option gives the buyer, on payment of a premium, the nght, but not the obligation, to fix the rate of interest on a future
loan or deposit, for a specified period and commencing on a specified future date

- Exchange raie related contracts include forward foreign exchange contracts, currency swaps and options A forward foreign exchange contract 1s an agreement to
buy or sell a specified amount of foreign currency on a specified future date at an agreed rate Currency swaps generally involve the exchange of interest payment
obligations denominated in cifferent currencies, the exchange of princpat can be notional or actual A currency option gives the buyer, on payment of a premizm,
the nght, but not the cbligation, to sell specified amounts of currency at agreed rates of exchange con or before a specified future date

— Credit denvatives, principally credit default swaps, are used by the Group as part of its trading actiity and to manage s own exposure to credit nsk A credit default
swap IS a swap in which one counterparty receives a premium at pre-set intervals in consideration for guaranteeing to make a specific payment should a negative
credit event take place The Group also uses credit default swaps te securitise, in combination with external funding, £4,149 milion (2009 £6,455 miilion}
of corporate and commercial banking loans

— Equity derivatives are also used by the Group as part of its equity based retail product activity to elminate the Group's exposure to fluctuations \n vanous
international stock exchange indices Index-linked equity options are purchased which give the Group the nght, but not the obligation, to buy or sell a specified
amount of equities, or basket of equities, in the form of published indices on or before a specified future date

The fair values and notional amounts of derivative instruments are set cut in the following table

2010 2009
Contract{ Contract!
notional Fair value Fawr value notional Fair value Fair value
amount assets habilities amount assets liabihties
The Group £m Em £m £m £m £m
Trading
Exchange rate contracts
Spot, forwards and futures 212,832 2,513 2,242 || 139,295 1,571 1,594
Currency swaps 108,681 5,696 1,958 45 684 2,594 1,485
Cptions purchased 18,096 602 - 11,286 684 -
Cptions wnitten 19,387 - 536 11,133 - 437
358,996 8,811 4,736 207,398 4,849 3516
Interest rate contracts
Interest rate swaps 1,399,197 28,448 29,504 || 507 684 9,727 10,688
Forward rate agreements 718,227 309 297 108 567 70 49
Options purchased 59,578 2,371 - 50,339 1,076 -
Cptions wnitten 60,828 - 2,170 33,991 - 1,089
Futures 23,361 3 1 635 1 1
2,261,191 31,131 31,972 701216 10,874 11,727
Credit dervatives : 7,108 256 207 15,869 1558 433
Equity and other contracts 22,596 1,996 1,332 14,592 521 355
Total dervative assetsfliabilities held for trading 2,649,891 42,194 38,247 939,075 17,802 16,031
Hedging
Denvatives designated as far value hedges
Cross currency swaps 9,418 606 35 - - -
Interest rate swaps (ncluding swap options) 75,831 4,366 1,200 24,219 a0 492
Options written - - - 628 - 144
Denvatives designated as cash flow hedges
Cross currency swags 17,745 232 121 - - -
Interest rate swaps 112,507 2,199 3,042 659 1 47
Futures 1,299 1 - - - -
Denvatives designated as net investment hedges
Cross currency swaps 86 2 - 2,507 44 19
Total denvative assets/labilities held for hedging 216,886 7,406 4,398 28,013 995 702
Total recognised derivative assets/habilities 2,866,777 49,600 42,645 967,088 18,797 16,733
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17 Denvative financial mstruments (continued)

Hedged cash flows
For designated cash flow hedges the following table shows when the Group's hedged cash flows are expected to occur and when they will affect income
10 20 Over 20

Q1 years 1 2 years 2 3 years 3-4 years 4 5years 5 10 years years years Total
2010 £m £m £ £m £m £m £m £m £m
Hedged forecast cash flows expected to occur
Forecast recevable cash flows 76 246 427 478 373 329 131 143 2,203
Forecast payable cash flows {85) (34) {137) (82) (58} {175) (286) (57) (914)
Hedged forecast cash flows affect profit or loss
Forecast recevable cash flows 76 287 387 478 373 345 136 121 2,203
Forecast payable cash flows {85) {(79) (92) (82) (58) (244) (248) (26) (914)

10-20 Qver 20

Q-1 years 1-2 years 2 3 years 3 4 years 4-5years  5-10 years years years Total
2009 £m £m £Em £m £m £m £Em £m £m
Hedged forecast cash flows expected to occur
Forecast recevable cash flows 35 44 - 49 80 468 374 142 1,196
Forecast payable cash flows (200) (569) (247} (184) (82) (257) (606) (84) (2,329)
Hedged forecast cash flows affect profit or loss
Forecast recevable cash flows 39 44 22 37 123 453 340 138 1,196
Forecast payable cash flows (300) (569) (331) {130) (74) (287) (563) (75) (2,329

At 31 December 2010 £42,303 million of total recogmised denvative assets of the Group and £36,059 mullion of totat recogrused dervative habilities of the Group
(2009 £3,776 million of assets and £3,134 mutlion of habihties) had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

2010 2009
Contract/ Contract/
notional Fair value Fair value notional Fair value Fair value
amount assets liabilities amount assets habilities

The Bank £m £m £m £m £m Em
Trading
Exchange rate contracts
Spot, forwards and futures 218,976 2,459 2,286 167,889 1,572 1,640
Currency swaps 60,551 1,903 1,343 47,703 1,804 1,504
Options purchased 18,228 601 - 11,272 685 -
Options written 19,435 - 539 11,152 - 439

317,190 4,963 4,168 238,016 4061 3,583
Interest rate contracts
Interest rate swaps 788,077 12,593 12,887 || 509,259 9,739 10,401
Forward rate agreements 12,872 a3 84 108,567 70 48
Options purchased 45,624 1,933 - 48,083 1,068 -
Options written 40,665 - 1,626 34,368 - 1,101
Futures 1,883 - - 4 - 1

890,121 14,609 14,597 700,281 10,877 11,551
Credit derivatives 5,749 205 228 15,532 1,558 439
Equity and other contracts 9,970 589 589 10,368 489 484
Totai derivative assets/habilities held for trading 1,223,030 20,366 19,582 964,197 16,985 16,057
Hedging
Denvatives designated as fair vatue hedges
Interest rate swaps (including swap options) 30,777 927 589 23,219 951 581
Options written - - - 628 - 144
Denvatives dessgnated as cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps 1,597 29 89 659 1 47
Total derivative assets/liabilities held for hedging 32,374 956 678 24,506 | 952 772
Total recognised denvative assets/llabilities 1,255,404 21,322 20,260 988,703 17,937 16,829
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17 Denvative financial instruments (continued)

Hedged cash flows
For designated cash flow hedges the following table shows when the Bank's hedged cash flows are expected to occur and when they will affect income

i0 20 Qver 20

0 1 ysars 1 2 years 2 3 years 3 4 years 4 5 years 5 10 years years years Total
2010 £m £m £m £m £m £Em Em £m £m
Hedged forecast cash flows expected to occur
Forecast payable cash flows (5) (6) (11) (16) (22) (139) - - {199)
Hedged forecast cash flows affect profit or loss
Forecast payable cash flows (5) (6) {11) (16) (22) (139) - - {199)

Over 20

0 1 years 1 2 years 2 3 years 3 4 years 4 5 years 5 10years 10-20 years vears Total
2009 £m £m £m £m Em £m Em £m £m
Hedged forecast cash flows expected to occur
Forecast payable cash flows (2} (9) (13) (13) {7) {7) - - (51)
Hedged forecast cash flows affect profit or loss
Forecast payable cash flows (2} (9) (13) (13) (7) (7) - - (51)

At 31 December 2010 £17,047 mullon of total recogrised dernvative assets of the Bank and £8,123 million of total recogmised denvative liatuhities of the Bank
(2009 £2,478 million of assets and £4,225 mullion of liabiities) had a contractual residual maturity of greater than one year

The principal amount of the contract dees not represent the Group's real exposure to credit sk which 1s imited to the current cost of replacing contracts with &
positive value to the Group and Bank should the counterparty default To reduce credit risk the Group uses a vanety of credit enhancement techrigues such as netting
and collateralisaticn, where secunity 1s provided against the exposure Further details are provided in note 55

18 Loans and advances to banks

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Lending to banks 1,042 153,826 146,585 169,882
Money market placements wih banks 29,250 21,877 6,031 6823
Total loans and advances to banks before allowance for impairment losses 30,292 175,703 152,616 176,705
Allowance for impairment losses {note 23) (20) (149} (20) (149)
Total loans and advances to banks 30,272 175,554 152,556 176,556

At 31 December 2010 £2,44% mullion (2009 £3,174 million} of loans and advances to banks of the Group and £22,258 million (2009 £3,789 million} of
the Bank had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

inchided in the amounts reported above are reverse repurchase agreements treated as collateralised loans with a carrying value of £4,185 muillion for the Group and
£61,099 millron for the Bank (2009 £4,188 millton for the Group and Bank) Collateral is held with a fair value of £3,909 million for the Group and £61,926
mullion for the Bank (2009 £4,171 mullien for the Group and Bank), atl of which the Group and Bank are able to repledge

Included in the amounts reported above are collaterat balances in the form of cash provided in respect of reverse repurchase agreements amounting 1o £4 million for
the Group and £nil for the Bank (2009 £nil for the Group and Bank)
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19 Loans and advances to customers

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Agnculture, forestry and fishing 5,558 4,457 2,513 2,188
Energy and water supply 3,576 2,085 2418 2,056
Manufactuning 11,495 8,807 7,217 7,880
Construction 7,904 2,842 3,017 2,427
Transpert, distribution and hotels 34,176 12,280 10,982 10,357
Postal and telecommunications 1,908 833 893 790
Property companies 78,263 23,110 22,987 21,439
Financial, business and other services 59,363 32,889 24,036 27 200
Personal
Martgages 356,261 115,349 98,938 101,922
Other 36,967 23,658 16,304 18,734

Lease financing 8,291 4,317 457 483
Hire purchase 7,208 5,224 523 528
Due from feltow Group undertakings 18,492 14,188 64,039 60,692
Total loans and advances to customers before allowance for impairment losses 629,462 250035 254,324 256,706
Allowance for impairment losses (note 23) {18,373) (4,813) {3,151) (3,595)
Total loans and advances to customers 611,089 245,226 251,173 253,111

At31 Decemnber 2010 £51 1,650 milhion (2009 £190,831 mitlion) of lpans and advances to customers of the Group and £170, 780 mulion (2009 £163,944 million)
of the Bank had a contractual residual maturity of greater than one year

Included n the amounts reported above are reverse repurchase agreements treated as collateralised loans with a carrying value of £3,096 milkion for the Group and
£517 millien for the Bank (2009 £1,108 mllion for the Group and Bank) Collateral rs held with a fair value of £2,987 million for the Group and £510 milbon for
the Bank (2009 £1,110 muhon for the Group and Bank), all of which the Group and Bank are able to repledge

Included in the amounts reported above are collateral balances i the form of cash provided In respect of reverse repurchase agreements amounting to £42 million
for the Group and £nil for the Bank (2009 £nil for the Group and Bank)

Loans and advances to customers inctude finance lease recevables, which may be analysed as follows

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m

Gross investment In finance leases, recewvable

Mot later than 1 year 1,358 648 49 48
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 2,522 1,473 124 148
Later than 5 years 7,218 4,922 616 638
11,098 7,043 789 834
Unearned future finance income on finance leases {2,603) (2,599) {334} {353}
Rentals receved in advance {183) (119) 2 2
Commitments for expenditure 1n respect of equipment to be leased (21) (8) - -
Net investment in finance leases 8,291 4,317 457 483

The net investment In finance leases represents amounts recoverable as follows The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Not later than 1 year 986 364 24 21
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,965 892 60 g4
Later than 5 years 5,340 3,061 373 378
Net investment in finance leases 8,291 4,317 457 483

Equipment leased to customers under finance ‘eases pnmanly relates te structured finanging transactions te fund the purchase of aircraft, ships and other large
individual value items Dunng 2010 and 2009 no contingent rentals in respect of finance leases were recognised in the income statement The allowance for
uncollectable finance lease receivables included in the allowance for impairment losses ts £287 million for the Group (2009 £19 million)
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19 Loans and advances to customers (continued)

The unguaranteed residual values included in finance lease receivables were as follows

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m Em £m £m
Net later than 1 year 11 4 1 -
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 44 46 17 17
Later than 5 years 6 5 - -
Total unguaranteed residual values 61 55 18 17

20 Secuntisations and covered bonds

Secuntisation programmes

Loans and advances to customers and debt secunties ¢tassified as loans and recevables include leans secuntised under the Group's securntisation programmes, the
majority of which have been sold by Group companies to bankrupicy remote speciat purpose entities (SPEs) As the SPEs are funded by the 1ssue of debt on terms
whereby the majority of nsks and rewards of the portfolio are retained by the Group company, the SPEs are consolidated fully and all of these loans are retained on
the Group's balance sheet, with the related notes 1n i1ssue included within debt secunties 1n 1ssue In addition to the SPEs described below, the Group sponsors four
conduit programmes, Argento, Cancara, Grampan and Landale

Covered bond programmes

Certain loans and advances 10 customers have been assigned to bankruptcy remote imited hiability partnerships to provide security for 1ssues of covered bonds by
the Group The Group retains all of the nsks and rewards associated with these loans and the partnerships are consolidated fully with the loans retained on the
Group's balance sheet, and the related covered bonds in 1ssue included within debt securties in 1ssue

The Group's principal secuntisation and covered bonds programmes, together with the balances of the loans subyect to secuntisation and the carrying value of the
notes in 1ssue at 31 December, are listed below The notes in 1sSue are reported in note 36

2010 2009
Gross
assets Notes i Gross assets Notes in
securthised 1S5Ue secuntised Issue
£m £m £m £m
Secuntisation programmes!
UK residential mortgages 146,200 114,428 49,390 36,470
Commercial loans 11,860 8,936 12,173 7,479
Insh residential mortgages 6,007 6,191 - -
Credit card receivables 7.327 3,856 - -
Dutch residential mortgages 4,526 4,316 - -
Personal loans 3,012 2,011 - -
PPP/PF1 and project finance loans 776 110 877 45
Corporate loans and revolving credit facilities - - 585 7
Motor vehicle loans 926 975 - -
180,634 140,823 63,035 44 001

Less held by the Group (100,081} {37,438)
Total secuntisation programmes (note 36) 40,742 6,563
Covered bond programmes
Residential martgage-backed 93,651 73,458 38,753 29,000
Social housing loan-backed 3,317 2,181 - -

96,968 75,639 38,753 29,000
Less held by the Group (43,489) (29,0000
Total covered bond programmes (note 36) 32,150 -
Total securitisation and covered bond programmes 72,892 6,563

tnciudes secuntisations utlising a combination of external funding and credit default swaps

Cash deposits of £36,579 million (2009 £7,209 million) held by the Group are restricted in use to repayment of the debt secunties 1ssued by the special purpose
entiies and other legal obligations
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21 Speaal purpose entities

In addition to the special purpose entiies discussed in note 20, which are used for secuntisation and covered bond programmes, the Group sponsors four
asset-backed conduits, Argento, Cancara, Grampian and Landale, which invest in debt secunities and client receivables All of the external assets in these conduits
are consohdated 1n the Group's financial statements The total consolidated exposures in these conduits are set out In the table below

Argenta Cancara Grampian Landale Total
£m £m £m £m £m

At 31 December 2010
Loans and advances - 3,957 - - 3,957
Debt secunities

Classified as loans and receivables

Asset-backed securities 1,448 - 6,957 - 8,405
Corporate and other debt securities 202 - - - 202
1,650 - 6,957 - 8,607

Classified as available-for-sale financial assets (note 24)
Asset-backed securities 1,436 2,587 - - 4,023
Coarporate and other debt secunties 463 - - - 463
1,899 2,587 - - 4,486
Total debt secunties 3,549 2,587 6,957 - 13,093
Total assets 3,549 6,544 6,957 - 17,650

At 31 December 2009

Loans and advances - 3,681 - - 3,681
Debt securnities
Classified as loans and receivables - 15 - - 15
Classified as available-for-sale financial assets — asset-backed securities (note 24) - 5,382 - - 5,382
Total debt securities - 5,397 - - 5,397
Total assets - 9,078 - - 9,078

Other special purpose entittes
Dunng 2008, the Group established Lloyds TSB Pension ABCS (No 1) LLP and Lloyds TSB Pension ABCS (No 2} LLP and transferred appraximately £5 billion of
assets, pnmanly comprising notes n certain of the Group's securitisation programmes, In aggregate to these entities  Further details are provided 1n note 42

22 Debt securities classified as loans and recewvables

Debt secunties accounted for as loans and recevables comprise

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m

Asset-backed secunties

Mortgage-backed secunties 11,650 600 653 590
Other asset-backed secunties 12,827 313 99 518
Corporate and other debt secunities 1,816 1,968 917 1,967
Total debt secunties classified as loans and recewvables before allowance for impairment losses 26,293 2,881 1,669 3075
Allowance for impairment losses (see note 23) (558) (245) (190) (245)
Total debt secunties classified as loans and receivables 25,735 2,636 1,479 2,830

Included in the amounts reported above are assets subject to repurchase agreements with a camying value of £1,386 mllion for the Group (2009 £rul), the value
of the related hability 15 £1,043 million for the Group (2009 £mil) In all cases the transferee has the right to sell or reptedge the assets concerned
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23 Allowance for impairment losses on lcans and receivables

The Group

Balance at 1 January 2009

Exchange and other adjustments

Advances wnitten off

Recovenes of advances written off in previous years
Unwinding of discount

Charge (credit) to the income statement

At 31 December 2009

Adjustment on transfer of HBOS

Exchange and other adjustments

Reclassifications

Advances wniten off

Recoveries of advances written off 1n previous years
Unwinding of discount

Charge {(credit) to the income statement

At 31 December 2010

Loans and Loans and
advancesto  advances to Debt
customers banks secunities Total
£m £m £m £m
3,459 135 133 3,727
{in 17 4 4
(2,896) - - (2,896}
110 - - 110
{91) - - (91}
4,248 {3) 108 4,353
4,813 149 245 5,207
9,988 - 185 10,173
118 (S) (1) 112
(120) - 120 -
(6,966) (111) (48) (7,125)
216 - - 216
(403) - - {403)
10,727 13) 57 10,771
18,373 20 558 18,951

Of the Graup's total allowance in respect of loans and advances to customers, £15,585 million (2009 £4,259 million} related to lending that had been determined

10 be imparred (either indwidually or on a collective basis) at the reporting date

Of the Group's total allowance in respect of loans and advances to customers, £6,076 million (2009 £3,254 million} was assessed on a collective basis

The Bank

Batance at 1 January 2009

Exchange and other adjustments

Advances wntten off

Recoveries of advances written off in previous years
Unwinding of discount

Charge (credit} to the income statement

At 31 December 2009

Exchange and other adjustments

Reclassificabions

Advances wntten off

Recovenes of advances wrtten off in previous years
Unwinding of discount

Charge {(crecht) to the income staterment

At 31 December 2010

Loans and Loans and
advancesto  advances to Debt

customers banks securities Total
£m £m £m £m
2,700 135 133 2,968
(20) 17 (1 {4)
(2,619 - - (2,619
107 - - 107
(98) - - 98)
3,525 (3) 113 3,635
3,595 149 245 3,989
15 (5) (5} 5

(120) - 120 -
(2,772) {111) (187) {3,070)
159 - - 159
(93) - - (93)
2,367 (13) 17 2,371
3,151 20 190 3,361

Of the Bank’s total allowance in respect of loans and advances to customers, £2,755 million (2009 £3,081 million) related to lending that had been determmed

10 be impaired {either indmiduaily or an a collective basis) at the reporting date

Of the Bank's total allowance in respect of loans and advances 1o customers, £1,450 million {2009 £2,238 m)llion) was assessed on a collective basis
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24 Availlable-for-sale financial assets

2010 2009
Conduits Other Total Conduits Other Total
The Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Debt securities
Government securities - 12,552 12,552 - 8,342 8,342
Other public sector secuntigs - 29 29 - 31 31
Bank and building society certificates of deposit - 407 407 - 725 729
Asset-backed securties
Mortgage-backed secunties 3,203 1,090 4,293 3,481 1,283 4,764
Other asset-backed securities 820 4,399 5,219 1,601 5,660 7,561
Corperate and other debt secunties 463 11,669 12,132 - 2,049 2,049
4,486 30,146 34,632 5,382 18,094 23,476
Equity shares
Listed - 72 72 - 4 4
Unlisted - 2,183 2,183 - 77 77
- 2,255 2,255 - 81 81
Treasury bills and similar secunties - 6,068 6,068 - 2,532 2,532
Total available-for-sale financial assets 4,486 38,469 42,955 5,382 20,707 26,089
2010 2009
The Bank £m £m
Debt securities
Gavernment secunties 12,405 8,200
Other public secter securities 29 31
Bank and building society certificates of deposit 272 463
Asset-backed securities
Mortgage-backed securities 971 1,080
Other asset-backed secunties 1,254 2,122
Corporate and other debt securities 6,023 1,471
20,954 13,367
Equity shares
Listed 4 1
Unhsted 69 75
73 76
Treasury bills and similar securities 3,924 71
Total avalable-for-sale financial assets 24,951 13,514

Details of the Group's asset-backed conduits shown in the table above are included 1n note 21
Further information on asset-backed secunty exposures is provided in note 54

At 31 December 2010 £38,567 mithon (2009 £21,352 millien) of available-for-sale financial assets of the Group and £26,518 million (2009 £12,546 million)
of the Bank had a contractual residual maturity of greater than one year

Included in the amounts reported above are assets subject to repurchase agreements with a carrying vatue of £1,467 millien for the Group (2009 £nil), the value
of the related liabiity 15 £1,378 million for the Group (2009 £nil) In all cases the transferee has the right to sell or repledge the assets concerned

All assets have been individually assessed for impairment The critena used to determine whether an impairment loss has been ncurred are disclosed 1 note 2h{2)
Included in available-for-sale financial assets at 31 Decemnber 2010 are debt securities individually determined to be impaired whose gross amount before impairment
aliowances was £2 milion (2009 £32 million} and 1n respect of which no collateral was held

At 31 December 2010, the Bank had sold £254 million (2009 £1,277 millicn) of debt secunties to two of its subsidiary undertakings, however the refated
agreements are such that the Bank has retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and, as a consequence, the debt securties continue to be
recognised on the Bank’s balance sheet

With effect from 1 Novermber 2010, the Bank transferred £3,601 million of government secunibes from available-for-sale financiat assets to held-to-maturity
investments {see note 25) Furtner information on the reclassification of financial assets 1s provided In note 54
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25 Held to-matunty investments

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Debt secuniies government securities 7,905 - 7,905 -

Dunng 2010, the Bank and the Group reclass:fied £3,601 mullion of government secunties from available-for-sale financial assets to held-to-matunty investments
(nate 24)

26 Investment properties of the Group

2010 2009
£m £m

At 1 January 2,340 2,631

Adjustment en transfer of HBOS (note 31) 2,417 -

Exchange and other adjustments {6) (15)
Additions

Acquisitions of new properties 398 82

Consolidation of new subsidiary undertakings 921 -
Additional expenditure on existing properties 52 67

Total additions 1,371 149

Disposals (559} (280)
Changes in farr value (note 7) 434 (145)
At 31 December 5,997 2,340

The investment properties are valued at least annually at open-market value, by independent, professionally qualified valuers, who have recent experience in the
{ocation and categories of the investment properties being valued

In addition the following amounts have been recognised in the ncome statemeant

2010 2009

£m £m

Rental income 337 180

Direct operating expenses ansing from investment properties that generate rental income 77 37

Capital expenditure in respect of investment properties 2010 2009

. £m £m

Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not recognised in the financial statements 86 9
27 Goodwtll of the Group

2010 2009

£m £m

At 1 January 2,016 2,256

Impairment charged to the income statement - (240)

At 31 December 2,016 2,016

Cost? 2,362 2,362

Accumulated imparrment |osses (346} (346)

At 31 December 2,016 2,016

'For acquisitions made prigr to 1 January 2004, the date of transition 10 {FRS, cost 15 included net of amounts amortised up to 31 December 2003

The goodwill held in the Greup’s balance sheet 1s tested at least annually for impairment For the purposes of impairment testing the goodwill 1s allocated to the
appropnate cash generating unit, of the tetal balance of £2,016 millon (31 December 2009 £2,016 milicn), £1,836 million (or 91 per cent of the total) has been
altocated 1o Scottish Widows and £170 mullion (or 8 per cent of the total) to Asset Finance

The recaverable amount of Scottish Widows has been based on a value-in-use calculation The calculation uses projections of future cash flows based upon budgets
and plans approved by management covening a five-year period, and a discount rate of 12 per cent (gross of tax) The budgets and plans are based upon past
expenence adjusted to take into account anticipated changes in sales volumes, product mix and margins having regard to expected market conditions and competitor
actvity The discount rate 15 determined with reference to internal measures and avallable industry information Cash flows beyond the five-year penod have been
extrapolated using a steady 3 per cent growth rate which does nat exceed the long-term average growth rate for the hfe assurance market Management believes that
any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would not ¢ause the recoverable amount of Scottish Widows to fall below its balance sheet carrying value
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27  Goodwill of the Group (continued)

In 2009, the markets (in which the Consumer Finance unit of Asset Finance operate had deteriorated further with both macroeconomic and market conditions
worsening, leading to a fall off in demand and increasing arrears  This, together with continuing uncertainties over the likely short-term macroeconomic environment,
had resulted 1n a reassessment of the carrying value of the consumer finance cash generating unit and the recognition of 2 goodwill iImpairment charge of
£240 million dunng 2009, reflecting the write down of the entire balance of goodwill allocated to the Consumer Finance unit of Asset Finance and leaving goodwill
of £170 miltion In the Autolease unit of Asset Finance

The recoverable amount of Asset Finance has also been based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets and plans
approved by management covering a five-year penod and a discount rate of 15 per cent (gross of tax) The cash flows beyond the five-year pencd are extrapolated
using a growth rate of 0 5 per cent which does not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the markets in which Asset Finance participates

28 Value of in-force business of the Group

The gross value of In-force business asset in the consolidated balance sheet is as follows

2010 2009
£m £m
Acquired value of in-force nen-participating investment contracts 1,469 -
Value of in-force insurance and participating investment contracts 5,898 2,403
Total value of in-force business 7,367 2,403
The movement in the acquired value of in-force non-particpaiing investment contracts over the year is as follows
2010 2009
£m £m
At 1 January - -
Adjustment on transfer of HBOS (note 31) 1,545 -
Amortisation taken to income statement (note 11) (76} -
At 31 December 1,469 -
The acquired value of in-force nen-particpating investment contracts ncludes £356 mllion (2009 £nul) 1 relation to OEIC business
The movement in the value cf in-force insurance and participating investment contracts over the year 1s as follows 2010 2009
£m £m
At 1 January 2,403 1,893
Adjustment on transfer of HBOS {note 31) 2,737 -
Exchange and other adjustments {31) -
Movements in the year
New business 497 201
Existing business
Expected return {400) (111)
Experience variances 85 (28)
Non-ecenomic assumption changes 306 16
Economic vanance 301 432
Movement in the value of in-force business taken to income statement {note 9) 789 510
At 31 December 5,898 2,403

This breakdown shows the movement in the value of in-force business only, and does not represent the full contribution that each item in the breakdown contributes
to profit before tax, which would also contain changes (n the other assets and habiities of the relevant businesses Econonic vanance 15 the element of earnings
which 1s generated from changes to economic experience 1n the period and to economic assumptions over time  The presentation of economic variance includes the
impact of financial market coenditions being different at the end of the reporting peniod from those included in assumptions used to calculate new and existing
business returns

The principal features of the methodology and process used for determining key assumptions used n the calculation of the value of in-force business are set out
helow

Economic assumptions

Each cash flow 1s valued using the discount rate consistent with that applied to such a cash flow in the capital markets In practice, to achieve the same result, where
the cash flows are either independent of or move linearly with market movements, a method has been applied known as the ‘certainty equivalent’ appreach wheraby
it 15 assumed that all assets earn a nisk-free rate and ail cash fiows are discounted at a risk-free rate

A market consistent approach has been adopted for the valuation of financial cptions and guarantees, using a stochastic option pricing technique calibrated to be
consistent with the market pnice of relevant options at each valuation date The risk-free rate used for the value of financial options and guarantees is defined as the
spot yielg derived from the relevant government bond yeld curve in ine with FSA realistic balance sheet assumptions
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28 Value of in-force business of the Group (continued}

The habilities in respect of the Group's UK annuity business are matched by a portfolio of fixed interest secunities, including a large proportion of corporate bonds
The value of the in-force business asset for UK annuity business has been calculated after taking into account an estimate of the market premium for illiquidity 1n
respect of these corporate bond holdings The iliquichity premium 15 estimated to be 75 basis points as at 31 December 2010 (31 December 2009 75 basis points}

The nisk-free rate assumed in valuing the non-annuity in-force business 1s the 15 year government bond yietd for the appropriate territory The nsk-free rate assumed
in valuing the in-force asset for the UK annuily business s presented as a single rnisk free rate to allow a better comparison 1o the rate used for other business That
single risk-free rate has been denved to give the equivalent vatue to the UK annuity book, had that book been valued using the UK gilt yield curve increased to reflect
the iguidity premium described above

The table below shows the resulting range of yields and other key assumptions at 31 December for UK business

2010 2009

% %

Risk-free rate {value of in-force non-annuity business} 399 4 45
Risk-free rate {value of in-force annuity business) 4 66 505
Risk-free rate {financial options and guarantees) 063t6450 08710476
Retail price inflation 356 364
Expense inflation 420 442

Non-market nisk

An allowance for non-market nsk 15 made through the choice of best estmate assumptions based upon expenence, which generally will give the mean expected
financial outcome for shareholders and hence no further allowance for non-market nsk 15 required However, in the case of operational risk, reinsurer default and the
with-profit fund these can be asymmetric in the range of potential utcemes for which an explicit allowance 1s made

Non-econormic assumptions
Future martality, morbidity, lapse and paid-up rate assumptions are reviewed each year and are based on an analysis of past expenence and on management's view
of future experience These assumptions are intended to represent a best estimate of future experience

Further information about the effect of changes in key assumptions 1s given It note 38

29 Qther intangible assets

The Group The Bank
Purchased Capitalised Capitatised
Core  credn card Customer sottware software
deposit relation- related enhance- enhance
Brands intangibles ships intangibles ments Total ments
£m £m £m £m Em £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2009 - - - 63 320 383 221
Additions - - - - 60 60 38
Disposals - - - - (69) (69) (69)
At 31 December 2009 - - - 63 311 374 190
Adjustment on transfer of HBOS {note 31) 596 2,770 300 814 175 4,655 -
Additions - - - - 154 154 42
Disposals - - - - {30 (30} -
At 31 December 2010 596 2,770 300 877 610 5,153 232
Accumulated amortisation
At1 January 2009 - - - 12 174 186 121
Charge for the year - - - 6 46 52 27
Disposals - - - - (69) (69) (69)
At 31 December 2009 - - - 18 151 169 79
Adjustment on transfer of HBOS (note 31) 21 393 58 219 84 775 -
Charge for the year 25 400 60 161 75 721 35
Disposals - - - - (8) (8} -
At 31 December 2010 46 793 118 398 302 1,657 114
Balance sheet amount at 31 December 2010 550 1,977 182 479 308 3,496 118
Balance sheet amount at 31 December 2009 - - - 45 160 205 111

Inciuded withint brands above are assets of £380 mithon (31 December 2009 £nil) that have been determined to have indefinite useful ives and are not amortised
These brands use the Bank of Scotland name which has been in existence for over 300 years These brands are well established financial services brands and there
are no indications that they should not continue indefinitely

The customer-retated intangibles include customer hsts and the benefits of customer relationships that generate recurring income  The purchased credit card
relatienships represent the benefit of recurring income generated from the portfolio of credit cards purchased and the core deposit intangible 1s the benefit derived
from a large stable deposit base that has low interest rates

Capitalised software enhancements of the Bank and the Group principally compnse identifiable and directly associated internal staff and other costs
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30 Tangible fixed assets

Cost

At 1 January 2009

Exchange and other adjustments
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2009

Adjustment on transfer of HBOS (note 31)
Exchange and other adjustments
Additions

Disposals

Disposal of businesses

At 31 December 2010

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 lanuary 2009

Exchange and other adjustments
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2009

Adjustment on transfer of HBOS (note 31}
Exchange and other adjustments

Impawment charged to the iIncome statement {note 11)

Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

Disposal of businesses

At 31 December 2010

Balance sheet amount at 31 December 2010
Balance sheet amount at 31 December 2009

At 31 December the future minimum rentals receivable by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases were as follows

Recewvable within 1 year

1 to 5 years

Over 5 years

Total future mimmum rentals recervable

The Group The Bank

Operating Totat Total

lease tangible tangible

Premuses Equipment assets  fixed assets Premises Equipment fixed assets
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
1,516 3,148 1,564 6,228 1,160 2,720 3,880
- (28) 358 330 (2) (8} (10)

53 1,200 584 1,837 49 354 403
{25) (93) (422) (540) (23) (83) (106}
1,544 4,227 2,084 7,855 1,184 2,983 4,167
917 1,108 4,299 6,324 - - -
26 34 {76) (16) - (5) 5)
175 754 1,672 2,601 102 431 533
{222) (338) (1,693) {2,253) (13) (58) (71)
- {1,005) - {1,005) - - -
2,440 4,780 6,286 13,506 1,273 3,351 4,624
789 2,208 266 3,263 700 1,847 2,547
- (4) 108 104 (3 (4) {Nn

83 265 333 681 72 240 312
(18) {49) (251) (318) (18) {41) (59)
854 2,420 456 3,730 751 2,042 2,793
30 378 805 1,213 - - -
2 {3 30 29 (2) (3} (5}

- 202 - 202 - - -

146 535 954 1,635 78 260 338
31) (341) (976) (1,348} (8) (29) {33)

- {145) - (145) - - -
1,001 3,046 1,269 5,316 819 2,274 3,093
1,439 1,734 5,017 8,150 454 1,077 1,531
690 1,807 1,628 4,125 433 941 1,374
2010 2009

£m £m

1,168 418

1,791 562

638 37

3,597 1,017

Equipment leased to customers under operating leases pnmarnly relates to vehicle contract hire arrangements During 2005 and 2010 no contingent rentals in
respect of operating leases were recogrised in the income statlement

In addition, total future munimum sub-lease come of £55 mill:on for the Group and £44 millon for the Bank at 31 December 2010 {(£72 mullion for the Group and
£64 midlion for the Bank at 31 December 2009) 1s expected to be recesved under non-cancellable sub-leases of premises

The impairment charge of £202 mdlion compnses £150 mition relating to ol dnlling ngs under construction acquired from a previous lending refationship n
Whaolesale (see note 14) and £52 million relating to integration activities
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31 Investment in subsidary undertakings of the Bank

2010 2009

£m £m

At 1 January 15,960 15,992
Transfer of HBOS (see below) 21,394 -
Addittonal capital injections and transfers 2,819 1
Disposals (18} (33)
At 31 December 40,155 15,960

The principal group undertakings, all of which have prepared accounts to 31 December and whose results are included In the consclidated accounts of
tloyds TSB Bank plc, are

Country of registration/  Percentage of equity share

incorporation capital and vohng nghts held  Nature of business

Ligyds TSB Scotland ple Scotland 100% Banking and financial services
Scottish Widows plc Scotland 100%! Life assurance

HBOS ple Scotland 100% Holding company

Bank of Scatland plc Scotland 100%! Banking and financia! services
HB0S Insurance & {nvestment Group Limited England 100%! Holding company

St Andrew's Insurance plc England 100%! General insurance

Clencal Medical Investment Group Limited England 100%! Life assurance

Clerical Med:cal Managed Funds Limited Engtand 100%! Life assurance

'Indirect interest
The pancipal area of operation for each of the above group undertakings 1s the United Kingdem

In November 2009, as part of the restructuring plan that was a requirement for European Union approval of state aid received, Lloyds Banking Group agreed to
suspend the payment of coupons and dividends on certain preference shares and preferred securities for the two year penod from 31 January 2010 to 31 January
2012 The Group has agreed to temporanly suspend and/or waive dividend payments on certain preference shares which have been 1ssued intra-group Consequently,
In accordance with the terms of some of these instruments, subsidianies may be prevented from making dividend payments on ordinary shares during this penod In
addrtion, certain subsidiary comparies currently have insufficient distributable reserves to make dividend payments

Subject to the foregoing, there were no further significant restrictions on any of the Bank's subsidianies in paying dividends or repaying loans and advances All
regulated banking and insurance subsidianies are required to mantain capital at levels agreed with the regulators, this may impact those subsidiaries’ ability to make
disinbutions

Transfer of HBOS

Cn 1 January 2010, as part of a restructuning of the Lloyds Banking Group, Lloyds Banking Group pic’s investment in 100 per cent of the ordinary share capital of
HBOS plc was transferred to Lloyds TSB Bank pl¢ for a consideration of £21,394 milhon  The consideration was satisfied by the 1ssue of 21 4 mullion ordinary
shares in Lioyds TSB Bank pic to Lloyds Banking Group plc

In accordance with the accounting treatment available under IFRS 3 (Rewvised) for business combinations involving entities under comman centrol, Lioyds TSB Bank
plc was not required to fatr value the acquired business at the date of transfer Instead, the assets and liabilities were incorperated at the amounts at which they were
recorded within Lloyds Banking Group at that date The difference between the consolidated net asset value of HBOS plc at the date of transfer and the consideration
paid, which was equal to Llcyds Banking Group pic's aniginal cost of investment, has been credited to a merger reserve

The post-transfer impact of HBOS plc on the Group’s consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2010 was as follows

£m
Net interest income 7,757
Other income 16,431
Total income 24,188
Insurance claims (9,125)
Total income, net of insurance claims 15,063
Operating expenses (6,260)
Trading surplus 8,803
Impairment (8,108)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates {94
Profit before tax 601
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31 Investment in subsidiary undertakings of the Bank {continued)

The consolidated balance sheet of HBOS plc at the date of transfer, with assets and habilsties incorporated at the amounts at which they were recorded within
Lioyds Banking Group, was as follows

£m
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 2,905
Items i course of collection fram banks 534
Trading and other financiat assets at fair value through profit or loss 101,119
Dervative financial instruments 30,219
Loans and receivables
Loans and advances to banks 9,928
Loans and advances to customers 395,931
Debt secunties 30,016
435,875
Available-for-sale financial assets 21,459
Investment properties 2,417
Investments in jomt ventures and assoclates 423
Value of in-force business 4,282
Other intangible assets 3,880
Tangible fixed assets 5,111
Current tax recoverable 495
Deferred tax assets 2,811
Retirement benefit assets 67
Amounis due from feliow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings 92,679
Other assets 7,235
Total assets 712,211
Equity and habilities
Deposits from other banks 29,600
Customer deposits 232,091
Iterns in course of fransmission o banks 495
Trading and other financial hiabilites at fair value through profit or loss 21,909
Denvative financial instruments 25,801
Notes in circulation 981
Debt secunties in 1ssue 112,815
Liabilities ansing from insurance contracts and participating investment contracts 39,231
Liabihties arnsing from non-participating investment contracts 30,614
Unallocated surplus within insurance businesses 772
Amounts due to fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings 156,098
Other Latulities 17,092
Retirement benefit obligations 373
Cusrent tax habihties 29
Deferred tax habilities 208
Other provisions 436
Subordinated liabilties 14,653
Totai habilities 683,198
Equity
Shareholders’ equity 27,742
Non-controling interests 1,271
Total equity 29,013
Total equity and liabihties 712,211
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32 Other assets

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m Em
Assets anising from reinsurance contracts held (notes 37 and 39) 2,146 419 - -
Deferred acquisition and orgination costs {see below} 602 188 - -
Settlement balances 985 152 236 13
Other assets and prepayments 8,699 4,223 1,007 803
Total other assets 12,432 4,982 1,243 816
2010 2009
£m £m

Deferred acquisition and origination costs of the Group

At 1 fanuary 188 196
Adpustment on transfer of HBOS (note 31) 345 -
Acauwisiion and onigination costs deferred, net of amounts amortised to the income slatement 69 (8)
At 31 December 602 188

33 Deposits from banks The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Liabidities tn respect of securties seld under repurchase agreements 24,017 48,803 19,064 48,803
Other deposits from banks 26,346 90,754 99,273 111,625
Total deposits from banks 50,363 139,557 118,337 160,428

At 31 December 2010 £11,453 million {2009 £911 million) of deposits from banks of the Group and £10,562 mullion (2009 £2,769 million} of the Bank had
a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

Included in the amounts reported above are deposits held as collateral for facilities granted, with a carrying value of £22,420 miliion (2009 £nil) for the Group and
£36,886 million for the Bank (2009 £mil) and a fair value of £25,626 million (2009 £n for the Group and Bank)

34 Customer deposits

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Non-interest bearing current accounts 22,897 6,793 16,438 6,272
Interest heanng current accounts 77,785 47,738 39,291 45,109
Savings and invesiment accounts 222,226 75,682 72,376 67,168
Liamhties in respect of securities sold under repurchase agreements 11,145 224 3,033 226
QOther customer deposits 82,223 62,608 92,674 82,278
Total customer depasits 416,276 193,045 223,812 201,053

At 31 December 2010 £567,124 milhion (2009 £19,005 million) of customer deposits of the Group and £36,636 milhon (2009 £22,928 million) of the Bank
had a contractual residual maturity of greater than one year

Included in the amounts reported above are deposits held as collateral for facilities granied, with a carrying value of £11,112 mullion (2009 £nil) for the Group and
£3,033 million for the Bank (2009 £mi} and a fair value of £11,278 million (2039 £nil) for the Group and £3,023 mithon {2009 £ni) for the Bank

Included tn the amounts reported above are collateral batances in the form of cash provided 1n respect of repurchase agreements amounting to £122 million
(2009 £ml) for the Group and £nil for the Bank {2009 £nil)
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35 Trading and other financial habilittes at fair value through profit or loss

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m Em £m £m
Liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss (debt securities) 6,665 6,160 6,665 6,160

Trading liabilties

Liabilites In respect of secunties sold under repurchase agreements 14,612 - - -
Short positions in securities 1,755 202 894 202
Other 3,730 - 3,709 -
20,097 202 4,603 202
Trading and other financial lsabilities at fair value through profit or loss 26,762 6,362 11,268 6,362

At 31 December 2010, for both the Group and the Bank, £8,627 million (2009 £4,057 mullion) of trading and other liabilities at fair value through profit or loss had
a contractual residual maturity of greater than one year

The amount contractually payable on matunty of the debt secunties held at farr value through profit or loss at 31 December 2010 was £6,607 million
(2009 £5,866 milhon), which was £58 million lower than the bafance sheet carrying value (2009 £294 miilion lower) At 31 December 2010 there was a
cumulative £11 milhon increase 1n the fair value of these listilities attributable to changes in credit spread risk, thrs s determined by reference to the qucted credit
spreads of the Bank Of the £11 million increase, none arose in 2010 and £11 million arose in 2009

Liabiities designated at fair value through profit or loss represent debt secunities i 1ssue which either contain substantive embedded derwvatives which would
otherwise need to be recognised and measured at fair vaiue separately from the related debt secunties, or which are accounted for at fair vaiue to significantly reduce
an accounting mismatch

36 Debt secunhes in 1ssue

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Medium-term notes Issued 80,426 47,786 56,747 47,751
Covered bonds (note 20) 32,150 - 4,642 -
Certificates of deposit 1ssued 42,276 44,508 39,246 44,494
Securitisation notes {note 20} 40,742 6,563 5,658 3,404
Commerciat paper 32,723 21,882 8,829 14,181
Total debt securities in 1ssue 228,317 120,719 115,122 109,870

At 31 December 2010 £118,296 million (2009 £52,690 million) of debt secunties in 1ssue of the Group and £48,781 million {2009 £49,554 million) of the
Bank had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year
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37 Liabiiities of the Group ansing fram insurance contracts and participating investment contracts

Insurance contract and participating investment contract lrabiliiies are compnsed as follows

2010 2009
Gross  Reinsurance! Net Gross  Reinsurance! Net
Em £m £m £m £m £m
Life insurance (see (1) below)

Insurance contracts 61,891 {2,044) 59,847 24,077 (405) 23672
Participating mvestment contracts 17,642 - 17,642 12,273 - 12,273
79,533 (2,044} 77,489 36,350 (405) 35,945

Non-life insurance contracts (see (2) below)
Unearned premiums 632 (22} 610 387 (11) 376
Craims outstanding 584 (15} 569 223 (3) 220
1,216 {37} 1,179 610 (14) 596
Total 80,749 {2,081) 78,668 36,960 (419) 36,541

'Reinsurance balances are yeported within other assets {note 32)

At 31 December 2010 £71,719 mitlion (2009 £33,303 million) of habiities ansing from msurance contsacts and participating investment contracts had a

contractual residual matunity of greater than one year

(1) Life insurance

The movemnent in Life insurance contract and participating investment contract habdities over the year ¢an be analysed as ollows

Parbcpating

Insurance nvestment
contracts contracts Gross  Remsurance Net
£m Em Em
At } lanuary 2009 21,553 11,619 33,172 (380) 32,792
New husiness l 2,182 ‘ 98 2,280 I (27 2,253
Changes in existing business 342 556 898 2 900
Change 1n liabilities charged to the income statement (note 10) 2,524 654 3,178 (25) 3,153
At 31 December 2009 24 077 12,273 36,350 (405) 35,945
Adjustment on transfer of HBOS (note 31) 32,735 5,815 38,550 (1,427) 37,123
New business 3,807 325 4,132 (48) 4,084
Changes n existing business 1,348 (858) 490 (208) 282
Change In liabilities charged to the income statement (note 10) 5,155 (533) 4,622 (256) 4,366
Exchange and other adjustments (76) 87 11 44 55
At 31 December 2010 61,891 17,642 79,533 (2,044) 77,489

Liabilities for life insurance contracts and participating (nvestment contracts can be split into with-profit fund habilities, accounted for using the FSA's realistic capital
regime (realistic llabilities) and non-profit fund habilities, accounted for using a prospective actuanal discounted cash flow methodology, as follows

2010 2009
With-profit Non-profit With-profit Non profit
fund fund Total fund fund Total
£m Em £m £m Em £m
Insurance contracts 13,617 48,274 61,891 7,641 16,436 24,077
Participating investment contracts 10,6438 6,994 17,642 5,720 6,553 12,273
Total 24,265 55,268 79,533 13,361 22,989 36,350
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37 Liabihties of the Group ansing from insurance contracts and participating investment contracts (continued)

Wiith-profit fund realistic iabihities

(1) Business description

The Group has with-profit funds within Scottish Widows plc and Clerical Medical Investment Group Limited contaiming both insurance contracts and participating
investment contracts

The pnimary purpose of the conventional and unitrsed business wntten in the with-profit funds 1s to prowide a long-term smoothed investment vehicle to the
policyholders, protecting them against short-term market fluctuations With-profit policyholders are entitled to at least 90 per cent of the distributed profits, wath the
shareholders receiving the balance The policyholders are also usually insured against death and the policy may carry a guaranteed annuity option at maturity

{11} Method of calculation of habilities
With-profit labilites are stated at their realistic value, the main components of which are

- With-profit benefit reserve, the total asset shares for with-profit policies,
- Cast of options and guarantees,

- Deductions levied against asset shares,

— Planned enhancements tc with-profits benefits reserve, ang

— Impact of the smeothing policy

The realistic assessment 1s carned out using a stochastic simulation mode! which values Liabilities on a market-consistent basis The calculation of realistic iabilities
uses best estimate assumptions for mertality, persistency rates and expenses These are calculated in a simiar manner to those used for the value of in-force business
as discussed in note 28

(i} Assumptions
Key assumptions used in the calculation of with-profit habilities, and the processes for determining these, are

Investment raturns and discount rates

The realistic capital regime dictates that with-profit fund habilities are valued on a market-consistent basis This 1s achieved by the use of 2 valuation model which
values habildies on a basis calibrated to tradable market option contracts and other cbservable market data The with-profit fund financial options and guarantees are
valued using a stochastic simulation model where all assets are assumed to earn, on average, the nsk-free yield and ail cash flows are discounted using the risk-free
yield The risk-free yield 1s defined as the spot yield derived from the relevant government bond yield curve

Guaranteed annuity option take-up rates
Certain pension confracts contain guaranteed annuity options that allow the policyholder to take an annuity benefit on retirement at annuity rates that were
guaranteed at the outset of the contract For centracts that contain such ophons, key assumptions in determining the costs of the options are economic conditions in
which the option has value, mortality rates and take-up rates of gther options The financial impact 1s dependent on the value of corresponding investments, interest
rates and longevity at the time of the claim

Investment volatilsty
The calibratien of the stochastic simulation model uses imptied volatilities of denvatives where possible, or histoncal volatihty where it 1s not possibie to observe
meaningful prices

Mortality
The mortality assumptions, including allowances for improvements in longewity for annuitants, are set with regard to the Group’s actual experience where this s
significant, and relevant industry data otherwise
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37 Liabihties of the Group ansing from insurance contracts and participating investment contracts (continued}

Lapse rates (persistency)
Lapse rates refer to the rate of palicy termmabion or the rate at which palicyholders stop paying regular premiums due under the contract

Histonical persistency experience 1S analysed using statistical technigues As experience can vary considerably between different product types and for contracts that
have been in force for different periods, the data 1s broken down into broadly homogenous groups for the purposes of this analysis

The most recent experience 15 considered along with the resulis of previous analyses and management's wiews on future experience, taking into consideration
potential changes in future expenence that may result from guarantees and options becoming more valuable under adverse market conditions, in order to determine a
‘best estimate’ view of what persistency will be In determining this best estimate view a number of factors are considered, including the credibility of the results
(which wiill be affected by the volume of data availabte), any exceptional events that have occurred during the penod under consideration, any known or expected
trends wn underlying data and relevant published market data

Non-profit fund habilities

{1} Bustness description

The Group prncipally wntes the fellowing types of life insurance contracts within its non-profit funds Shareholder profits on these types of business anse from
management fees and other polcy charges

Unit-linked business — This includes urit-inked pensions and unit-hinked bonds, the primary purpose of which 15 10 provide an investment vehicle where the
pohicyholder 15 also insured against death

Life insurance - The policyhelder 15 insured against death or permanent disabitity, uswally for predetermined amounts  Such business includes whole-of-life and term
assurance and long-term creditor policies

Annuittes - The policyhalder 1s entitled to payments for the duration of therr life and 15 therefore insured against surviving longer than expected

German insurance business 1s wriften through the Group's subsidiary Hetdelberger Leben and comprises policies similar to the UK definiions above, except that there
15 participation by the policyholder i the mvestment, insurance and expense profits of Heidefberger teben A minimum level of policyholder participation s
prescribed by German Law The following types of life insurance contracts are written

— Tradimonal or unit inked endowment or pensions business, and
— Life insurance business

(1) Method of calculation of habiities
The non-profit fund habilites are determined on the basis of recogmsed actuanal methods and consistent with the approach required by regulatory rules The
methods used involve estimating future policy cash flows over the duration of the in-force book of policies, and discounting the ¢cash flows back to the valuation date
allowing for probabilities of occurrence

(1) Assumplions

Generally, assumptions used to value non-profit fund habilities are prudent in nature and therefore contain a margin for adverse deviation This masgin for adverse
deviation 1s based on management's jJudgement and reflects management's views on the inherent level of uncertainty The key assumptions used in the measurement
of non-profit fund liabiiities are

Interest rates
The rates used are derived i accordance with the guidelines set by local regutatory bodies These imit the rates of interest that can be used by reference to a number
of factors including the redemption yields on fixed interest assets at the valuation date

Margins for nsk are aliowed for in the assumed nterest rates  These are derved from the hmits in the guidelines set by local regulatory bodies including reductions
made to the avaitabte yields to allow for default nsk based upon the credit rating of the secunties allocated to the insurance habitity

Mortality and morbidity

The mortality and morbidity assumptions, including allowances for improvements n longewity for annuitants, are set with regard to the Group's actual expenence
where this provides & reliable basis, and relevant (ndustry data otherwise, and include a margin for adverse deviation For German business appropriate industry
fables have been considered
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37 Liabihties of the Group ansing from nsurance contracts and participating investment contracts (continued)

Lapse rates (persistency)
Lapse rates are allowed for on some non-profit fund contracts The process for setting these rates (s as described for with-profit liabilities, however a prudent scenano
15 assumed by the inclusion of a margin for adverse deviation within the non-profit fund liabilities

Maintenance expenses

Allowance 1s made for future policy costs explicitly Expenses are deterrmined by reference to an internal analysis of current and expected future costs plus a margin for
adverse deviation Explicit allowance 1s made for future expense inflation For German business appropriate cost assumptions have been set in accordance with the
rules of the local regutatory body

Key changes n assumptions
A detalled review of the Group's assumptions in 2010 resulted In the following key impacts on profit before tax

- Change in persistency assumptions (E38 mullion decrease)
- Change n the assumption in respect of future mortahty rates (£40 muilion increase)

These amounts include the impacts of movements In habilties and the value of In-force business i respect of Insurance contracts and participating investment
contracts

(2) Non-life insurance
Gross non-life insurance contract hakilities are anatysed by line of business as follows

2010 2009

£m £m

Credit protection 380 228
Home 833 379
Health 3 3
Total gross non-life iInsurance contract labilities 1,216 610

For non-life insurance contracts, the methodology and assumptions used 1n relation to determining the bases of the earned premium and claims provisioning levels
are desived for ¢ach individual underwntten product Assumptions are intended to be neutral esimates of the most likely or expected outcome There has been no
sigrificant change in the assumptions and methodologies used for setting reserves

The reserving methodology and associated assumptions are set out below

The unearned premium reserve 15 determined on a basis that reflects the length of time for which contracts have been in force and the projected incidence of nsk over
the term of each contract

Claims outstanding comprise those claims that have been notified and those that have been incurred but not reported Claims incurred but not reported are
determined based on the historical emergence of claims and their average cost The notified claims element represents the best estimate of the cost of claims reported
using projections and estimates based on historical expenence

The movements in non-life insurance contract liabilities and remnsurance assets over the year have been as foilows

Gross  Remnsurance Net
£m £m £m

Provisions for unearned premiums
At 1 January 2009 472 - 472
Increase in the year 596 (34) 562
Release in the year (681) 23 (658)
Change in provision for unearned premiums charged to income statement (note 10) {85) (11) (96)
At 31 December 2009 387 1n 376
Adjustment an transfer of HBOS (note 31) 402 (20) 382
Increase in the year 1,230 (104} 1,126
Release in the year (1,386) 113 (1,273)
Change in provision for unearned premiums charged to income statement (note 10) {156) 9 (147)
Exchange and other adjustments {1) - (1}
At 31 December 2010 632 (22) 610
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37 Liabthties of the Group ansing from tnsurance contracts and partioipating investment contracts {continued)

These provisions represent the liability for shart-term insurance contracts for which the Group's obligations are not expired at the year end

Gross  Remnsurance Net
£m £m £m

Craims and loss adjustment expenses
Notified claims 160 (5) 155
Incurred but not reported 23 - 23
At 1 January 2009 183 5 178
Cash paid for claims settled in the year (234) 2 (232)
Increase (decrease) in habihities
Ansing from cusrent year claims 287 - 287
Ansing from prior year claims {13) - (13)
Change (n habiliies ¢harged to income statement {note 10} 40 2 42
At 31 December 2009 223 (3} 220
Adjustment on transfer of HBOS (note 31) 282 (9) 273
Cash paid for claims settled in the year 467) 11 (456)
Increase {decrease) in habilities
Arising from current year ctaims 581 (12) 569
Ansing from prior year claims {32) (1) {33)
Change 1n habilities charged to income statement (note 10} 82 (2) 80
Exchange and other adjustments (3) (1) (4)
At 31 December 2010 584 (15) 569
MNotfied claims 420 (4) 416
Incusred but not reporied 164 (11) 153
At 31 December 2010 584 (15) 569
Notifieg claims 165 (3) 162
Incurred but not reported 58 - 58
At 31 December 2009 223 (3) 220

Non-life insurance claims development table

The development of insurance lrabilities provides a measure of the Group's ability to esttmate the ultmate value of claims The top half of the table befow illustrates
how the Group’s estimate of total claims outstanding for each accident year shown has changed at successive year ends The bottom half of the table reconciles the
cumulative claims to the amount appeaning in the balance sheet The accident year basis 1S considered the mast appropriate for the business written by the Group

Non-life insurance all risks - gross

Accident year
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total
£m £m £m Em Em £m £m

Estimate of ultimate claims costs
At end of accident year 211 208 317 205 262 609 1,812
One year later 207 206 311 199 237
Two years later 204 204 299 195
Three years later 202 204 292
Four years later 201 205
Five years later 201
Current eshmate in respect of above claims 201 205 292 195 237 609 1,739
Current estmate of claims relating o HBOS general insurance
buswness transferred in 2010 {note 31) 284 326 394 263 302 - 1,569
Current esumate of cumutative claims 485 531 686 458 539 609 3,308
Cumulative payments to date (472} (520) (671} (430) (443) (226) (2,762}
Liabisty recognised n the balance sheet 13 11 15 28 96 383 546
Liabihty in respect of earber years! 22
Total hability included in the balance sheet 568

This balance includes £2 million of claims outstanding relating to the HBOS genera! insurance business transferred 1n 2010 (note 31)

The hability of £568 m:illion shown in the above table excludes £16 mullion of unallocated claims handling expenses
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38 Life insurance sensihivity analysis of the Group

The following table demonstrates the effect of changes in key assumptions on profit before tax and equity disclosed in these financial statements assuming that the
other assumptions remain uncharged In practice this s unlikely to occur, and changes in some assumpticns may be correlated These amounts in¢lude movements
In assets, liabihties and the value of the in-force business it respect of insurance contracts and participating investment contracts The ympact s shown in one

dwrection but can be assumed to be reasonably symmetrical

Increase (reduction}  Increase {reduction)

n profit before tax n equity
31 December 2010 Change in vanable £m £m
Non-annutant mortality* 5% reduction 64 46
Annuitant mortality? 5% reduction (131) (96)
Lapse rates? 10% reduction 163 117
Future maintenance and investment expenses* 10% reduction 201 145
Risk-free rate® G 25% reduction 61 44
Guaranteed annuity option take-up® 5% addition 4) (3)
Equity investment velaility? 1% addition (8) (6)
Widening of credit default spreads on corporate honds® 0 25% addition (152) (110}
Increase  illguidity premia® 0 10% addition 78 56

Increase (reduction}

Increase (reduction)

in profit before tax In eqiuty
31 December 2009 Change 1n vanable £m £m
Non-annuitant mortality* 5% reduction 26 19
Annuitant mortahity? 5% reduction (82) (59)
Lapse rates? 10% reduction 39 28
Future maintenance and investment expenses® 10% reduction 96 69
Risk-free rate® 0 25% reduction 43 35
Guaranteed annuity optien take-up® 5% addition {5} (3)
Equity investment volatility” 1% addition [82)] (6)
Widening of credit default spreads on corporate bonds® 0 25% addhtion (105) (76)
Increase i iiquigity premig® 0 10% addition 56 41

Assumptions have been flexed on the basis used to caiculate the value of in-force business and the realistic and statutory reserving bases

'Thus sensitivity shows the impact of reducing mortality and morbidity rates on non-annuity business to 95 per cent of the expected rate

2This sensitivity shows the impact on the annuity and deferred annuity business of reducing mortality rates to 95 per cent of the expected rate
This sensibivity shows the impact of reducing lapse and susrender rates to 90 per cent of the expected rate
This sensitivity shows the wmpact of reducing maintenance expenses and investment expenses to 90 per cent of the expected rate
5This sensitivity shows the impact on the value of in-force business, financial options and guarantee costs, statutory reserves and asset values of reducing the nisk-free

rate by 25 basis points

5This sensitivity shows the impact of a flat 5 per cent addition to the expected rate
"This sensitivity shows the impact of a flat 1 per cent addition to the expected rate
®This sensitivity shows the impact of a 25 basis point increase 1n credit default spreads on corporate bonds and the corresponding reduction in market values
Government bond yeelds, the non-annuity nisk-free rate and liquidity presmia are all assumed to be unchanged

*This sensitivity shows the impact of a 10 basis point increase n the allowance for Whiguidity premia It assumes the overall corporate bond spreads are unchanged
and hence market values are unchanged Government bond yields and the nan-annuity risk-free rate are both assumed to be unchanged The increased ilhquedity

premium Increases the annuity risk-free rate

39 Liabilities of the Group arising from non-participating investment contracts

The movement 1in liabilities ansing from non-participating investment contracts may be analysed as follows

Gross  Remnsurance! Net

£m £m £m

At 1 January 2009 14,243 - 14,243
New business 242 - 242
Changes n existing bustness 1,249 - 1,249
At 31 December 2009 15,734 - 15,734
Adjustment on transfer of HBOS (ncte 31) 30,614 - 30,614
New business N 3,953 (65) 3,888
Changes 1n existing business 1,070 - 1,070
Exchange and other adyustments (3 - (8)
At 31 December 2010 51,363 (65) 51,298

'Reinsurance balances are reported within ather assets (note 32}
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40 Unallocated surplus within insurance businesses for the Group

The movement i the unallocated surplus within leng-term insurance business over the year can be analysed as follows

2010 2009

£m Em

At | January 310 270

Adjustment on transfer of HBOS (note 31) 772 -

Change in unallocated surplus recognised in the income statement {note 10) (439) 40

At 31 December 543 310
41 Other habilities The Geoup The Bank

2010 20095 2010 2009

£m £m £m £m

Settiement balances 1,269 361 6 101

Unitholders' interest in Open Ended Investment Companies 15,617 5,908 - -

Other creditors and accruals 13,160 5,994 3,794 3,336

30,046 12,263 3,800 3,437

At 31 December 2010 £15,383 million {2009 £7,796 million) of other liabilities of the Group and £657 million {2009 £1,032 million) of the Bank had a
contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

42 Retirement benefit obligations

2010 2009
£m £m

(Credit) charge to the Group income statement
Defined benefit pension schemes! (467) 267
Other post-retirement benefit schemes 12 7
Total defined benefit schemes (455) 274
Defined contribution pension schemes 173 88
Total (credit) charge to the income statement (282) 362

'In 2010, the amount 1s shown net of a credit of £910 million following the Group’s dectsion to cap all future increases to pensionable salary in 1ts principal UK
defined benefit pension schemes, together with a change in commutation factors in certam schemes (see note 11)

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Amounts recognised n the balance sheet
Defined benefit pension schemes 479 (360) 356 a7n
Other post-retirement benefit schemes (166) (114) (118) (114)
Total amounts recognised in the balance sheet 313 (474) 238 {131)
The Group The Bank
2010 2005 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet
Retirement benefit assets 736 - 530 -
Retirement benefit oblgations (423) (474) (292) {131}
Total amounts recogmised in the balance sheet 313 (474) 238 (131}

For accouniing purposes, the assets and liabilities of the Group's post-retirement benefit schemes are allocated between the participating employers, including the
Bank, in proportion to the cash contnbutions made to the schemes
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42 Retirement benefit obligations {continued}

Pension schemes

Defiried benefit schemes

The Group has establishad a number of defined henefit pension schemes in the UK and overseas, the three most sigificant beng the defined benefit sectians of the
Lloyds TSB Group Pension Schemes No's 1 and 2 and the HBOS Final Salary Pension Scheme (HFSPS) These schemes provide retirement benefits calculated as
a percentage of finat salary depending upon the length of service, the mimmum retirement age under the rules of the schemes at 31 December 2010 was generally
55 although certain categories of member are deemed to have a contractual night to retire at 50

The latest full valuattons of the two main Lloyds TSB schemes were camed out as at 30 June 2008, the latest full valuation of the HFSPS was carned out as at
31 December 2008 The results have been updated to 31 December 2010 by qualified independent actuanes The last full valuations of other Group schemes were
carried out on a number of different dates, these have been updated to 31 December 2010 by qualified independent actuaries or, 1n the case of the Scottish Widows
Retirement Benefits Scheme, by a qualified actuary employed by Scottish Widows

The Group’s and the Bank’s cbligations in respect of defined benefit schemes are funded During 2009, the Group's contributions to s defined benefit schemes of
£1,567 million included one-off contributions to the Lloyds TSB Group Pension Scheme No 1 and the tloyds TSB Group Pension Scheme No 2 of approximately
£1 bilhon i aggregate These contributions took the form of interests in hmited lability partnerships for each of the two schemes which contamned assets of
approximately £5 tullion 1n aggregate entithng the schemes to annual payments cf approximately £215 million 1n aggregate until 31 December 2014 Thereafter,
assuming that all distnbutions have been made, the value of the partnership interests wili equate to a2 nominal amount At 31 December 2010, the imited hatility
partnershups held assets of approximately £4 9 biliion, cash payments of £215 mullion were made to the pension schemes dunng the year The limited habihty
partnerships are fully consolidated n the Group's balance sheet (see note 21)

The Group currently expects to pay contnbutons of approamately £625 mithion 10 its defined beneftt schemes in 2011

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Amounts included tn the balance sheet
Present vatue of funded obligations (26,862) (18,796) (14,143) (14,363)
Fair value of scheme assets 26,382 16,075 13,784 12,507
(480Q) (2,721) (359) (1,856)
Unrecogrused actuarial losses 959 2,361 713 1,839
Net amount recognised in the balance sheet 479 (360) 356 (17)
The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Movements in the defined benefit obligation
At 1 January (18,796) (15,617) (14,363) (12,015
Adjustment cn transfer of HBOS {note 31} (8,277) - - -
Current service cost (384) (216) (144} (158}
Employee ¢contributions (4) - - -
Interest cost (1.474) {956) (724) (732}
Actuanal gains (losses) 140 (2,649) 256 (1,938}
Benefits paid 950 647 493 494
Past service cost (46) (31 (40) (26)
Curtailments 1,081 - 449 -
Settlements 6 - - -
Exchange and other adjustments (58) 26 (70) 12
At 31 December (26,862) (18,796) (14,143) (14,363)
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42 Retwement benefit obligations (continued)

Changes 1n the fair value of scheme assets

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £im
At 1 January 16,075 13,693 12,507 10,488
Adjustment on transfer of HBOS (note 31} 7,443 - - -
Expected return 1,507 936 736 720
Employer contributions 648 1,567 182 1,419
Employee contributions 4 - - -
Actuanal gains 1,624 542 818 376
Benefits paid {950) (647) (493) (494}
Settlements (9) - - -
Exchange and other adjustments 40 (16) 34 (2}
At 31 December 26,382 16,075 13,784 12,507
Actual return on scheme assets 3,131 1,478 1,554 1,096
Assumptions
The principal actuarial and financial assumptions used n the valuations of the defined benefit pension schemes were as follows 2010 2009
% %
Discount rate 550 570
Rate of inflation
— Retal Prices Index 340 340
- Consumer Price index 290 .
Rate of salary increases 200 375
Rate of increase for pensions in payment 320 320
Years Years
Life expectancy for member aged 60, on the valuaticn date
Men 27 2 271
Women 283 28 2
Life expectancy for member aged 60, 15 years after the vatuation date
Men 282 287
Women 299 298

The mortality assumptions used in the scheme valuations are based on standard tables published by the Institute and Faculty of Actuarses which were adjusted n
line with the actual experience of the relevant schemes The table shows that a member retinng at age 60 as at 3t December 2010 1s assumed to live foy, on average,
27 2 years for a mate and 28 3 years for a female In practice there will be much vaniation between individual members but these assumptions are expected to be
appropriate across all members It 1s assumed that younger members will hive longer in retirement than those retinng now Thus reflects the expectation that mortality
rates will continue to fall over time as medical science and standards of iving wmprove To sllustrate the degree of improvement assumed the table also shows the hfe
expectancy for members aged 45 now, when they retire in 15 years ime at age 60

Sensitivity analysis
The effect of changes In key assumptions on the pension charge in the Group’s iIncome statement and on the Group's net defined benefit pension scheme asset or

hability 1s set out below
Increase (decrease) in the
Increase (decrease) in the  net defined benefit pension

income staternent charge scheme asset
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m

Inflation?

Increase of & 2 per cent 14 60 (791) (511)

Decrease of G 2 per cent (15) (52) 754 489
Discount rate?

Increase of O 2 per cent (20} (54) 930 604

Decrease of O 2 per cent 15 68 (976) (635)
Expected fe expectancy of members

Increase cof one year 40 64 (620) (393)

Decrease of one year 41) 61 632 399

'At 31 Decemnber 2010, the assumed rate of inflation 15 3 4 per cent (31 December 2009 3 4 per cent)
2At 31 December 2G10, the assumed discount rate 15 5 5 per cent (31 December 2009 5 7 per cent)
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42 Retirement benefit obligations (centinued)

The expected return on scheme assets has been calculated using the following assumptions

2010 2009
% %
Equities and alternative assets 83 84
Fixed interest giits 45 37
index linked gilts 41 40
Non-Government honds 60 67
Property 75 64
Money market instruments and cash 43 38
The expected return on scheme assets in 2011 will be calculated using the following assumptions 2011
%
Equities and alternative assets 83
Fixed interest gilts 40
Index linked gi'ts 39
Non-Government bonds 43
Property 73
Money market instruments and cash 39
Composition of scheme assets
The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £im £m
Equities 11,856 7,689 6,290 5932
Fixed interest gilts 2,237 1,327 450 1,071
Index inked gilts 4,159 1,510 2,660 1,007
Non-Government bonds 2,922 1917 1,916 1,491
Property 1,654 1,391 1,124 1,129
Money market instruments, cash and other assets and liabilities 3,554 2,241 1,346 1,877
At 31 December 26,382 16,075 13,786 12,507

The assets of all the funded plans are held independently of the Group's assets in separate trustee administered funds

The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying the current investment paticy Expected
yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yields at the balance sheet date at a term and credit rating broadly appropriate for the bonds held
Expected returns on equity and property investment are long-term rates based on the views of the plans’ independent investment consultants The expected return on
equities allows for the different expected returns from the private equity, infrastructure and hedge fund investments held by some of the funded plans Some of the
funded pians also invest 1n certain money market instruments and the expected return on these investments has been assumed to be the same as cash

Experience adjustments history

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
The Group £m £m £m £m £m
Present value of defined benefit abligation (26,862) (18,796 (15617) (16,795) (17,378)
Fair value of scheme assets 26,382 16,075 13,693 16,112 15,279

(480) (2,721} (1,924) (683) (2,089)
Expenience gains (losses) on scheme liabilities 496 {14} (39) (185) (50)
Experience gains (losses) on scheme assets 1,624 542 (3,520) 139 314

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
The Bank £m £m £m £m £m
Present value of defined benefit obligation (14,143) (14,363) (12,015) (12,899) (13,166)
Fair value of scheme assets 13,784 12,507 10,488 12,410 11,579

{359) (1,856) (1,527) (489) (1,587)
Expenence gains (losses) on scheme liabilities 366 (4) {23) (150) (42)
Expenence gains (losses) on scheme assets 801 377 (2,750) 114 243
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42 Retirement benefit obligations (costinued)

The expense recognised in the consolidated income staterment for the year ended 31 December comprises

2010 2009
£m £m

Current service cost 384 216
Interest cost 1,474 956
Expected return on scheme assets (1,507} (936)
Net actuanal losses recognised n the year 43 -
Curtailments (see below) (910} -
Seftlements 3 -
Past service cost 46 31
Total defined benefit pension expense {467} 267

Following changes by the Group to the terms of its principal UK defined benefit pension schemes, all future increases to pensionable salary will be capped each year
at the lower of Retall Prices Index inflation, each employee’s actual percentage increase in pay, and 2 per cent of pensionable pay In addition to this, dunng the
second half of the year there was a change i the commutation factors in certain defined benefit schemes The combined effect of these changes 1s a reduction in
the Greup's defined benefit obligationt of £1,081 million and a reduction in the Group's unrecognised actuarial losses of £171 miliion, resulting In a net curtalment
gain of £910 million recognised in the income statement and an equivatent reduction in the balance sheet liabihty

Defined contribution schemes
The Group operates a number of defined contnbution pension schemes in the UK and overseas, principally the defined contnbution sections of the Lloyds TSB Group
Pension Schemes No's 1 and 2

Dunng the year ended 31 Dacember 2010 the charge to the income statement in respact of defined contribution schemes was £173 million (2009 £88 million),
representing the contributions payable by the employer in accordance with each scheme's rules

Other post-retirement benefit schemes

The Group cperates a number of schemes which provide post-retirement healthcare benefits and concessionary mortgages to certain employees, retired employees
and their dependants The principal scheme reiates to former Lloyds Bank staff and under this scheme the Group has undertaken to meet the cost of post-retirement
heaithcare for all eligible former employees (and their dependants) who retired prior to 1 January 1996 The Group has entered into an insurance contract to provide
these benefits and a provision has been made for the estmated cost of future insurance premiums payable

For the pnincipal post-retirement healthcare scheme, the latest actuanal vaiuation of the hability was carried out at 30 June 2008, this valuation has been updated to
31 December 2010 by qualified independent actuaries The pnncipal assumptions used were as set out above, except that the rate of increase in healthcare
premiums has been assumed at 7 54 per cent {2009 7 33 per cent)

Amount included in the balance shest

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Present value of unfunded obligations (175) (120) (124} (120)
Unrecognised actuarial losses 9 6 6 6
Retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet {166) (1i4) {118} (114)
Movements in the othar post-retirement benefits obligation The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January (120) (118) {120} (118)
Adjustment cn transfer of HBOS (note 31) (50) - - -
Exchange and other adjustments 2 1 1 1
Actuanial loss - (2) - (2)
Insurance premiums paid 5 6 5 6
Charge for the year (12) (7) {10) N
At 31 December (175) (120) (124) (120)
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43 Deferred tax

The movement 1n the net deferred tax balance is as follows

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Asset at 1 January 2,438 837 2,672 1,161
Adjustment on transfer of HBOS (note 31} 2,603 - - -
Exchange and other adjustments 66 - -
Disposals - 12 - -
Income statement (charge) credit {(note 15)
Due tc change in cerporation tax rate {142) - {103) -
Other (716) 2,146 484 1,475
{858) 2,146 381 1,475
Amount (charged) credited to equity
Avallable-for-sale financial assets (note 48) {330) (206) (249) 30
Net investment hedges (note 48) - (358) - -
Cash flow hedges (note 48) 38 =] (8) [
(292) (558) (257) 36
Asset at 31 December 3,957 2,438 2,796 2,672

The statutory pesition reflects the deferred tax assets and habilities as disclosed in the consohdated balance sheet and takes account of the inability te offset assets
and liabihties where there 1s no legally enforceable right of offset The tax disclosure of deferred tax assets and habilities ties to the amounts outlined In the table

below which splits the deferred tax assets and liabilities by type

The Group The Bank

2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m Em

Statutory position
Deferred tax assets 4,204 2,438 2,796 2,672
Deferred tax liabilities (247) - - -
Net deferred tax asset 3,957 2,438 2,796 2,672

Tax disclosure

Deferred tax assets 8,438 3,420 2,821 2,723
Deferred tax habihties {4,481) (982) (25) (61
Net deferred tax asset 3,957 2,438 2,796 2,672
The deferred tax credit in the consolidated income statement compnses the following temporary differences 2010 2000
£m £m
Accelerated capital allowances 470) 492
Pensions and other post-retirement benefits (391) (191)
Leng-term assurance business {110) (92)
Trading losses 880 1,810
Tax on fair value of acquired assets (715) -
Other temporary differences (52) 127
Deferred tax credit in the income statement (858) 2,146
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43 Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and habilities are comprised as follows

The Group The Bank
201¢ 2009 2010 2009

£m £m £m £Em
Deferred tax assets
Pensicons and cther post-retirement benefits 40 311 67 225
Allowances for impairment losses 577 88 68 85
Other provisions 241 159 68 155
Deratives 178 91 55 97
Avallable for-sale asset revatuation 519 324 - -
Tax losses carried forwarg 6,596 2,316 2,365 1,970
Accelerated capital allowances - - 163 158
Other temporary differences 287 131 315 33
Total deferred tax assets 8,438 3,420 2,821 2,723
Deferred tax habiiities
Accelerated capital allowances (562) (56) - -
Long-term assurance business (1,630} (760) - -
Tax on fair value of acquired assets (2,097) - - -
Other temporary differences (192) (166} {25) (51)
Total deferred tax hiabihibes (4,481) (982} {25) (51)

The Finance (No 2) Act 2010 includes legistation to reduce the main rate of corporatton tax from 28 per cent to 27 per cent with effect from 1 April 2011 This
resulted in a reduction in the Group's net deferred tax asset at 31 December 2010 of £132 million

The proposed further reductions in the rate of corporation tax by 1 per cent per annum to 24 per cent by 1 April 2014 are expected to be enacted separately each
year starting in 2011 The effect of these further changes upon the Group’s deferred tax balances and leasing business cannot be reflably quantified at this stage

Deferred tax assels

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carned forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits s probable
Group companies have recognised deferred tax assets of £6,596 million (2009 £2,316 muthion) in relation to tax losses carred forward  After reviews of medium-
term profit forecasts, the Group considers that there will be sufficient prefits In the future against which these losses wiil be offset

Deferred tax assets of £396 mullion for the Group and £35 million for the Bank (2009 £31 mullien for the Group and £55 milhen for the Bank) have not been
recogrused i respect of capitai losses carned forward as there are no predicted future capital profits Capal losses can be carnied forward indefinitely

In addition, deferred tax assets have not been recogmsed in respect of unrelieved foreign tax carried forward as at 31 December 2010 of £62 million for the Group
and £22 milhion for the Bank (2009 £13 million for the Group and £13 million for the Bank), as there are no predicted future taxable profits against which the
unrelieved foreign tax credits can be utiised These tax credits can be carned forward indefinitely

Deferred tax habities

Future transfers from Scottish Widows ple's long-term business funds to its Shareholder Fund will be subject to a sharehelder tax charge Under IAS 12, no provision
15 required to be made to the extent that the timiag of such transfers 15 under Scotush Widows plc's contral Accordingly, deferred tax liabilities of £30 million
(2009 £90 mithion) have not been recognised

Scottish Widows plc has a taxable difference of £152 million (2009 152 mithon) in respect of its holding cf a ife insurance subsidiary No deferred tax hability 1s
required 10 be recognised In respect of this taxable tempoerary difference under 1AS 12 as Scottish Widows plc does not intend to dispose of this subsidiary company
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44 Other provisions

Prowvisions for
contingent Customer Customer Vacant
labdibes and 1 | goodwill  Resbuctunng leasehold
commitments provisions payments PrOVISIONS property Other Total
The Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2010 67 186 - 114 38 142 547
Adjustment on transfer of HBOS (note 31) 5 274 - 2 70 85 436
Exchange and other ad)ustments 16 (26) - (1) 4 9 2
Transfers - 49 - - - - 49
Provisions applied €)] (222} - (16) (1) (5) (253)
Charge for the year 73 83 500 23 35 35 751
At 31 December 2010 154 344 500 122 146 266 1,532
Prawisions for
contingent Customer Vacant
habulties and  remediation  Restructunng leasehold
commitrments provisions PIOVISIONS property Other Tatal
The Bank £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2010 96 184 114 38 101 533
Exchange and other adjustments - 1 (1) (1) 6 5
Prowisions applied (37) (24) (21) (1) (1) {84)
Charge (release) for the year 64 {12) 20 16 27 115
At 31 December 2010 123 149 112 52 133 569

Provisions for contingent habihies and comrutrments
Provisions are held in cases where the Group 15 irrevocably committed to advance additional funds, but where there 1s doubt as to the customer’s ability 10 meet (s
repayment obligations

Custorner remediation provisions

The Group establishes provisions for the estimated cost of making redress payments to customers in respect of past product sales, in those cases where the onginal
sales processes have been found to be deficient Dunng 2010 management has again reviewed the adequacy of the provisions held having regard to current
complaint volumes and the level of payments being made and £83 million has been charged to the income statement At 31 December 2010 the remaining
provisiens held relate 10 past sates of a number of products, including mortgage endowment policies, sold through the branch networks

Customer gooowill paymerits

The Lloyds Banking Group has been in discussion with the FSA regarding the application of an interest vanation clause in certain Bank of Scotland plc vanable rate
mortgage contracts where the wording in the offer documents received by certain customers had the potential to cause confusion The relevant mortgages were
written between 2004 and 2007 by Bank of Scotland plc under the 'Halifax’ brand In February 2011, the Lloyds Banking Group reached agreement with the FSA
n relation to inibating a customer review and contact programme and making goodwill payments to affected customers In order to make these goodwill payments,
Bank cf Scotland plc has appiied for a Voluntary Vanation of Permission ta carry out the customer review and contact programme 1o bring it within section 404F(7)
of FSMA 2000 The Group has made a provision of £500 miltion in relation to this programme

Restructurning
Provisions are made for staff and other costs related to Group restructuning inihatives at the point at which the Group becomes irrevocably commutted 1o the
expenditure

Vacant leasehold property

Vacant leasehotld property provisions are made by reference to a prudent estimate of expected sub-let income, compared to the head rent, and the possibiity of
disposing of the Group’s Interest 1n the lease, taking into account conditions 1 the property market These provisions are seassessed on a biennsal basis and wil
nermally run-off over the perod of under-recovery of the leases concemed, currently averaging five years, where a property ts disposed of earlier than anticipated, any
remaining balance In the provision relating to that property s released

Other

Other provisions include the provisions which the Group carries 0 respect of its cbligations ansing from the liquidation of UIC Insurance Company Limited (UIC)
The Group has indemnified a third party against losses ansing from a reinsurance contract written by UIC which is subject to asbestos and pollution claims in the
US The ultimate cost and timing of payments under the indemmity remain uncertain  The pravision held represents management's current best estimate of the cost
after having regard to actuarial estimates of future losses
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45 Subordinated habilsties

N n liabil fi
The movement in subordinated liabihties durning the year was as follows The Group The Bank

£m £m

At 1 lanuary 2010 15,999 15,456

Adjustment on transfer of HBOS (note 31) 14,653 -

Issied dunng the year 3,237 3,237

Repurchases and redemptions during the year (684) {353)

Foreign exchange and other movements (3,596} (2,766)

At 31 December 2010 29,609 15,574
The Group The Bank

2010 2009 2010 2009

£m £m £m £m

Preferred securities 6,932 7,339 5,006 7.339

Undated subordinated liabilities 3,056 2,472 1,520 1,925

Dated subordinated habilities 19,621 6,188 9,048 6,192

Total subordinated habthities 29,609 15,999 15,574 15,456

These labihties will, in the event of the winding-up of the issuer, be subordinated lo the claims of the depositors and all other creditors of the 1ssuer, other than
creditors whose claims rank equally with, or are junior 10, the ¢laims of the holders of the subordinated liabiities  The subordination of the specific subordinated
habilities 1s determined in respect of the 1ssuer and any guarantors of that hability The claims of holders of preferred shares and securities are generally junior to those
of the holders of undated subordinated habilities, which in turn are jurior to the claims of the holders of the dated subordinated labilities Neither the Group nor the
Bank has had any defaults of principal, interest or other breaches with respect to its subordinated tiabilities duning the year (2009 ncne) No repayment or purchase
by the issuer of the subordinated habilities may be made pror ta therr stated matunty without the consent of the Financiat Services Authority

2010 2009
The Group Note £m £m
Preferred securities
6 90% Perpetual Capital Secunties (US$1,000 million) g 249 645
Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Cailable Preference Shares callable 2015 (£600 million) a 584 565
Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Callable Preference Shares callable 2016 (US$ 1,000 million} a 628 590
6% Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares b - -
7 375% Eurc Step-up Nen-Voting Nen-Cumulative Preferred Secunties callable 2012 (€430 million) ef 16 428
7 875% Fixed/Floating non-cumulative preference shares (€500 million) { 203 146
7 875% Fixed/Floating non-cumulative preference shares (US$E,250 million) f 353 246
6 35% Step-up Perpetual Capital Securities callabte 2013 (€500 malion) e 241 456
7 834% Sterling Step-up Non-Voting Non-Cumulative Preferred Secunties caltable 2015 (£250 million) ef 4 248
4 385% Step-up Perpetual Capital Securnties callable 2017 (€750 million) i 711 705
13 00% Step-up Perpetua!l Capital Secunties callable 2019 (£784 million) ef 10 827
13 00% Eure Step-up Perpetual Capital Securities callable 2019 (€532 million) i 56 510
12% Fixed to Floating Rate Perpetual Tier 1 Capital Secunties callable 2024 (US%$2,000 million} 1,288 1,235
13 00% Sterling Step-up Perpetual Capital Secunties callable 2029 (£700 rmillion) e,f 662 738
6 071% Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Secunties of US$1,000 each (US$750 million) 336 -
6 85% Non-cumutative Perpetual Preferred Secunities of US$1,000 each {US$1,000 rmullion) g 107 -
6 461 % Guaranteed Non-voting Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Secuniies Series A of £1,000 gach (E600 million) 421 -
8 117% Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Secunties Senies 1 of £1,000 each (Class A) (£250 mullion} gh 253 -
7 754% Non*cumulative Perpetual Preferred Secuntes Series 2 of £1,000 each (Class B) (£150 million} 93 -
7 881% Guaranteed Non-voting Non-cumulative Preferred Secunties (£245 mitlon) 173 -
7 627% Fixed-to-Floating Rate Guaranteed Non-voting Non-cumulative Preferred Secunties (€415 mullion} g 308 -
4 939% Non-voting Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Secunties (€750 mdlion) { 17 -
Perpetual Regulatory Tier One Secunties (£300 mdtion) 214 -
6,932 7,339
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45 Subordinated habilities (continued)

Undated subordinated habilities

Primary Capital Undated Floaung Rate Notes

Series 1 (US$750 million}

Series 2 (US$500 million)

Series 3 (US$600 million)

113/,% Perpetual Subordwnated Bonds (£100 mullion)

6%s% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callabte 2010 (£410 million}

5 125% Step-up Perpetual Subordinated Notes callable 2015 (£560 mittion} {Scottish Widows pic)
5 57% Undated Subordinated Step-up Coupon Notes callable 2015 (¥20,000 million)
5 125% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2016 (£500 million}

6!/2% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes caltable 2019 {£270 million}

8% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2023 (£200 million}

6'/:% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2029 (E450 million}

6% Undated Subordinated Step-up Guaranteed Bonds callable 2032 (£50Q mull:on}

5 625% Cumulative Callable Fixed to Floating Rate Undated Subordinated Notes (£500 million)
4 875% Undated Subordinated Fixed 10 Floating Rate Instruments (€750 million)
Floating Rate Undated Subordinated Instruments (€500 milion}

§ 375% Undated Fixed to Floating Raie Subordinated Notes (US$1,000 million)

5 125% Undated Subordinated Fixed to Floating Rate Notes (€750 million)

5 75% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes (£600 million)

6 05% Fixed to Floating Rate Undated Subordinated Notes (€500 million)

7 5% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes (£300 millien)

3 50% Undated Subordinated Yen Step-up Notes (¥42,500 millicn)

8 625% Perpetual Subordinated Notes (£200 million)

7 375% Undated Subordinated Guaranteed Bonds (£200 mitlion)

Floating Rate Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes (€300 million}

Floating Rate Pnmary Capital Notes (US$250 million)

10 25% Subordinated Undated Instruments (£100 million)

12% Perpatual Subordinated Bonds (£100 muhon)

8 75% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds (£10G mittion)

13 625% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds (£75 milgn}

9 375% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds {(£50 millton)

5 75% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes (£500 mitlion)

4 25% Perpetual Fixed/Floating Rate Reset Subordinated Guaranteed Notes (€750 mitlion)
7 375% Subordinated Undated Instruments (£150 mithon)

4 25% Subcrdinated Undated Instruments (¥17,000 million)
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Note

2010
£m

2009
£m

f.g.
fg.
f.g.1
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173
181
232
102
174
550
194
142

97

111
114

65
42
12
47

57

21
35
63
118

21

20
16

215
76
161

408
262
326
102
157
547
165
140
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45 Subordinated abilities (continued)

2010 2009
Note £m £m

Dated subordinated habilities
6'/4% Subordinated Notes 2010 {€400 miflion) - 375
12% Guaranteed Subordinated Bonds 2011 (£100 million) c 109 116
43/,% Subordinated Notes 2011 (€850 miliion) 764 771
Subordtnated Floating Rate Notes 2011 (£150 milhon) 150 150
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2011 (£100 miltion) 100 100
Subordmated Floating Rate MNotes 2012 (£200 million) 200 200
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2013 (£150 million) 150 150
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2014 (£464 milhon) 465 465
57/8% Subordinated Notes 2014 {£150 million) 149 154
6%e% Subordinated Notes 2015 (£350 mullion) 343 335
Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 callable 2011 (£300 muillion) g 296 296
Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 callable 2011 (€500 mulion} g 432 445
5 625% Subordinated Fixed o Floating Rate Notes due 2018 callable 2013 (€1,000 million) 946 979
6 9625% Subordinated Fixed to Floating Rate Notes due 2020 callable 2015 (£750 million) 715 758
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2020 (€ 100 million) 86 89
5 75% Subordinated Step-up Notes 2025 callable 2020 (£350 million) 324 322
9%/4% Subordinated Bonds 2023 (£300 mulion) 332 333
Subordinated Non-Interest Bearing Loan on rolling 6 year notice (£150 million) 150 150
6 50% Notes 2011 (US$150 million) 99 -
5 50% Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes 2012 (€750 millicn) 657 -
6 25% Instruments 2012 {€12 8 million) 10 -
6 125% Notes 2013 (€325 mullion} 289 -
4 25% Subordinated Guaranteed Notes 2013 (US$1,000 million) 619 -
11% Subordinated Bonds 2014 (£250 miil:on} 297 -
4 875% Subordmated Notes 2015 (€1,000 million} 838 -
Callable Fipating Rate Subordmated Notes 2016 (€500 million) g 401 -
Subordmnated Notes 2016 {€500 milhon) g 417 -
Notes 2016 (US$758 million} g 440 -
Subordinated Lower Tier |1 Notes 2017 {€1,000 million) 758 -
Subordinated Callable Notes 2017 (US$1,000 million) 548 -
Subordinated Callable Floating Rate Instruments 2017 (Aus$400 milion) 255 -
6 75% Subordinated Callable Fixed/Floating Rate Instruments 2017 (Aus$200 millien} 127 -
5 109% Callable Fixed to Floating Rate Notes 2017 (Can$500 million) 305 -
© 305% Lower Tier Il Subordinated Notes 2017 (£500 million) 486 -
10 5% Subordinated Bonds 2018 (£150 million) 171 -
6 75% Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes 2018 (US$2,000 mullion) 1,176 -
6 375% Instruments 2019 (£250 million) 236 -
4 375% Callabte Fixed to Floating Rate Subordinated Notes 2019 (€750 mulhon) 600 -
6 5% Dated Subordinated Notes 2020 {€1,500 million) 1,353 -
7 375% Dated Subordinated Notes 2020 4 -
7 07% Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes 2020 (US$2,000 milhon) 1,202 -
9 375% Subordinated Bonds 2021 (£500 miltion) 647 -
5 374% Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes 2021 (€160 million) 139 -
6 45% Fixed/Floating Subordinated Guaranteed Bonds 2023 (€400 million} 173 -
6 5% Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes 2023 (€175 mullion) 162 -
7 625% Dated Subordinated Notes 2025 (£750 rmullion) 763 -
4 50% Fined Rate Steﬁ-up Subordinated Notes due 2030 (€750 million) 463 -
6 00% Subordinated Notes 2033 (US$750 mitlion) 275 -
19,621 6,188
Total subordinated habilities 29,609 15,999

At 31 December 2010 £28,486 million (2009 £15,624 million) of subordinated habiities had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year
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The Bank

Preferred securities

6 90% Perpetual Capital Securities (US$1,000 million}

Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Callable Preference Shares callable 2015 (E600 million)

Floaung Rate Non-Cumulative Callable Preference Shares callable 2016 (US$1,000 million}

6% Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

7 375% Eurp Step-up Non-Voting Non-Cumulative Preferred Secunities callable 2012 (€430 million)
7 875% Fixed/Floating non-cumulative preference shares (€500 million)

7 875% Fixed/Floating non-cumulative preference shares (US$1,250 million}

6 35% Step-up Perpetual Captal Securities callable 2013 (€500 million)

7 834% Sterling Step-up Non-Voting Non-Cumulative Preferred Securities callable 2015 {£25Q miltion)
4 385% Step-up Perpetual Capital Securities callable 2017 (€750 muliion)

13% Step -up Perpetual Capital Securrties callable 2019 (£784 mullion)

13% Euro Step-up Perpetual Capital Securities Callable 2019 (€532 million)

13% Sterling Step-up Perpetual Capital Securities Caliable 2029 (£700 million)

12% Fixed to Floating Rate Perpetual Tier 1 Capital Securities callable 2024 (US$2,000 millicr)

Undated subordinated habilities

Primary Capital Undated Floating Rate Notes

Senes 1 (US$750 million}

Series 2 (US$500 million)

Series 3 (US$HE00 mitlion)

113/,% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds {£100 mithion)

6%e% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2010 (£410 miition}

5 57% Undated Subordinated Step-up Coupon Notes callable 2015 (¥20,000 million}
5 125% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2016 (£580 miilion)

6'/2% Undated Subordinateg Step-up Notes callable 2019 (£270 milien)

8% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2023 (£200 muliion)

6'/2% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes catlable 2029 (£450 millien)

6% Undated Subordinated Step-up Guaranteed Bonds callable 2032 (£500 million)

Dated subordinated habilities

6'/4% Subordinated Notes 2010 (€400 milhon)

12% Guaranteed Subordinated Bonds 2011 (£100 milhion}

43/4% Subordinated Notes 2011 (€850 milkion)

Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2011 (£150 millign)

Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2011 (£100 mulhion)

Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2012 (£200 miliion)

Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2013 (£150 mulhon)

Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2014 (£464 million)

57fa% Subordinated Notes 2014 (£150 mullion)

6%/5% Subordinated Notes 2015 (£350 million)

Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 callable 2011 (£300 million)
Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 callable 2011 (€500 mulion}
5 625% Subordinated Fixed to Floating Rate Notes due 2018 callable 2013 (€1,000 million)
6 9625% Subordinated Fixed to Floating Rate Notes due 2020 callable 2015 {£750 million)
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2020 (€100 mithon)

5 75% Subordinated Step-up Notes 2025 callabte 2020 (£350 million)
9%a% Subordinated Bonds 2023 (£300 million)

Subordinated Non-Interest Beanng Loan ¢n rolling 6 year notice {£150 milhion}
6 5% Dated Subordinated Notes 2020 (€1,50C million)

7 375% Dated Subordinated Notes 2020

6 5% Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes 2020 (US$$2,000 million)

7 625% Dated Subordinatd Notes 2025 (£750 million)

Total subordinated habilities

At 31 December 2010 £14,448 mithon (2009 £15,081 million) of subordinated habiities had a contractual residual matunity of greater than one year
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2010 2009

Note £m £m
eg 249 645
a 584 565

a 628 590

b - -

e f 17 428
f 203 146

f 353 246

e 241 456
ef 4 248
i 711 705
ef 10 827
i 56 510
ef 662 738
1,288 1,235

5,006 7,339

f.g) 173 408
fg 181 262
faz 232 326
102 102

f.8 174 157
194 165

f 142 140

f 97 83

f - 64

f 111 103

f 114 109
1,520 1,925

- 375

[ 112 116
764 771

150 150

100 100

200 200

150 150

465 465

149 154

343 335

g 300 300
g 432 445
946 979

723 758

86 89

324 322

332 333

150 150

1,353 -

4 -

1,202 -

763 -

9,048 6,192

15,574 15,456
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45 Subordinated habilities (continued)

a)

b}

c)
d)

e)

f

In certain circumstances, these preference shares may be mandatorily exchanged for qualifying non-imnovalive tier 1 secunties The Bank may declare no
dividend or a partial dividend on these preference shares Dwidends may be reduced if the distributable profits of the Bank are insufficient to cover the payment
in full of the dividends and also the payment in full of all other dimdends on shares 1ssued by the Bank

Since 2004, the Bank has had in 1ssue 100 6 per cent non cumulaive redeernable preference shares of £1 each The shares, which are redeemable at the
option of the Bank at any time, carry the nghts to a hixed rate non-cumulative preferentral dividend at a rate of 6 per cent per annum, no dwidend shall be payable
1n the event that the directors determine that prudent capital ratios would net be maintained if the dividend were paid Upon winding up, the shares rank equally
with any other preference shares 1ssued by the Bank The holder of the 100 £1 6 per cent preference shares has waved its rights to payment for the pertod from
1st March 2010 to 1st March 2012

Guaranteed by Lloyds Banking Group pfc on a subordinated basis

Scotbish Widows plc may elect to defer interest on these securities although in that event Scottish Widows plc cannot declare or pay a dividend on any ordinary
share capital untl any deferred payments have been made

As part of the Lloyds Banking Group's recapiialisation and exit from the Government Asset Protection Scheme, foliowing an exchange offer, on 1 December,
10 December and 15 December 2009, certain holders of certain securities elected to exchange some or all of the preference shares they held for equity 1ssued
by Lloyds Banking Group plc on 18 February 2010

In Novemnber 2009, as part of the state aid restructuring plan, the Group agreed to suspend the payment of coupons on these instruments for the two year penod
from 31 January 2010 to 31 January 2012

These secunities are callable at specific dates as per the terms of the securities at the option of the 1ssuer and with approval from the FSA In Novemnber 2009,
as part of the state aid restructuring plan, the Group agreed not to exercise any cali options en these instruments for the two year period from 31 January 2010
to 31 January 2012

The fixed rate on this secunty was reset from 8 117 per cent to 6 059 per cent with effect from 31 May 2010

Following an exchange offer, on 28 May angt 4 June 2010, certain holders elected to exchange some or all of the notes they held for equity 1ssued by
Lloyds Banking Group plc

The fixed rate payable on this secunty was reset from 6 625 per cent 10 4 6482 per cent with effect from 15 July 2010
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46 Share capital

{1} Authonsed share capital

Sterting
1,650 mullion ordinary shares of £1 each
1 cumulative floating rate Preference share of £1

10C 6 per cent Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of £1 each

175 millhion Preference shares of 25p each

US dollars
160 milion Preference shares of 25 cents each

Eurg
160 milhon Preference shares of 25 cents each

Japanese yen
50 milhon Preference shares of ¥25 each

{2) Issued and fully paid ordinary shares

Sterling

Crdinary shares of £1 each

At 1 January

Shares 1ssued on the transfer of HBOS!
Other share 1ssues in 20102

Capital injection in 20092

At 31 December

Group and Bank

2010 2008

£m £m

1,650 1,650

44 44

1,694 1,694

USEm USem

40 40

€m €m

40 a0

¥m ¥m

1,250 1,250

2010 2009 2010 2009

Number of shares Number of shares £m £m
1,547,280,932 1,541,680,932 1,547 1,542
21,394,458 - 21 -
5,610,361 - 6 -

- 5,600,000 - 5
1,574,285,751 1,547,280,932 1,574 1,547

as explained 1n note 31, on 1 January 2010, as part of a restructunng of the Lloyds Banking Group, Lloyds Banking Group plc's investment in 100 per cent of the
ordinary share capital of HBOS ple was transferred 1o the Bank for a consideration of £21,394 million The consideration was satisfied by the 1ssue of 21,394 458

ordinary shares to Lloyds Banking Group plc

*Dunng 2010, the Bank 1ssued a total of 5,610,361 ord:nary shares as consideration for the redemption of certain preference shares and other subordinated hiabilities

1ssued by the Group (see also note 9)

0n 14 December 2009, the Bank 1ssued 5 6 million ordinary shares to (ts ultimate parent undertaking for a total consideration of £5,600 million, these shares were
1ssued In order o maintain the Bank's capital following payment of the Government Asset Protection Scheme fee and the subvention payment (note 11)

Issued and fully paid preference shares

The Bank has i issue vanous classes of preference shares which are alt classified as ltabilities under IFRS and details of which are shown in note 45

47 Share premium account

At 1 January

Premium ansing on shares 1ssued on the transfer of HBOS

Premium ansing on other share i1ssues in 2010
Premium ansing on capital injection in 2009
At 31 December

See note 46 for further details on share issues in 2010 and 2009
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Group and Bank

2010 2009
£m £m
8,555 2,960
21,373 -
5,605 -
- 5595
35,533 8,555




Notes to the accounts

Lloyds TSB Bank plc

48 Other reserves

Other reserves comprise

Merger reserve

Revaluation reserve 1n respect of available-for-sale financial assets
Cash fiow hedging reserve

Foreign currency transiation reserve

At 31 December

Movements 1n other reserves were as follows

Merger reserve

At 1 January

Reserve ansing on transfer of HBOS (notes 1 and 31)
At 31 December

Revaluation reserve in respect of avallable-for-sale financial assets

At t January

As previously stated
Prior year adjustment
Restated (note 1)

Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
Change In fair value atinbutable to non-controlling interests
Deferred tax

Cuirrent tax

Income statement transfers
Disposals (see note 9)
Deferred tax

Impairment
Deferred tax

Other transfers
Deferred tax

At 31 Decemnber

Cash flow hedging reserve

At 1 January

Change in fair value of hedging denvatives
Deferred tax

Current tax

Income statement transfer
Deferred tax

At 31 December
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The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £Em
6,348 - - -
(943} (1,441) 259 {399)
{125) (30) (10) (30)
8 129 116 99
5,272 (1,342) 365 {330}
The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m Em £m £Em
6,348 - - -
6,348 - - -
The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
(2,982)
131
(1,441) (2,851) (399) {(361)
1,231 1,605 924 {24)
- (1} - -
(460) (206} (252) 20
8 (2) - -
763 1,396 672 (4)
(399 (1) ] (1)
106 (2) (3) (2)
(293) (3} 3 {3)
114 44 21 15
(5) (6) (6) (4)
109 38 15 11
(110) (29) (44) {58}
29 8 12 16
{81) {21) (32) (42)
(943) (1,441) 259 (399)
The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£Em £m £m £m
(30) (15) (30) (15)
(1,062) (4) (13} {4)
277 1 2) 1
(3) - - —
(788) (3) (15} {3)
932 (17) 41 (17)
(239) 5 {6) 5
693 (12) 35 (12)
(125) (30) (10) (30)
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48 Other reserves (continued)

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Foreign currency translatien reserve
At 1 January 129 173 99 127
Currency transtation differences arnising in the year 25 (676) 17 (28}
Fareign currency losses on net investment hedges (162) 814 - -
Current tax - 176 - -
Deferred tax - (358) - -
(162) 632 - -
At 31 December (8) 129 116 99
49 Retained profits The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January
As previously stated 7,588
Prior year adjustment (131)
Restated (note 1) 4,660 7,457 1,051 2,960
Loss for the year (155) (2,797} (280) (1,909}
Employee share option schemes — value of employee services 7 - - -
At 31 December 4,512 4,660 771 1,051

'No income statemerit has been shown Jor the Bank, as permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006

50 Ordinary dividends

No dividends were paid on the Bank's ordinary shares in 2010 or 2009

In November 2009, as part of the restructuning plan that was a requirement for European Commission approval of state aid received by the Lloyds Banking Group,
Lioyds Banking Group plc agreed to suspend the payment of coupons and dividends on certain preference shares and preferred secunties for the two year peniod
from 31 January 2010 to 31 January 2012 Lloyds Banking Group plc has also agreed to temporanly suspend and/or wave dividend payments on certain preference
shares which have been issued Intra-group Consequently, in accordance with the terms of some of these instruments, the Bank 1s prevented from making dividend
payments on its ardinary shares during this pencd

51 Share-based payments

Share-based payment scheme details
Dunng the year ended 31 December 2010 Lloyds Banking Group plc operated a number of share-based payment schemes for which emplayees of the Lloyds TSB
Bank Group were eligible and all of which are equity settled Details of all schemes operated by Lioyds Banking Group are set out below

Deferred bonus plan
Bonuses n respect of the performance in 2010 of employees within certain of the Group's bonus plans have been recognised In these financial statements in full

Lloyds Banking Broup executive share option schemes

The executive share option schemes were long-term incentive schemes avatlable to certain senior executives of the Group, with grants usually made annually Optrons
were granted withen hmits set by the rules of the schemes refating to the number of shares under option and the price payable on the exercise of options The last
grant of executive options was made 1n Augusi 2005 These options were granted without a performance multipler and the maximurn limit for the grant of opttons
i normal circumsiances was three times annual salary Between April 2001 and August 2004, the aggregate value of the award based upon the market price at
the date of grant could not exceed four times the executive's annual remuneration and, normally, the imit for the grant of options to an execuiive In any one year
would be equal to 1 5 times annual salary with 8 maximum performance multiplier of 3 5 Prior to 18 Apnil 2001, the normal imit was equa! to one year's
remuneration and no performance multiplier was applied

Performance conditions for executive options

For ophons granted up to March 2001

The performance condition was that growth in earnings per share must be equal to the aggregate percentage change in the Retail Prices Index plus three percentage
points for each complete year of the relevant period together with a further condition that Lioyds Banking Group pic's ranking based on total shareholder return
(calculated by reference to both dividends and growth in share price) over the relevant pencd should be 10 the top fifty companies of the FTSE 100

The relevant penod for the performance conditions began at the end of the financial year preceding the date of grant and conbnued until the end of the third
subsequent year following commencemnent or, If not met, the end of such later year in winch the conditions were met Once the conditions were satisfied the options
remained exercisable without further conditions If they were not satisfied by the tenth anniversary of the grant the options would {apse
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For aplions granted from August 2001 to August 2004
The performance condiion was linked o the performance of Lioyds Banking Group ple's totat shareholder return (calculated by reference to both dividends and
growth n share price} against a comparator group of 17 companies including Lloyds Banking Group plc

The performance condiion was measured over a three year period which commenced at the end of the financial year preceding the grant of the option and continued
until the end of the third subsequent year If the performance condition was not then met, it was measured at the end of the fourth financial year If the condition
was not then met, the options would lapse

To meet the performance conditions, the Group's ranking against the comparator group was required to be at least mnth The full grant of options only became
exercisable if the Group was ranked first A performance muitiphier {of between mil and 100 per cent} was apphied below this level to calculate the number of shares
in respect of which options granted to executive directors would become exercisable, and were calculated on a shiding scale If Lioyds Banking Group plc was ranked
below median the options would not be exercisable

Options granted to sentor executives other than executive directors were not so highly leveraged and, as a r1esult, different performance muitipliers were applied to
their options  For the majority of executives, ophions were granted with the performance condition but with no performance multipher

Options granted 1n 2004 became exercisable as the performance condition was met on the re-test The performance condition vested at 14 per cent for executive
directors, 24 per cent for managing directors, and 100 per gent for alt other executives

For options granted in 2005
The same conditions applied as for grants made up to August 2004, except that

- The performance condition was linked to the performance of Lioyds Banking Group plc's total shareholder return {calcutated by reference to both dwdends and
growth in share price) against a comparator group of 15 companies including Utoyds Banking Group plc,

— If the performance condition was not met at the end of the third subsequent year, the options would lapse, and

- The full grant of options became exercisable only if the Group was ranked in the top four places of the comparator group A sliding scale applied between fourth
and eighth positons If Lloyds Banking Group was ranked below the median {mnth or below) the options would lapse

Options granted i 2005 became exercisable as the performance condition was met when tested The performance conditon vested at 82 5 per cent for all options
granted

Movements in the number of share options outstanding under the executive share option schemes during 2009 and 2010 are set out below

2010 2009
Werghted Werghted
AvVErage exercise average exercise
Rumber of options price (pence)  Mumber of options price {pence)
QOutstanding at 1 January 8,784,978 476 56 11,203,628 490 0b
Rebasement adjustment 7,523,547 {26 43} - -
Exercised - - - -
Forfeted (2,945,224) 296 36 {2,418,650) 536 46
Outstanding at 31 December 13,363,301 23309 8,784,978 476 56
Exercisable at 31 December 13,363,301 23309 8,784,978 476 56

No options were exercised dunng 2010 or 2009 The weighted average remaining contractual ife of aptions outstanding at the end of the year was 3 6 years (2009
4 3 years)

Options granted under this plan were adjusted on 13 August 2010 as a result of the Capitalisation Issue, the Placing and Compensatory Open Offer and the Rights
Issue of 2009 The adjustment was made using a standard Her Majesty's Revenue & Customs (HMRC) formula, to negate the ditutionary impact of the above
corporate actions

Save-As-You-Earn schemes

Eligible employees may enter into contracts through the Save-As-You-Eam schemes to save up to £250 per month and, at the expiry of a fixed term of three, five or
seven years, have the option 10 use these savings within six months of the expiry of the fixed term to acquire shares n the Group at a discounted price of no less
than 80 per cent of the market price at the start of the invitation
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Movements in the number of share options outstanding under the SAYE schemes are set out below

2010 2009
Weighted Weighted
average exercisé average exercise
Number of options price {pence) Number of options price (pence)
Cutstanding at 1 January 130,133,992 147 69 190,478,449 152 54
Ad)justment on acquisition - - 53,755,275 41521
Rebasement adjustment 22,382,641 {416 83) - -
Granted 655,712,663 46 78 - -
Exercised (195,339) 49 30 - -
Forfeited (13,922,185} 57 34 (S,581,800) 40093
Cancelled (107,144,275) 66 53 (93,599,380) 206 07
Expired (18,923,463) 179 35 (10,918,552) 470 16
Outstanding at 31 December 668,044,034 49 59 130,133,992 177 60
Exercisable at 31 December 663,942 172 93 754,554 317 32

The weighted average share price at the time that options were exercised dunng 2010 was £0 63 (2009 £nil} The weghted average remaining contractual Iife of
options outstanding at the end of the year was 2 7 years (2009 2 7 years)

The weighted average fair value of SAYE options granted during 2010 was £0 33 (2009 £ni} The values for the SAYE options have been determined using a
standard Black-Scholes model

For the HBOS sharesave plan, no options were exercised during 2010 or 2009 The options outstanding at 31 December 2010 had an exercise prce of £1 8066
(2009 E3 64) and a weighted average remairing contractual life of 2 9 years (2009 4 O years)

Options granted under these plans were adjusted on 13 August 2010 as a result of the Capitaliszhion 1ssue, the Placing and Compensatory Open Offer and the Rights
Issue of 2009 The adjustrment was made using a standard HMRC formula, to negate the dilutonary impact of the above corporate actions

Other share option plans

Lloyds Banking Group Executive Share Plan 2003

The plan was adopted in December 2003 and under the plan share options may be granted to senor employees Options under this plan have been granted
specifically to facilitate recruitment and as such were hot subject to any performance conditons The plan’s usage has now been extended to not only compensate
new recruits for any lost share aweards but also to make grants to key individuals for retention purpeses with, in some Instances, the grant being made subject to
individual performance conditions

2010 2008
Weighted Weighted
average exercise average exercise
Number of options pnice (pence) Number of options price (pence)
Outstanding at 1 January 26,099,185 Nil 857,611 Nt
Granted 13,429,561 Nil 24,704,070 N
Rebasement adjustment 12,501,246 Nil 1,876,005 Nil
Exercised {2,661,703) N1 (157,105) Nil
Forfeited {1,673,532) Nil (1,181,396) Nil
Qutstanding at 31 December 47,694,757 Nil 26,099,185 Nil
Exercisable at 31 December - Nil 33,794 Nil

The weighted average fair value of options granted in the year was £0 63 (2009 £0 68) The weighted average share price at the time that the ophions were
exercised durning 2010 was £0 63 (2009 £0 71) The weightec average remaining contractual life of options cutstanding at the end of the year was 2 4 years
(2009 3 0 years)

Options granted under this plan were adjusted on 2 July 2009 as a result of the Placing and Compensatory Open Offer and on 13 August 2010 as a result of the
Capitalisation Issue and Rights Issue of 2009 The adjustments were made, where applicable, using a standard HMRC formula, to negate the dilutionary impact of
the above corporate actions

82




Lloyds TSB Bank pic
Notes to the accounts

51 Share-based payments (continued})

HBOS share option plans

The table below detarls the outstanding options for the HBOS Share Option Plan, the St fames's Place Share Qption Plan, and the 1995 and 1996 Bank of Scottand
Executive Stock Option schemes The final award under the HBOS Share Option Plan was made in 2004 Under this plan, options over shares, at market value with
a face value equal to 20 per cent of salary, were granted to employees with the exception of certain sentor executives A separate option plan exists for some partners
of St James's Place, which grants options in respect of Lloyds Banking Group pic shares The final award under the St James's Place Share Option Plan was made
In 2009 Movements in the number of share options outstanding under these schemes are set out below

2010 2009
Weighted Weighted
average exercise average exercise
Number of ophons price (pence) Number of opticns prnce (pence}
Quistanding at 1 January (16 January 2009} 14,301,748 880 27 13,040,430 1,167 26
Rebasement adjustment 12,899,990 (61 23) - -
Granted - - 4,040 555 104 50
Forfeited (2,506,244) 611 90 (2,779,237) 1,099 G2
OQutstanding at 31 December 24,695,494 41570 14,301,748 880 27
Exercisable at 31 December 15,320,780 593 79 9,198,557 1,169 14

No options were exercised during 2010 or 2009 The options outstanding under the HBOS Share Option Plan and St James's Place Share Option Plan at
31 December 2010 had exercise prices in the range of £0 5183 10 £8 7189 (2009 £1 05 to £17 576) and a weighted average remaining contractual ife of 3 O
years

No options were outstanding under the Bank of Scotland Executive Stock Option schemes at 31 December 2010 Options outstanding at 31 December 2009 had
exercise prices in the range of £8 834 to £10 009 and a werghted average remaining contractual hfe of O 8 years

COplions granted uncer these plans were adjusted on 13 August 2010 as a result of the Capitahisation Issue, the Placing and Compensatory Open
Offer and the Rights Issue of 2009 The adjustment was made using a standard HMRC formula, to negate the dilutionary impact of the above carporate actions

Qther share plans

Ltoyds Banking Group Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) intreduced in 2006 1s aimed at delivering shareholder value by hnking the receipt of shares to an improvement in the
performance of the Group over a three year penod Awards are made within limits set by the rules of the plan, with the imits determining the maximum number of
shares that can be awarded equating to three times annual salary In exceptional circumstances this may increase to four imes annual salary

The performance conditions for awards made in March and August 2007 are as follows

(1) For 50 per cent of the award (the EPS Award) - the percentage increase in earnings per share of the Group (on a compound annualised basis) over the relevant
period needed 1o be at least an average of 6 percentage ponts per annum greater than the percentage increase (f any) in the Retail Prices Index over the same
period If it was less than 3 per cent per annum the EPS Award would lapse If the increase was more than 3 per cent but less than 6 per cent per annum then
the proportion of shares released would be on a straight ling basis between 17 5 per cent and 100 per cent The relevant penod commenced on 1 January
2007 and ended on 31 December 2009

(1) For the other 50 per cent of the award (the TSR Award) — it was necessary for the Group's total shareholder return (calculated by reference to both dividends
and growth 1in share price) to exceed the median ¢f a comparator group {14 companies) over the relevant period by an average of 7 & per cent per annum for
the TSR Award to vest in full 17 5 per ¢cent of the TSR Award would vest where the Group's total shareholder return was equal to median and vesting would
occur on a straight line basis in between these points Where the Group's total sharehelder return was below the median of the comparator group, the TSR Award
would lapse The relevant perod commenced on 8 March 2007 and ended on 7 March 2010

As a consequence of the acquisition of HBOS and the general market turmaoil, 1in March 2009 the Remuneration Committee decided that the performance test for
the 2007 awards should be based on the performance of the Group up to 17 September 2008, the date prior to the announcement of the HBOS acquisition The
performance test was on a fair value basis, on the estimated probatulity, as at that date, of achieving the performance conditions As a consequence, for all
participants, other than those who were executive directors at the time the award was granted and a small number of other senior executives, the share awards vested
at 31 per cent in March 2010

The performance conditions for awards made 1 March, April and August 2008 are as follows

(1) For 50 per cent of the award (the EPS Award) - the performance condition 15 as described for the 2007 awards with the relevant performance period
cemmencing on 1 January 2008 and ending on 31 December 2010

(n) For the other 50 per cent of the award (the TSR Award) ~ the performance condition 15 as described for the 2007 awards, except that the comparator group
compnses of 13 companies, with the relevant performance period commencing on 6 March 2008 (the date of the first award) and ending on 5 March 2011

The current LTIP rules allow for awards te be made of up to 400 per cent of base salary Under normal circumstances awards are made of 300 per cent of salary
with the additional 100 per cent available for csrcumstances that the Remuneration Commitiee deems 1o be exceptional In 2008, awards were made of 375 per cent
of base salary to the chief executive and two of the executive directors for retention purposes, and in light of data reviewed by the committee which showed total
remuneration to be behind medtan both for the FTSE 2Q, and the other major UK banks

As for the 2007 LTIP awards, as a consequence of the acquisition of HBOS and the general market turmoil, in March 2009 the Remuneration Committee decided
that the performance test for the 2008 awards should be based on the performance of the Group up to 17 September 2008, the date prior to the announcement of
the HBOS acquisition The performance test was on a far value basis, on the estimated probability, as at that date, of achieving the performance conditions As a
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consequence, for all participants, other than those who were executive directors at the tme the award was granted and a small number of other senior executives,
the share awards will vest at 29 per cent in March 2011

The performance conditions for awards made 1n Aprii, May and September 2009 are as follows

{n EPS relevant to 5C per cent of the award Performance will be measured on the extent to which the growth in EPS achieves cumulative EPS targets over the
three-year penod

If the growth in EPS reaches 26 per cent, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshold, will vest {f growth in EPS reaches 36 per cent,
100 per cent of this element will vest

{n} Economic profit relevant to 50 per cent of the award Performance will te measured based on the extent to which cumulative economic profit targets are
achieved over the three-year penod

If the absolute imprevement in adjusted economic profit reaches 100 per cent, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshold, will vest If the
absolute iImprovement in adjusted economic profit reaches 202 per cent, 100 per cent of this element will vest

The EPS and economic profit performance measures applying to this 2009 LTIP award were set on the basis that the Group would enter intg the Government Assat
Protection Scheme As the Group 15 not participating in the Government Asset Protection Scheme, in June 2010 tire Remuneration Committee approved restated
performance measures on a basis consistent with the EPS and economic profit measures used for the 2010 LTIP awards

An additional discretionary award was made 1n April, May and September 2009 The performance condi ions for those awards are as follows

(1) Synergy savings The release of 50 per cent of the shares will be dependent on the achievement of target run-rate synergy savings in 2009 and 2010 as well
as the achievement of sustainable synergy savings of at least £1 5 billion by the end of 2011 The award will be brcken down into three equally weighted annual
tranches Performance will be assessed at the end of each year aganst annual performance targets based on a trajectory to meet the 2011 target The extent to
which targets have been achieved will determine the proportion of shares to be banked each year Any release of shares will be subject to the Remuneration
Committee judging the overall success of the delivery of the integration programme

(n) Integration balanced scorecard The release of the remaining 50 per cent of the shares will be dependent on the outcome of a Balanced Scorecard of non-
financial measures of the success of the integration in each of 2009, 2010 ang 2011 The Balanced scorecard element will be broken down into three equally
weighted tranches The tranches wull be crystatlised and hanked for each year of the performance cycle subject to separate annual performance targets across
the four measurement categonies of Building the Business, Customer, Risk and People and Qrganisation Development

Performance aganst the first two years of the award has been assessed and all targets have been met or exceeded
The performance conditions for awards made in March and August 2010 are as follows

(1} EPS relevant to 50 per cent of the award Performance will be measured based on absolute improvement in adjusted EPS over the three financial years starting
on 1 January 2010 relative to an adjusted fully diluted 2009 EPS base

If the absolute y/mprovement iy adjusted EPS reaches 158 per cent, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshold, wili vest If absolute
improvement in adjusted EPS reaches 180 per cent, 100 per cent of this element will vest

Vesting between threshold and maximum will te on a straight line basis

(11} Economuc profit relevant to 50 per cent of the award Performance will be measured based on the compound annual growth rate of adjusted economic profit
aver the three financial years starting on 1 January 2010 relative to an adjusted 2009 economic profit base

If the compounded annual growth rate of adjusted Economic Proht reaches 57 per cent per annum, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshold,
will vest If the compounded annual growth rate of adjusted economic profit reaches 77 per cent per annum, 100 per cent of this element wii vest

Vesting between threshold and maximum will be on a straight line basis

For awards made to executive directors, a third performance condition was set, relating to Absolute Share Price, relevant to 28 per cent of the award Performance
will be measured based on the Absolute Share Price on 26 March 2013, being the third anniversary of the awarg date If the share price at the end of the
performance per:od 15 75 pence of less, none of this element of the award will vest |f the share price 1s 114 pence or higher, 100 per cent of this element will vest
Vesting between threshold and maximum wiil be on a straight ine basis, provided that shares comprised in tha Absofute Share Pnce element may only be released
if both the EPS and economic profit performance measures have been satisfied at the threshold level or above The EPS and economic profit performance conditions
will each relate t¢ 36 per cent of the total award

2010 2009

Number of Number ot

shares shares

Qutstanding at 1 January 223,233,052 22,237,282
Granted 148,810,551 199,293,192
Rebasermnent adjustment 106,990,259 10,443,102
Forferted (31,891,411) (8,740,524)
Qutstanding at 31 December 447,142,491 223,233,052

The fair value of the share awards granted in 2010 was £0 61 {2009 £068)
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Condibional awards of shares made undler this plan were adjusted on 2 July 2009 as a result of the Placing and Compensatory Open Offer and on 13 August 2010
as a result of the Capitalisation Issue and Rights Issue of 2009 The adjustments were made, where applicable, using a standard HMRC formula, to negate the
diluticnary impact of the above cerperate actions

Performance share plan

Under the performance share plan, introduced during 2005, participating executives would have been ehgible for an award of free shares, known as performance
shares, to match the bonus shares awarded as part of theirr 2004 and 2005 bonus The maximum match was two performance shares for each bonus share,
awarded at the end of a three year period The actual number of shares which would have been awarded was dependent on the Group's total shareholder return
performance measured over a three year period, compared to other cempanies in the cemparator group The maximum of two performance shares for each bonus
share would have been awarded only if the Group's total shareholder return performance placed it first in the comparator group, one performance share for each
honus share would have been granted If the Group was placed fifth, and one performance share for every two bonus shares f the Group was placed eighth (median}
Between first and fifth position, and fifth and eighth position, shding scales would have apphed If the total shareholder return performance was below median, no
performance shares would have been awarded There was no retest Whalst income tax and national insurance were deducted from the bonus before deferral into
the plan, where a match of performance shares was justified, these shares would have been awarded as if Income tax and national insurance had not been deducted

The perfermance condition attached to the March 2006 award was not met, with Lloyds Banking Group ranked in ninth place Bonus shares were released on 20
March 2009, at which time the performance shares lapsed

2010 2009

Number of Number of

shares shares

Cutstanding at 1 January - 941,324
Lapsed - {941,324)

Qutstanding at 31 December - -

The ranges of exercise prices, weighted average exercise prices, weighted average remaining contractual life and number of options outstanding fer the option
schemes were as follows

Executive schemes SAYE schemes Qther share option plans
Weighted Weighted Weighted
average Weighted average Weighted average Weighted
exercise average exercise average exergise average
price  remamng hfe Number of price  remaining hie Number of price  remaining hfe Number of
{pence) (years) ophtions (pence) {years} oph (pence} (years) options
31 December 2010
Exercise price range
£0to £1 - - - 47 74 27 658,912,847 741 25 55,656,496
£1to£2 199 91 36 262,725 178 74 28 7,984,764 - - -
£2t0£3 225 83 39 12,052,934 21074 14 1,146,423 - - -
£3to £4 324 92 02 1,047,642 - - - - - -
£ £6 - - - - - - 567 65 29 15,462,949
Executive schemes SAYE schemes Qther share option plans
Weighted Weighted Welighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average average average
exercise price  remaining |ife Number of  exercise pnice  remaining life Number of  exercise price  remaming life Number of
{pence) (years) options (pence) (years) options (pence) (years) options
31 December 2009
Exercise price range
£Cto £1 - - - - - - Nil 31 26,099,185
£lto£2 - - - 139 Q0 25 107,939,699 104 50 23 4,019,026
E210£3 - - - 22098 39 18,054,765 - - -
£3to L4 - - - 34918 20 2,842,644 394 64 52 721,886
£4t0 £5 464 19 49 7 526,441 427 04 18 1,296,884 499 91 02 273,986
ES5to £6 552 02 02 515,527 - - - 573 60 06 53,328
E6to £/ 653 55 12 743,010 - - - 640 00 oc 2,388,026
£7 to £8 - - - - - - 707 40 02 6,845,496
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The fair val teul December 2010 for grants made in the year are based on the following assumptions
e fair value catculations at 31 Decemb 0 g el v g pl Other optwan Other share

SAYE schemes plans
Risk-free interest rate 1 80% 0 76% 133%
Expected lfe 3 0 years 1-5 years 2-4 years
Expected volatility 85% 83% 70%
Expected daidend yeld 14% 05% 09%
Weighted average share price 059 067 067
Weighted average exercise price 048 Nil Nil
Expected forfeitures 4% 4% 4%

Expected volatiity 1S @ measure of the ameunt by which the Group's shares are expected 10 fluctuate during the life of an cption The expected volatilty 1s estimated
based on the histoncal volatility of the closing daily share price over the most recent period that 1s commensurate with the expected hfe of the option The histoncal
volatiity s compared to the implied velatility generated from market traded optrons in the Group's shares to assess the reascnableness of the histoncal volatility and
adjustments made where approprate

Share incentive plan

Froe shares

An award of shares may be made annually to employees based on a percentage of each employee's salary in the preceding year up to a maximum of £3,000 The
percentage 1s normatly announced concurrently with the Group's annual results and the price of the shares awarded 15 announced at the time of award The shares
awarded are held in trust for a mandatory penod of three years on the employee’s behalf, during which penod the employee 1s entitled to any dividends paid on such
shares The award 1s subject to a non-market based condition if an employee leaves the Group within this three year penod for other than a 'good’ reascn, all of the
shares awarded will be forfeited

No free shares were awarded (n 2009 or 2010

Matching shares

The Group undertakes to match shares purchased by employees up to the value of £30 per month, these shares are held in trust for a mandatory peried of three
years on the employees’ behalf, during which period the employee 1s entitled to any dividends paid cn such shares The award 1$ subject t0 a non-market based
condition 1f an employee leaves within this three year genied for other than a ‘goed’ reason, 100 per cent of the matching shares are forfeited Similarly if the
employees seli their purchased shares within three years, their matching shares are forferted

The number of shares awarded relating to matching shares in 2010 was 17,411,651 (2009 16,746,310), with an average farr vaiue of £0 63 (2009 £0 69),
based on market prices at the date of award

52 Related party transactions

Key management personnel
Key management personnel are those persons having authonty and responsitihity for planming, directing and controlling the activities of an entity, the Group's key
management perscnnel are the members of the Lloyds Banking Group plc group executive committee together with 1ts non-executive directors

As detalled 1in note 31, HBOS plc became a subsidiary of the Bank on 1 January 2010 and the compensation below reflects the increase in the amount of key
management perscnnel tme devoted to the Bank and its subsichanes

The table below details, on an aggregated basis, key management personnel compensation

2010 2009
£m £m

Compensation
Salares and other short-term benefits 15 8
Post-employment benefits 2 1
Total compensation 17 9

The aggregate of the emoluments of the directors was £10 6 millien (2003 £5 G million)

The number of directors to whom retirement benefits were accruing under defined contnibution and defined benefit pensicn schemes were three and two respectively
(2009 three and two) Aggregate company contributions in respect of directors 1o defined contribution pension schemes were £435,000 (2008 £214,000)

The total for the highest paid director J E Daniels was £2,572,000 {2009 (G T Tate) £903,000), this did not include any gain on exercise of Lioyds Banking Group plc
shares in either year

2010 2009
rmillien milfion

Share options over Lloyds Banking Group plc shares
At 1 January 2 2
Granted, including certain adjusiments (includes entittements of appointed directors)! 4 -
At 31 December 3] 2

! Adjustments have been made, using a standard HMRC formula, to negate the dilutionary impact of the Lioyds Banking Group's 2009 capital raising activities
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2010 2009
rmllion mithon

Share plans settled in Lloyds Banking Group plc shares
At 1 January 19 7
Granted, mcluding certain adjustments (includes entitlements of appointed directors)? 39 17
Exercised/lapsed (includes entitlements of former directors) (2} (5
At 31 December 56 19

! Adjustments have been made, using a standard HMRC formula, to negate the dilubionary impact of the Lioyds Banking Group’s 2009 capital raising activities

The tables below detail, on an aggregated basis, balances outstanding at the year end and related income and expense fogether with information relating to other
transactions between the Group and its key management personnel

2010 2009
£m £m

Loans
At 1 January 2 3
Advanced (includes loans of appomnted directors) 2 -
Repayments {includes loans of former directors) (1) (1)
At 31 December 3 2

The loans are on both a secured and unsecured basis and are expected to be settled in cash The loans attracted nterest rates of between 0 50 per cent and
17 90 per cent in 2010 (2009 1 28 per cent and 24 90 per cent}

No provisions have been recegnised in respect of loans given to key management personnel (2009 £nil)

2010 2009
£m £m

Deposits
At 1 January 4 6
Placed {includes deposits of appointed directors) 12 12
Withdrawn (includes deposs of former directors) (12) (14)
At 31 December 4 4

Deposits placed by key management personnel attracted interest rates of up to 4 25 per cent (2009 & 50 per cent)
At 31 December 2G10, the Group did not provide any guarantees in respect of key management personnel (2009 £mil)

At 31 December 2010, transactions, arrangements and agreements entered intc by the Group and its banking subsidiaries with directors and connected persons
included amounts outstanding in respect of loans and credit card transactions of £2 mullion with six directors and four connected persons (2009 £2 million with
seven directors and four connected persons)

Balances and transactions with fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings

Balances and transachons between members of the Lloyds TSB Bank group
In accordance with [AS 27, transactions and balances between the Bank and its subsidiary undertakings, and between those subsidiary undertakings, have all been
eliminated on consolidation and thus are not reported as related party transactions of the Group

The Bank, as a result of its position as parent of a banking group, has a large number of transacttons with various of its subsidiary undertakings, these are included on
the batance sheet of the Bank as follows

2010 2009
£m £m

Assets, included within
Denvative financial instrurnents 2,136 301

Loans and recevables

Leans and advances to banks 145,542 29,046
Leans and advances to customers 50,188 47,021
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 5,046 -

202,912 76,368

Liatulities, included within

Deposits from banks 80,476 21,369
Customer deposits 41,181 27,800
Denvative financal instruments 1,775 302
Debt secunities in i1ssue 5,167 3,410
Subordinated Labilities 37 677

128,636 53,558

Due to the size and volume of transactions passing through these accounts 1t 1s netther practical nor meaningful to disclose information on gross inflows and outflows
Dunng 2010 the Bank earned interest income on the above asset balances of £2,176 million (2009 £1,826 million) and incurred interest expense on the above
lability balances of £1,565 million {2009 £1,364 million)
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In addition, the Bank raised recharges of E660 mullion (2009 £505 million) on sts subsidiaries in respect of costs incurred and also received fees of £278 mulhon
(2009 £411 muthon), and paid fees of £387 mullion (2009 £322 miltion), for various services provided between the Bank and its subsidiaries

Detads of conuingent habilities and commitmentis entered into on behalf of fellow Ligyds Banking Group undertakings are given i note 53

Balances and transactions with Hoyds Banking Group plc
The Bank and its subsidianes have balances due to and from the Bank's parent company, Lloyds Banking Group plc and fetflow subsidianies of the Bank These are
inctuded on the balance sheet as follows

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Assets, included within
Derivative financial instruments - 923 - 923
Loans and receivables
Loans and advances to banks - 150,121 - 150,121
Loans and advances to customers 18,492 14,188 13,851 14,088
Other 36 909 36 435

18,528 166,141 13,887 165,667

Liabihties, included within

Deposits fram banks - 86,512 - 86,512
Customer deposits 22,633 18,387 16,098 17,986
Derivative financial instrumenis 487 1,195 487 1,185
Subordinated liabilities 4,686 5.896 4,434 5,672
Debt securities n 1ssue - 671 - 391

27,806 112661 21,019 111,656

These balances include Lioyds Banking Group plc’s banking arrangements and, due to the size and velume of transactions passing through these accounts, it 15
neither practical nor meaningful to disclose information on gross inflows and outllows Dunng 2010 the Group earned £373 million and the Bank earned
£321 mullion interest income on the above asset balances (2009 Group £746 mition, Bank £724 milhon), the Group incurred £1,215 millton and the Bank
incurred £950 million interest expense an the above liability balances (2009 Group £554 millan, Bank £547 miliion}

HM Treasury

In January 2009, HM Treasury became a related party of Lloyds Banking Group pic¢, the Bank’s parent company, following its subscription for ordinary shares 1ssued
under a placing and open offer As at 31 December 2010, HM Treasury held a 41 per cent interest (December 2009 43 per cent) in Lioyds Banking Group plc's
ordinary share capital and consequently HM Treasury remained a related party of the Bank and its subsidianies throughout 2010

Capital transactions
Durning 2010 there were no further subscriptions by HM Treasury for Uloyds Banking Group pic's ordinary or preference share capital, with the decline in the
percentage of ordinary shares held by HM Treasury reflecting the 1ssuance by Lloyds Banking Group plc of ordinary shares

Lending commutments

On 23 March 2010, Lloyds Banking Group plc entered into a deed poll in favour of HM Treasury, the Department for Business, Inngvation and Skills and the
Departments for Commurnities and Local Government confirming its lending commitrents for the 12 month penod commencing 1 March 2010 Uoyds Banking
Group plc agreed, subject 1o, amongst other things, sufficient customer demand, to provide grass new lending to UK businesses of £44,000 million and to adjust
the undertakings (but not the level of lending agreed in 2003} given in connecticn with tending to homeowners for the 12 manth perigd This additional lending 15
expressed 1o be subject to the Group's prevail:ng commercial terms and concditions (ncluding pricing and nsk assessment) and, i relation to mortgage tending, the
Group's standard credit 2nd other acceptance critena

Credit Guarantee Scheme

HM Treasury launched the Credit Guarantee Scheme in October 2008 as part of a range of measures anncunced by the UK Government intended 1o ease the
turbulence in the UK banking system [t charges a commercial fee for the guarantee of new short and medum-term debt issuance The fee payable to HM Treasury
on guaranteed 155ues 15 hased on a per annum rate of 30 basis points plus the median five-year credit default swap spread At 31 December 2010, the Group had
£45,308 muillion (2009 £40,345 millicn) of debt 1ssued under the Credit Guarantee Scheme Duning 2010, the Group redeemed £4,987 milhion of bonds The
Group's Income statement mcludes fees of £454 milhion (2009 £262 millign} payable to HM Treasury in respect of guaranteed funding

There were no other matenat transactions between the Group and HM Treasury during 2010 that were not made in the ordinary course of busingss or that were
unusual in their nature or conditions

Other related party transactions

Pensions funds

The Group provides banking and some investment management services to certain of the Group pension funds At 31 December 2010, customer deposits of
£64 milhon (2009 £53 mullion) and investment and insurance contract habilities of £850 milhion (2009 £nil) related to the Group's pension funds

QEICs

The Group manages 402 (2002 109) Open Ended Investment Companies (QEICs), and of these 111 (2009 47) are consohdated The Group nvested
£1,460 million (2009 £412 nwllion) and redeemed £982 million (2009 £362 mullion) in the unconsolidated OEICs duning the year and had investments, at fair
value, of £7,920 million (2009 £3,365 million) at 31 December The Group earned fees of £271 million from the unconsolidated OEICs (2009 £188 mullign)
The Bank held no investmenis i QEICs at any ttme during 2009 or 2010
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Taxation
Group relief was surrendered for no payment as per note 15

Joint ventures and associates

The Group provides both administration and processing services to its principal joint venture, Sainsbury’s Bank plc The amounts recewvable by the Group during the
year were £31 milion (2009 £nil}, of which £8 million was outstanding at 31 December 2810 (2009 £nil} At 31 December 2010, Sainsbury's Bank plc aiso
had balances with the Group that were incluged in lpans and advances to banks of £1,277 mithion (2009 £ni#) and deposis by banks of £1,358 million
(2009 Enil)

At 31 December 2010 there were loans and advances to customers of £5,660 million (2009 £nil) outstanding and balances within customer deposits of
£151 millien (2009 £nil) refating to other joint ventures and associates

In addition to the above balances, the Group has a number of other associates held by its venture capital business that t accounts for at fair value through profit or
loss At 31 December 2010, these companies had total assets of approxmately £12,216 milion (2009 £3,024 million), total liabilities of approximately
£15,853 millon (2009 £3,194 millson} and for the year ended 31 December 2010 had tuincver of approximately £3,829 milhon (2009 £1,804 mullien) and
made a net peofit of approximately £182 million {2009 net loss of £80 milhon) In addition, the Group has provided £3,316 milbon {2008 £868 mullion) of
finanging to these companies on which it received £93 mullion (2009 £51 mullion) of interest iIncome n the year

53 Contingent habilities and commitments

Unarranged cverdraft charges
tn April 2007, the Office of Far Trading (GFT) commenced an investigation into the fairness of personal current accounts and unarranged overdraft charges At the
same time, It commenced a market study into wider questions about competition and price transparency In the provision of personal current accounts

The Supreme Court published 1ts judgment in respect of the fawness of unarranged cverdrafi charges on personal current accounts on 25 Novemnber 2009, finding
tn favour of the Imgant banks On 22 December 2009, the OFT announced that it will not continue its investigation into the faimess of these charges The Group 1S
working with the regulators to ensure that outstanding custemer complaints are concluded as quickly as possible and antiiipates that most cases in the county courts
will be discontnued The Group expects that some custormers will argue that despite the test case ruling they are entitled to a refund of unarranged overdraft charges
on the basis of other lega! arguments or challenges It 15 not practicable to quantify the claims The Group 1s robustly defending any such complaints or claims and
does not expect any such complaints or claims to have a material adverse effect on the Group

The OFT however continued to discuss 1ts concerns 1n relation ta the personal cusrent account market with the banks, censumer groups and cther organisations
under the auspices of its Market Study into personal current accounts In Qctober 2009, the OFT published voluntary inihiatives agreed with the industry and
consumer groups o Improve transparency of the costs and benefits of personal current accounts and improvements te the switching process On 16 March 2010
the OFT published a further update anncuncing several further voluntary industry wide initiatives to improve a customer’s ability to contrel whether they used an
unarranged overdraft and to assist those in financial difficulty However, in light of the progress st noted in the unarranged overdraft market since July 2007 and the
progress 1t expects to see over the next two years, 1t has decided to take no further action at this time and will review the unarranged overdraft market again in 2012

Interchange fees

The European Commsston has adopted a formal decision finding that an infningement of European Commussion competition laws has ansen from arrangements
whereby MasterCard 1ssuers charged a umiform fallback interchange fee in respect of cross-border transactions in refation to the use of a MasterCard or Maestro
branded payment card The European Commussion has required that the fee be reduced to zero for retevant cross-border transactions within the European Economic
Area This decision has been appealed to the General Court of the Eurepean Union (the General Court) Loyds TSB Bank plc and Bank of Scotland plc (along with
certain other MasterCard ssuers) have successfully appled to intervene in the appeal in support of MasterCard’s position that the arrangements for the charging of
a uniform fallback interchange fee are compatible with European Commission competition laws  MasterCard has announced that ¢ has reached an understanding
with the European Commussion on a new methodology for calculaiing intra European Economic Area multi-lateral iterchange fees on an interim basis pending the
outcome of the appeal Meanwhile, the European Commission and the UK's OFT are pursuing investigations with a view to deciding whether arrangements adopted
by other payment card schemes for the levying of uniform fallback interchange fees in respect of demestic and/or cross border payment transactions also infninge
European Commussion and/or UK competition laws As part of this initiative, the OFT will also intervene in the General Court appeal supporting the European
Commission's posttion and Visa reached an agreement with the European Commission to reduce the level of interchange for cross-border detut card transactions o
the intenm levels agreed by MasterCard The ultimate impact of the investigations on the Group can only be known at the conclusion of these investigations and any
relevant appeal proceedings

Payment protection insurance
There has been extensive scrutiny of the Payment Pyotection Insurance (PPI) market in recent years

tn Qctober 2010, the UK Competition Commussion (Competition Commisston) confirmed its decision to prohibit the active sale of PPI by a distributor to a customer
withtn seven days of a sale of credit This followed the comgietion of its formal investigation inio the supply of PPI services (other than store card PPI) to non-busingss
customers in the UK in January 2009 and a referral of the preposed prohibition to the Competition Appeal Tnbunal Following an earlier decision to step selling single
premium PPi products, the Group ceased to offer PPI products to its custorners in July 2010

On 1 July 2008, the Financial Ombudsman Service (FOS) referred concerns regarding the handling of PPl complaints to the Financial Services Authonity (FSA) as
an issue of wider ymptication On 29 September 2009 and 9 March 2010, the FSA 1ssued consultation papers on PPI complaints handling The FSA proposed new
guxiance on the fair assessment of a complaint and the calculation of redress and a new rule requining firms to reassess historically rejected complaints The FSA
published its Policy Statement on 10 August 2010, setting out a new set of rules for PPl complaints handling and redress which had to be implemented by
1 December 2010

On 8 October 2010, the Bntish Bankers Asscciation (BBA), the principal trade asscciation for the UK banking and financial services sector, filed an application for
permission to seek judicial review against the FSA and the FOS The BBA 1s seeking an order quashing the FSA policy statement and an order quashing the decision
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of the FOS to determine PP| sales in accordance with the guidance published on its website in November 2008 The Judicial hearing was held in late tanuary 2011
and the judgment {which may be subject to appeal) 1s expected shortly

This legal chatlenge has affected the imptementation of the Policy Staterment, since the challenge has ¢alled into question the standards to be applied when assessing
PPl complaints As a result of that challenge, a large number of complaints cannot be decided until the outcome of the legal challenge 1s clear

The vlttmate impact on the Group of the FSA's complaints handling policy (if implemented in full} and the FOS's most recent approach to PPl complaints coutd be
materiat to the Group's financral position, although the precise effect can onfy be assessed once the legal proceedings have been finally deterrmined and the steps the
Group may be required to take Wdentified and implemented In addition, it 15 not practicable to quantfy the potentiat financial impact of the implementation of the
Policy Statement given the matenal uncertainties around, for example, applicable time periods, the extent of application of root cause analysis, the treatment of
evidence and the ultimate emergence pernod for complaints, driven in large part by the actvities of the claims management companies, all of which wil sigmificantly
affect complaints volumes, uphold rates and redress costs No provision has been made in these financial statements to reflect implementation of the FSA's complaint
handling policy in its current form

The FSA's statement on 29 September 2009 also announced that several firms had agreed to carry out reviews of past sales of single premium loan protection
Insurance The Group has agreed in principle that it witl undertake a review n relation to sales of single premium loan protection insurance made through (ts branch
network since 1 July 2007 The precise details of the review are still being discussed with the FSA The ultimate impact on the Group of any review could be material
but can only be known at the conclusion of these discussions

US sanctions

In January 2009 the Bank announced the settlement 1t had reached with the US Department of Justice and the New York County District Attorney's Office in relation
to therr investigations into histonic WS dollar payment practices involving countries, persons or entities subject to the economic sanctions administered sy the US
Ofiice of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC) On 22 December 2009 OFAC announced the settlement it had reached with the Bank in relation to its investigation and
confirmed that the settlement sum due to QFAC had been fully satisfied by the Bank's payment to the Department of Justice and the New York County Distrct
Attorney's Office No further enforcement actions are expected In relation to the matters set out in the settlement agreements

On 26 February 2009 a purported shareholder filed a denvative civil action in the Supreme Court of New York, Nassau County against certain current and former
directors, and nominally against the Bank and Lloyds Banking Group pl¢, seeking vanous forms of relief The derivative action 1s at an early stage and settlement 1S
being discussed and the ultimate outcome 1s not expected to have a matenal impact on the Group

European Umon gender directive

An opt-out clause to the European Union Gender Directive currently permits insurers to take gender into account as a risk factor when pricing contracts In March
2011, the European Court of Justice 1s expected to rule on whether this infringes fundamental Eurcpean nights for equal treatment |f the European Court of Justice
rules that the ept-out clause does infringe such nghts, 1t could alter the market and alter prices for insurance products to a significant extent At the date of these
financial statements, no provision has been made for the potential costs of rectifying contracts in existence at 31 December 2010, should this ultimately be requirsd
The uttimate impact on the Group can only be known followtng the European Court of Justice’s ruing However, the Group does not expect the final outcome of this
matter 1o have a matenal adverse effect on its financial position

Qther lega) proceedings and regulatory matters

In the course of its business, the Group 15 engaged 1n discussions with the FSA in relation to a range of conduct of business matters, especiatly in relghion to retail
products including packaged bank accounts, mortgages, structured products and pensions The Group 15 keen to ensure that any regulatory concerns regarding
product governance or contract terms are understood and addressed The uttimate ympact on the Group of these discussions ¢an only be known at the canclusion of
such discussions

In addition, during the ordinary course of business the Group 1s subject to other threatened and actual legal proceedings (which may include class action lawsuits
brought on behalf of customers, shareholders or other third parties), regulatery investigations, regulatory challenges and enforcement actions, both in the UK and
overseas All such matenal matters are periodically reassessed, with the assistance of external professional advisors where appropriate, to determine the likelthoed
of the Group incurnng a habiity In those instances where it 15 concluded that it 1s mere likely than not that a payment will be made, a provision 15 established to
management's best estimate of the amount required to seitle the obhigatron at the relevant balance sheet date In seme cases 1t will not be possible to form a view,
either because the facts are unctear or because further time 15 needed properly to assess the ments of the ¢ase and no provisions are held against such matiers
However the Group does not currently expect the final cutcome of any such matter to have a matenal adverse effect on its financial position

Contingent hatilibies and commitments ansing from the banking business
Acceptances and endorsements anse where the Group or the Bank agrees to guarantee payment on a negohable instrument drawn up by a customer

Other items serving as direct credit substitutes wclude standby letters of credit, or other irrevocable obligations, where the Group or the Bank has an irrevocable
obligation to pay a third party beneticiary if the customer fails to repay an outstanding comrmitment, they also include acceptances drawn under letters of credit or
similar faciities where the acceptor does not have specific title to an identifiable underlying shipment of goods

Performance bonds and other transaction-related contingencies {which include bid or tender bonds, advance payment guarantees, VAT Customs & Excise bonds and
standby letters of credit relating to a parucular contract or non-financral transaction) are undertakings where the requirement to make payment under the guarantee
depends on the outcome of a future event
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The Group's and the Bank's maximum exposure to loss is represertted by the contractual nominal amount detailed in the table below Consideratton has not been
taken of any possible recoveries from customers for payments made in respect of such guarantees under recourse provisions or from coflateral held

' The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £Em £m £m
Contingent habilities
Acceptances and endorsements 48 53 50 54
QOther
Other 1tems serving as direct credit substitutes 1,319 1,395 1,154 1,276
Performance bonds and other transaction-related contingencies 2,812 3,292 2,280 2,772
4,131 4,687 3,434 4,048
Total contingent liabilities 4,179 4,740 3,484 4,102
The Bank
2010 2009
£m £m
Incurred on behalf of fellow Lioyds Banking Group undertakings 69 30

The contingent liabihties of the Group and the Bank, as detailed above, anse in the nermal course of banking business and 1t 1s not practicable to quantify their future
financial effect

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Commitments
Documentary credits and other short-term trade-related transactions 255 219 259 219
Forward asset purchases and forward deposits placed 887 758 1,705 3,373
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credi Iines and other commitments to lend
Less than 1 year oniginal maturity
Mortgage offers made 8,113 1,302 1,043 1,135
Other commitments 60,528 36,206 38,216 33,681
68,641 37.508 39,259 34,816
1 year or over onginal maturty 47,515 36,020 41,976 43,545
Total commitments 117,298 74,505 83,199 81,953
The Bank
2010 2009
£m £m
Incurred on behall of fellow Lioyds Banking Group undertakings 14,008 12,467

Of the amounts shown above in respect of undrawn formal standby facilities, credit hnes and other commitments to lend £63,630 million (2009 £44,327 mithon)
for the Group and £39,280 mittion (2009 £3%,469 miilion) for the Bank were imevocable

Operating lease commitments
Where a Group company 1s the lessee, the future mmimum lease payments under non-cancellable premises operating leases are as follows

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Not fater than 1 year 356 204 172 188
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,120 554 479 506
Later than 5 years 1,706 622 561 552
Total operating lease commutments 3,182 1,380 1,212 1,246

Operating lease payments represent rental payabie by the Group for certain of its properties Some of these operating lease arrangements have renewal options and
rent escalation clauses, although the effect of these 15 not matenal No arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments

Capital commitments

Excluding commitments of the Group in respect of investiment property {note 26), capital expenditure contracted but not provided for at 31 December 2010
amounted to £339 million for the Group and £12 mullion for the Bank (2009 £96 million for the Group and £5 milton for the Bank} Of this amount for the Group,
£282 million (2009 £91 million) refates 10 assets to be ieased to customers under operating leases The Group's management 1s confident that future net revenues
and funding will be sufficient to cover these commitments
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(1) Measurement basis of financial assets and liabilities
The accounting polictes 1n note 2 describe how different classes of financial instruments are measured, and how income and expenses, ncluding far value gains and
losses, are recognised The following tables analyse the carrying amounts of the financial assets and labilities by category and by balance sheet heading

At fair vatue through
Der profit or lass
designated Designated Held at
as hedging Held for  upon initial Available- Laans and amortised Insurance
nstruments trading  recogmtion for-sale  recevables cost contracts Total
The Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m Em
As at 31 December 2010
Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks - - - - - 38,115% - 38,115
Iterms i the course of collection from banks - - - - - 1,368 - 1,368
Trading and other financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - 23,743 132,533 - - - ~ 156,276
Denvative financial instruments 7,406 42,194 - ~ - - - 49,600
Loans and receivables
Loans and advances to banks - - - - 30,272 - - 30,272
Loans and advances to customers - - - - 611,089 - - 611,089
Debt securities - - - - 25,735 - - 25,735
- - - - 667,096 - - 667,096
Available-for-sale financial assets - - - 42,955 - - - 42,955
Held-to-matunity investrments - - - - - 7,905 - 7,905
Total financial assets 7.406 65,937 132,533 42,955 667,096 47 388 - 963,315
Financral habilities
Deposits from banks - - - - - 50,363 - 50,363
Customer depaosits - - - - - 416,276 - 416,276
Iterns 1n course of transmtssion to banks - - - - - 802 - 802
Trading and other financial iabihities at fair value through
profit or foss - 20,097 6,665 - - - - 26,762
Dernvative financia! instruments 4,398 38,247 - - - - - 42,645
Debt securities in 1ssue - - - - - 228,317 - 228,317
Liabihities ansing from nsurance contracts and
participating investment contracts - - - - - - 80,749 80,749
Liabilities ansing from non-participating investment
contracts - - - - - - 51,363 51,363
Unallocated surplus within insurance businesses - - - - - - 643 643
Subordinated habilities - - - - - 29,609 - 29,609
Tetal financial iabilities 4,398 58,344 6,665 - - 725,367 132,755 927,529
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The Group

As at 31 December 2009

Financial assets

Cash and balances at central banks

ltems 1n the course of collection from banks
Trading and other financial assets at fair value
threugh profit or loss

Dernvative financial instrurments

Loans and recewvables

At fair value through

Loans and advances to banks
L.oans and advances to customers
Debt securities

Avaliable for-sale financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabihties

Deposits from banks

Custormer deposis

Items in course of transmission to banks

Trading and other financial liabihties at fair value through
profit or loss

Denvative financial instruments

Debt securities in issue

Liabiities ansing from insurance contracts and
participating investment contracts

Liabiities ansing from non-parbicipating investment
contracts

Unallocated surplus within insurance businesses
Subordinated habihibies

Total financia! liabilities

Derivatives profit or 10ss
designated Designated Held at
as hedging Held for  upon imtial Avallable- Loans and amortised Insurance
instruments trading  recogmition forsale  receivables cost contracts Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
- - - - - 36,089 - 36,089
- _ - - - 1,045 - 1,045
- 542 48,352 - - - - 48,894
995 17,802 - - - - - 18,797
- - - - 175,554 - - 175,554
- - - - 245,226 - - 245,226
- - - - 2,636 - - 2,636
- - - - 423,416 - - 423,416
- - - 26,089 - - - 26,089
595 18,344 48,352 26,089 423,416 37,134 = 554,330
- - - - - 139,557 - 139,557
- - - - - 193,045 - 193,045
- - - - - 542 - 542
- 202 6,160 - - - - 6,362
702 16,031 - - - - - 16,733
- - - - - 120,719 - 120,719
- - - - - - 36,960 36,960
- - - - - - 15,734 15,734
- - - - - - 310 310
- - - ~ - 15,999 - 15999
702 16,233 6,160 - - 469,862 53,004 545,961
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The Bank
As at 31 December 2010
Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks
ltems I1n the course of collection from banks
Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Denwvative financial instruments
Loans and recevables
Leans and advances 10 banks
Leans and advances to customers
Debt secunties

Avallable-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-matunty investments

Total financial assets

Financial habilities

Deposits from banks

Customer deposits

ltems 1n course of transmission to banks
Trading and other financial habiities at fair value
through profit or loss

Dernvative financial instruments

Debt securities in 1ssue

Subordinated habilities

Total financial habilities

As at 31 December 2009
Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks
Items 1n the course of collection from banks
Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Denvative financial instruments
Leans and recevables
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Debt securities

Avallable-for-sale financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial iabihties

Deposits from banks

Customer deposits

ltems in course of transmission to banks
Trading and other financal liabihties at fair value
through profit or loss

Dernvative financial instruments

Debt secunties in 1ssue

Subordinated habilities

Total financial habilities

At fair value through

Denvatives protit or loss
designated Designated Held at
as hedging Held for  upon imtial Available- Loans and amortised
instruments trading  recognition for sale  recewvables cost Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
- - - - - 35,585 35,585
- - - - - 997 997
- 3,526 1,061 - - - 4,587
a56 20,366 - - - - 21,322
- - - - 152,596 - 152,596
- - - - 251,173 - 251,173
- - - - 1,479 - 1,479
- - - - 405,248 - 405,248
- - - 24 951 - - 24,951
- - - - - 7,905 7,905
956 23,892 1,061 24,951 405,248 44,487 500,595
- - - - - 118,337 118,337
- - - - - 223,812 223,812
- - - - - 506 506
- 4,603 6,665 - - - 11,268
678 19,582 - - - - 20,260
- - - - - 115,122 115,122
- - - - - 15,574 15,574
678 24,185 6,663 - - 473,351 504,879
At fair value through
Dervatives profit or loss
designated Designated Held at
as hedging Held for  upen imitial Available- Loans and amortised
instruments trading  recogrition for-sale recevables cost Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
- - - - - 35964 35,964
_ - - - - 1,004 1,004
- 510 2,123 - - - 2,633
952 16,985 - - - - 17,937
- - - - 176,556 - 176,556
- - - - 253,111 - 253,111
- - - - 2,830 - 2,830
- - - - 432,497 - 432,497
- - - 13,514 - - 13,514
Gg52 17,455 2,123 13,514 432,497 36,968 503,549
- - - - - 160,428 160,428
- -~ - ~- - 201,053 201,653
- - - - - 492 492
- 202 6,160 - - - 6,362
772 16,057 - - - - 16,829
- - - - - 105,870 109,870
- - - - - 15,456 15,456
772 16,259 6,160 - - 487,299 510,450
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(2) Reclassification of financial assets

In 2010 the Group reviewsd iis approach to managing a portfolio of government securities held as a separately identifiable compenent of the Group’s liquidity
portfolio  Given the long-term nature of this portfolio, the Group concluded that certain of these securities will be able to be held untl they reach matunty
Consequently, on 31 October 2010, government secunties with a fair value of £3,601 million, which are held by the Bank, were reclassified from available-for-sale
financial assets to held-to-maturity investmenis reflecting the Group's positive intent and ability to hold them until matunty

In 2009, no financial assets were reclassified

In 2008, in accordance with the amendment to 1AS39 that became applicable during that year, the Group reviewed the categorisation of its financial assets classified
as held for trading and available-for-sale On the basis that there was no longer an active market for some of those assets, which are therefore more appropnately
managed as ioans, with effect from 1 July 2008, the Group transferred £2,993 million of assets previously classified as held for trading into loans and recevables
With effect from 1 November 2008, the Group transferred £4 37 million of assets previously ciassified as availlable for-sale financial assets into loans and receivables
At the time of these transfers, the Group had the intention and ability to hold them for the foreseeable future or until matunty As at the date of reclassification, the
weighted average effective interest rate of the assets transferred was 6 3 per cent with the estimated recoverable cash flows of £3,524 million

Carrying value and fair value of reclassified assets
The table below sets out the carrying value and fair value of reclassified financial assets

31 December 2010 31 December 2009 31 December 2008
Canrying Carrying Carrying

value Farr value value Fair value value Farr value
£m £m £m £m £m £m
From held for trading to loans and recevables 750 727 1,833 1,822 2,883 2,926
From available-for-sale financial assets to loans and receivables 313 340 394 422 454 402
From availlable-for-sale financial assets to held-to-matunty investments 3,455 3,539 - - - -
Total carrying value and fair value 4518 4,606 2,227 2,244 3,337 3,328

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2010, the carrying value of the assets reciassified to loans and receivables decreased by £1,164 million due to sales and
maturities of £1,220 mullion, accretion of ¢iscount of £34 miliion and foreign exchange and other movements of £22 miltion

Additional fair value gamns (fosses) that would have been recogrised had the reclassifications not cccurred
The table befow shows the additional gains (losses) that would have been recognised in the Group’s income statement If the reclassifications had not occurred

2010 2009 2008
Reclassified Reclassified Reclassified Reclassified  Reclassified Reclassified
n 2010 n 2009 n 2008 Total In 2009 1n 2008 Total in 2008 Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
From held for trading to loans and
recelvables - - (34) {34) - 208 208 (347) (347)

The table below shows the addrtional gains {losses) that would have been recognised in other comprehensive income If the reclassifications had not occurred

2010 2009 2008
Reclassified  Reclassified  Reclassified Rectassified  Reclassified Reclassified
m 2010 n 2009 n 2008 Total in 2009 in 2008 Total in 2008 Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
From available-for-sale financial assets
to loans and recervables - - 69 69 - 161 161 {108) (108)

Actual amounts recogrised in respect of reclassified assets
Aftar reclassification the reclassified financial assets contnbuted the foliowing amounts to the Group iIncome statement

2010 2009 2008
Reclassified Reclassified Reclassified Reclassifed  Reclassified Reclassified
n 2010 n 2009 n 2008 Tetal In 2009 1h 2008 Total In 2008 Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
From held for trading to loans and
recewvables
Net interest income - - 24 24 - 55 55 31 31
impairment losses - - (6} (6) - (49) (49) (158) (158)
Total amouants recognised - - 18 18 - 6 6 (127) (127)
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2010 2009 2008
Reclassified Reclassified Reclassified Reclassified  Reclassified Reclassified
n 2010 n 2009 n 2008 Total In 2009 in 2008 Total in 2008 Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
From avallable-for-sale financial assets to
loans and receivables
Net mterest income - - 1 1 - 34 34 3 3
Impairment losses - - (2) (2) —- (56) (56) (23) (23)
Total amounts recognised - — (1) (1) ~ (22) (22) (20) (20)

(3) Fair values of financial assets and lhiabilities

The following table summarnses the carrying values of financial assets and hiabilies presented on the Group's balance sheet The fair values presented in the table are
at a specific date and may be signiicantly different from the amount which will actually be paid on the matunty or settlement date

The Group The Bank
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
value value Farr value Fair value value value Fair value Fair value
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
£m Em £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Trading and other financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 156,276 48,894 156,276 48,894 4,587 2,633 4,587 2,633
Dernvative financial instruments 49,600 18,797 49,600 18,797 21,322 17,937 21,322 17,937
toans and receivables
Loans and advances 1o banks 30,272 175,554 30,236 175,535 || 152,596 176,556 || 152,553 176,537
Loans and advances to customers 611,089 245,226 | | 598,835 || 241,553 || 251,173 253,111 248,656 || 239,096
Debt securities 25,735 2,636 27,102 2,699 1,479 2,830 1,380 2,894
667,096 423,416 656,173 419,787 405,248 432,497 402,589 418,527
Available-for-sale financial assets 42,955 26,089 42,955 26,089 24,951 13,514 24,951 13,514
Held-to-matunty investments 7,905 - 7,716 - 7,905 - 7,716 -
Financial habilities
Deposits from banks 50,363 139,557 50,520 139,478 118,337 160,428 118,027 160,349
Customer deposits 416,276 193,045 417,036 192,862 223,812 201,053 223,262 200,887
Trading and other financial habilities at fair value
through profit or loss 26,762 6,362 26,762 6,362 11,268 6,362 11,268 6,362
Derivative financial instruments 42,645 16,733 42,645 16,733 20,260 16,829 20,260 16,829
Debt securities i 1ssue 228,317 120,719 228,826 120,458 115,122 109870 115067 109,790
Liatilmes ansing from non-participating wvestment
contracts 51,363 15,734 51,363 15,734 - - - -
Financial guarantees 54 38 54 38 42 38 42 38
Subordinated labilities 29,609 15,999 32,909 14,963 15,574 15,456 15,088 14,419

Valuation methodology

Financial instruments include financial assets, financial habilities and derivatives The fair value of a financial instrument 1s the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged 1n a current transaction between willing pariies, other than in a forced or hguidation sale

Wherever possible, fair values have been calculated using unadjusted guoted market prices in active markets for identical instruments held by the Group Where
quoted market prices are not avallable, or are unreliable because of poor Iiquidity, fair values have been determined using valuation techniques which, to the extent
possible, use market observable inputs, but in some cases use nen-market observable inputs Valuation techniques used include discounted cash flow analysis and
pricing modeis and, where appropriate, comparison to instruments with charactenstics similar to those of the instruments held by the Group

Because a vanety of estimation techniques are employed and significant estimates made, compansons of farr values between financial institubions may not be
meaningful Readers of these financial statements are thus advised to use caution when using this data to evaluate the Group's financial position

Fair vaiue information 1s net provided for items that do not meet the definition of a financial instrument These items include intangible assets, such as the value of
the Group's branch network, the long-term relatronships with depositors and credit card relationships, premises and equipment, and shareholders’ equity These items
are matental and accordingly the Group believes that the fair value information presented does not represent the underlying value of the Group

Valuation control framework
The key elements of the control framewoerk for the valuation of inancial instruments inctude model validation, preduct iImplementation review and independent price
verification These functions are carned out by appropriately skilled risk and finance teams, independent of the business area responsible for the products

Mode! validation covers both gualtative and guantitative elements relating to new models In respect of new products, a product ymplementation review 1s conducted
pre- and post-trading Pre-trade testing ensures that the new model 18 integrated into the Group's systems and that the profit and loss and nisk reporting are consistent
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throughout the trade life cycle Post-trade testing examines the explanatory power of the implemented model, actively monitoring model parameters and companng
in house pricing to external sources Independent price verfication procedures cover financial instruments carred at far value The frequency of the review Is
matched to the availability of independent data, monthly being the minimum Vatuatron differences in breach of established thresholds are escalated to semor
management The results from independent pricing and valuation reserves are reviewed monthly by senior management

Formal commuttees, consisting of senior risk, finance and business management, meet at least quarterly to discuss and approve valuations In more judgemental
areas, In particular for unquoted equities, structured credit, over-the-counter options and the Credit Valuation Adjustment (CVA) reserve

Fair value of financial instruments carned at amortised cost

Loans and recevables

The Group provides ioans and advances to commercial, corporate and personal customers at both fixed and vanable rates The carrying value of the vanable rate
loans and these relating to lease financing s assumed to be their farr value For fixed rate lending, several different techniques are used to estimate fair value, as
considered appropriate For commercial and personal customers, fair value s pnncipally estimated by discounting anticspated cash flows {including interest at
contractual rates} at market rates for similar loans offered by the Group and other financial institutions  The fair value for corporate loans 1s estimated by discounting
anticipated cash flows at a rate which reflects the effects of interest rate changes, adjusted for changes i credit risk Ceriain loans secured on residential properties
are made at a fixed rate for a 'mited penod, typically two 1o five years, after which the 10ans revert to the relevant vanable rate The fair vatue of such lpans Is
estimated by reference to the market rates for similar loans of matunty equal to the remarning fixed interest rate period The fair vatues of asset-backed secunties and
secondary loans, which were previously within assets held for trading and were reclassified to loans and receivables (see page 94}, are determined predominantly
from lead manager quotes and, where these are not available, by alternative technigues including reference to credit spreads on simiiar assets with the same obligor,
markel standard consensus pricing services, broker quotes and cther research data

Deposits from banks and customer deposits
The fair value of deposits repayable on demand 1s considered to be equal to therr carrying value The fair value for all other deposits 1s estimated using discounted
cash flows applying either market rates, where applicable, or current rates for depesits of similar remaining maturnties

Debt secunties in 1ssue and subordinated halnlities
The fair vaiue of short-term debt secunties in 1ssue s approximately equal to therr carrying value Fatr value for other debt secunities and for subordinated habilites 1s
estimated using quoted market prices

Held to-maturity investments
The fair values of government securities are based on market prices

Valuation of financial instruments carned at fair value
The valuations of financial instruments have been classified nto three levels according to the quality and rehability of information used to determine the fair values

Level 1 portfolios
Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or habilities Products classified as level 1
predominantly comprise treasury bills and other government securities

Level 2 portfolios

Level 2 valuations are those where quoted market prices are not available, for example where the instrument 15 tracted in a market that 1s not considered to be active
or valuaticn techniques are used to determune fair value and where these techniques use inputs that are based significantly on observable market data Examples of
such financial instruments include most over-the counter derivatives, financial institution 1ssued secunties, certificates of deposit and certain asset-backed securities

Level 3 portfalios

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input which could have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation 1s not based on chservable market data Such
nstruments would wnclude the Group's venture capital and unlisted equity investments which are valued using various valuation techniques that reguire significant
management judgement in determining appropriate assumptions, including earmings multiptes and estimated future cash flows Certain of the Group's asset-backed
secunties and dervatives, principally where there 1s no trading activity in such secunities, are also classified as level 3

The table below provides an analysis of the financial assets and habibties of the Group that are carnied at fair value in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet, grouped
nto levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable
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Valuation hierarchy

At 31 December 2010

Tradwng and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets

Perivative ipancial instruments

Financial assets

Trading and other financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss
Dervative financial instruments

Financial guaraniees

Financial habilities

There were no significant transfers between level 2 and level 3 during the year

At 31 December 2009

Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Avaiable-for-sale financial assets

Dervative financial instruments

Financial assets

Tracing and other financiat llabihities at far value through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments

Financial guarantees

Financial habilities

Movements tn level 3 portfolio
The table below analyses movements tn the level 3 financial assets pertfolio

At 1 January 2009

Exchange and other adjustments

Gains (losses) recognised in the incorme statement

Gains (losses) recognised in other comprekensive income
Purchases

Sales

Transfers into the fevel 3 porifolio

Transfers out of the level 3 portfolio

At 31 December 2009

Adjustment on transfer of HBOS

Exchange and other adjustments

Gatns (losses) recognised 1n the income statement

Gains (losses) recognised in other comprehensive income
Purchases

Sales

Transfers into the level 3 portfalio

Transters out of the level 3 portfolic

At 31 December 2010

Gains (losses) recognised In the income statement relating to those assets held at 31 December 2010
Gains recognised n other comprehensive income relating to those assets held at 31 December 2010
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m £m £Em
113,277 40,163 2,836 156,276
14,481 25,828 2,646 42,955
985 47,805 810 49,600
128,743 113,796 6,292 248,831
864 25,898 - 26,762
42 42,400 203 42,645
- - 54 54
906 68,298 257 69,461
Leval 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totat
£m £m £m £m
34,956 12,347 1,591 48,894
11,984 13,361 744 26,089
1,858 16,873 66 18,797
48,798 42 581 2 401 93,780
- 6,362 - 6,362
10 16,723 - 16,733
- - 38 38
10 23,085 38 23133
Trading and
other
financial
assets at
fair vatue
through Total
profit or Available Denvative financial
loss for-sale assets assets
£m Em £m £m
1,672 3,161 136 4,969
4) (63) - 67)
(50) <] (69) (113)
- 50 - 50
340 19 - 359
(400) (412} {1) {813)
33 36 - 69
- (2,053} - (2,053)
1,591 744 66 2,401
1,320 1,867 74 3,261
31 12 2 45
199 (56) (46) 97
- 271 - 271
921 664 - 1,585
{550} (560) - {1,110}
62 - 780 842
{738} (296) (66} {1,100}
2,836 2,646 810 6,292
149 (81) (47} 21
- 269 - 269
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The table below analyses movements in the level 3 financial habilities portfolio Denvative Financial ﬁna:g:g:
liabilities guarantees liabiities

£m £m £m

At 1 January 2009 578 35 613
Gains recognised in the income statement {104) - (104)
Additions - 3 3
Redemptions (474) - (474)
At 31 December 2009 - 38 38
Adjustment for transfer of HBOS 196 - 196
Exchange and other adjustments 14 - 14
Gains recognised in the income statement - - -
Additiens - 16 16
Redemptions 210 - (210
Transfers into the level 3 portfolio 203 - 203
At 31 December 2010 203 54 257

Gains (losses) recognised In the income statement refating to those iabilities held at 31 December 2010 - - -

Transfers out of the level 3 portfolio anise when nputs that could have a significant impact on the instrument's valuation become market observable after previously
having been non-market observable In the case of asset-backed securities this can anse if more than one consisient independent source of data becomes avatlable
Canvarsely transfers into the portfoho arise when consistent sources of data cease to be available

Included with the gains (losses) recognised in the income statement are gains of £21 million (2009 £106 million} related to financial instruments that are held in
the level 3 portfolio at the year end These amounts are included in other operating income

Included wathin the gains (Josses) recogrised in other comprehensive income are gains of £269 million (2009 £190 milion) related to financial instruments that
are held in the level 3 porticlio at the year end

At 31 December 2010 At 31 December 2009
Effect of reasonably possible {eaEsf;:catb?;
altermative assumptions possible
Carrying Favourable Unfavourable Carrying alternative
value changes changes value  assumptions
Valuation basisfechnigue Main assumpticns £m £m £m £m £m
Trading and other financial assets at far value through profit or loss
Asset backed securities Lead manager or broker  Use of single pricing source 283 8 (8) 79 -
quote /Consensus pricing
from market data provider
Equity investments Various valuation Eamings, net asset value 2,072 135 (111) 1,162 a
techniques and earnings multiples,
forecast cash flows
Unhsted equities and property Third party valuations n/a 481 nfa n/a 350 -
partnerships In the life funds
2,836 1,591

Available for-sale financial assets
Asset-backed securities Lead manager or broker  Use of single pricing source 579 34 (34) 744 10
quote /consensus gricing
from market data provicter

Equtty investments Various valuation Eamings, net asset value, 2,067 141 (91) - n/a
techmiques underlying asset values,
property prices, forecast
cash flows
2,646 744
Derivative financial assets Industry standard mociel / Prepayment rates, 810 96 (27) 66 -
consensus pricing from probability of default, loss
market data provider given default and yield
curves
Financial assets 6,292 2,401
Dernivative financial liabiities  tndustry standard model/ Prepayment rates, 203 - - - -
consensus pncing from probabitity of default,
market data provider loss given default and
yield curves
Financial guarantees 54 38
Financial llabilities 257 38 -
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The main products where level 3 valuations have been used are described below

Asset-backed securnties

Where there IS no trading activity i asset-backed secunities, vatuation models, consensus pricing information from third party pricing services and broker or lead
manager quotes are used to determine an appropriate valuation Asset-backed secunties are then classified as either level 2 or tevel 3 depending on whether there is
maore than one consistent independent source of data If there 1s a single, uncorroborated market scurce for a significant valuation input or where there are matenally
Inconsistent levels then the valuation 15 reported as tevel 3 Asset classes classified as level 3 mainly compnse certain residential mostgage-backed secuntes,
collateralised lean obligations and collateralised debt obligatiens

Equity investments (including venture capstal)

Unhsted equities and fund investments are accounted for as trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale financial
assets These investments are valued using different techmiques as a result of the variety of investments across the portfoho in accordance with the Group's valuation
policy and are calculated using International Private Equity and Venture Capital Guidelines

Depending on the busmess sector and the circumstances of the investment, unlisted equity valuations are based on earnings muktiples, net asset values or discounted
cash flows

— A number of earnings multiples are used 1n valuing the portfolio including price earnings, earmings before interest and tax and earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) The particular multiple selected being appropriate for the type of business being valued and s denved by reference to the
current market-based multiple Consideration i1s given to the nsk attnibutes, growth prospects and firancial geanng of comparable businesses when selecting an
approprate multiple

— Discounted cash flow valuations use estimated future cash flows, usually based on management forecasts, with the apphication of appropriate exit yields or terminal
multiples and discounted using rates appropriate to the specific investment, business sector or recent econgmic rates of return Recent transactions involving the
sale of similar businesses may sometimes be used as a frame of reference in derving an appropriate multiple

— For fund investments the most recent capital account value calculated by the fund manager 15 used as the basis for the valuation and adjusted, If necessary, to
algn valuation techniques with the Group’s valuation policy

Unquoted equities and property partnerships in the life funds
Third party valuauons are used to obtam the faw value of unquoted investments Management take account of any pertinent infermation, such as recent transactions
and mformation received on particular investments, to adjust the thid party valuations where necessary

Derivatives
Where the Group’s derivative assets and hiahilities are not traded on an exchange, they are valued using valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow and
options pricing medels, as appropriate The types of derivatives classified as level 2 and the valuation technigues used include

— Interest rate swaps which are valued using discounted cash flow models, the most significant inputs into those models are interest rate yield curves which are
developed from publicly quoted rates

— Foreign exchange denvatives that de not contain options which are priced using rates available from publicly quoted sources

— Credit denvatives, except for the items classified as level 3, which are valued using pubiicly avallable yield and credit default swap (CDS) curves, the Group uses
standard models with observable inputs

— Less complex interest rate and forexgn exchange option praducts are valued using vokatiity surfaces developed from publicly avallable interest rate cap, interest rate
swaption and other option volatilities, option volabhity skew information 1s derived from a market standard consensus pricing service For more complex opticn
products, the Group calibrates its models using observable at-the-maney data, where necessary, the Group adjusts for gut-of-the-money positions using a market
standard consensus pricing service

- Complex mterest rate and foreign exchange products where there s significant dispersion of consensus pricing or where implied funding costs are matenal and
unobservable are classified as level 3

Where credit protection, usually in the form of cred:t default swaps, has been purchased or written on asset-backed securities, the secunty is referred to as a negative
basis asset-backed secunty and the resulting derivative assets or llabilites have been classified as either level 2 or level 3 according to the classification of the
underlying asset-backed security

Level 3 derivative assets also include £96 milhon in respect of credit default swaps written on level 3 negative basis asset-backed securities calculated as set out in
the table below

2010

£m

Fair value before credit valuation adjustment 114
Less credit valuation adjusiment {18)
Carrying value 96

Sensitivity of level 3 valuations

Asset-backed securities

Reasonably possible afternative valuations have been calculated for asset-backed securittes by using alternative pricing sources and calculating an absolute difference
The pricing difference 1s defined as the absolute difference between the actual pnice used and the closest, alternative price available

Denvative financial instruments

In respect of crecht default swaps written on level 3 negative basis ABS, reasonably possible alternative valuations have been calculated by flexing the spread between
the underlying asset and the credit default swap, or adjusting market yields, by a reasonable amount The sensitwvity 1s determined by applying a 60 bps
Increase/decrease in the spread between the asset and the credit default swap
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Venture capital and equily mmvestments

The valuation techniques used for unhsted equities and venture capital Investments vary depending on the nature of the investment Further detalls of these are given
betow Third party valuers have been used to determine the value of unlisted equities and property partnerships included in the Group's ife insurance funds As these
factors differ for each investment depending on the nature of the valuation technique used and the inputs there 1s no single common factor that could be adjusted to
provide a reasonable alternative valuation for these investment portfolios

Derivative valuation adjustments
Dervative finarcial instruments which are carned in the balance sheet at fair value are adjusted where appropriate to reflect credit risk, market hguidity and other
nsks

Valuaton adjustments are applied to the Group's over-the-counter denvative exposures with counterparties that are not subject to standard interbank collateral
arrangements These valuation adjustments reflect the different credit and funding exposures that such counterparties represent

A Credit Vatuatron Adjustment (CVA) I1s applied to the Group’s over-the-counter uncoltateralised dervative exposures to adjust the dervative valuations provided by
standard interbank lending rate curves The Group uses a hilateral simutaticn madel to develop expected future expesures This calculates a CVA for scenancs where
the Group has a positive future exposure (asset} and a Debit Valuation Adjustment (DVA) where the Group has a negative future exposure (llability) At December
2010, the total reserve booked was £570 mithion (31 December 2009 £78 million)

55 Financial nsk management

Financial instruments are fundamental to the Group's actvities and, as a consequence, the nsks associated with financal instruments represent a significant
component of the nisks faced by the Group

The Group has adopted the hernage Lioyds TSB approach to nisk management

The pnmary nsks affecting the Group through its use of financial instruments are credit nsk, market nsk, which includes interest rate risk and currency nsk, and
liquidity risk Qualitative and gquantitative information about the Group's management of these nsks I1s given below

QUALITATIVE INFORMATION

(1) Credit risk

Defuntion

The nsk of reductions 1n earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational foss as a result of the failure of the party with whom the Group has contracted to
meet its obligatrons {both on and off balance sheet}

Risk appetite

Credit nisk appetrte 1s described and reported through a suite of metnics dernved from a combination of accounting and credit portfolio performance measures, which
In turn use the various credit sk rating systems as mputs These metnics are supported by a comprehensive suite of pelicies, sector caps, product and country imits
to manage concentration nsk and exposures within the Group's approved nsk appetite

Exposures
The pnncipal sources of credit nisk within the Group anse from loans and advances to reta customers, financial institutions and corporate clients The credit nisk
exposures of the Group are set out (n the quantitative information section of this note

In terms of loans and advances, credut nisk anses both from amounts lent and commitiments to extend credit to a customer as required These commitments can take
the form of loans and overdrafts, or credit instruments such as guarantees and standby, documentary and commercial letters of credit With respect to commitments
to extend credit, the Group 1s potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused commitments However, the likely amount of loss Is less than the
total unused commitments, as most retai commitments to extend credit can be cancelled and the creditworthiness of customers 15 monitored fraquently In additron,
most wholesale carnmitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers mantaning specific credit standards, which are regularly monitored

Credit risk can also anse from debt secunties, private equity investments, denvatives and foreign exchange activities Note 17 to the financial statements shows the
total notional principal amount of interest rate, exchange rate, credit denwvative and equity and ather contracts outstanding at 31 December 2010 The notignal
principal amount does not, however, represent the Group's credit nsk exposure, which is limeted to the current cost of replacing contracts with a positive value to the
Group Such amounts are reflected in note 17

Credit nsk exposures in the insurance businesses arise pnmarly from holding investments and from exposure to reinsusers A significant proportion of the investments
are hetd n unit-hinked and with-profits funds where the shareholder risk ts hmited, subject to any guarantees given

Measurement
In measunng the credit nsk of loans and advances 10 customers and to banks at a counterparty level, the Group reflects three components

(1) the ‘probability of default’ by the counterparty on its contractual obligations, {1) current exposures to the counterparty and their likely future development, from
which the Group denves the ‘exposure at default’, and () the likely loss ratio on the defauited obligations (the ‘loss given default’)

The Group's rating systems assess probability of default and 1If Advanced, exposure at default and loss given default, in order to derive an expected Joss (If not
Advanced, regulatory prescribed exposure at default and loss given default values are used in order to derive an expected loss) |n contrast, imparrment allowances
are recognised for financial reporting purposes only for loss events that have occurred at the balance sheet date, based on objective evidence of impairment (see note
23) Due to the different methadologies applied, the amount of incurred credit losses provided for in the financial statements differs from the amount determined from
the expected loss models that are used for internal operational management and bankeng regulation purposes
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The Group assesses the probabiity of default of individual counterparties using internal rating models talored to the vancus categonies of counterparty In its principal
retail portiolios and a number of wholesale lending portiolios, exposure at default and loss given default models are alse in use They have been developed intemalty
and use statistical analysis, combined, where appropnate, with external data and subyect matter expert judgement Each rating model 1s subject to a validation
process, undertaken by mdependent nsk teams, which includes benchmarking to externally available data, where possible The most matenal rating models are
approved by the Lloyds Banking Group Madel Governance Comnuttee

Each probability of default model segments counterparties into 8 number of rating grades, each representing a defined range of default probabiities Exposures
migrate between rating grades if the assessment of the counterparty probability of default changes Each rating system is required to map to a master scale, which
supports the consohdation ef credit nsk information across portfotios through the adoption of a common rating scale Given the differing risk profiles and credit rating
considerations, the underlying risk reporting has been split into two distinct master scales, a reta:l master scale and a wholesale master scale

Mitigation
The Group uses a range of approaches to mitigate credit sk

Internal control

The Group follows a through the economuc cycle, relationship based, business model with nsk management processes, appetites and expenienced staff in place
These policies and procedures defing chosen target market and risk acceptance cnteria These have been, and will continue to be fine tuned as apprepriate and
include the use of early warning indicators to help anticipate future areas of concern and allow us to take early and proactive mitigating actions

— Credit principles and policy risk specialists set out the Group credit principles and pohcy according to which credit nsk 15 managed, which in turn 15 the basis for
dvistanal and business unit credit policy Principles and policies are reviewed at least annually, and any changes are subject to a review and approval process
Divisional and business unit policies include lending guidelines, which define the responsibihties of lending officers and provide a disciplined and focused
benchmark for credit decisions

— Counterparty hmits  Limits are set against all types of exposure In a counterparty name, in accordance with an agreed methodology for each exposure type This
includes credit nsk exposure on individual derivative transactions, which incorporates potential fulure exposures from market movements Aggregate facility levels
by counterparty are set and limit breaches are subject to escalation procedures

— Credit sconng In the principal retad portfolios, statistically based decisioning techniques (pnimarily credit scoring mode's) are used Divisional risk departments
review model effectiveness, while new models and model changes are referred by ithem to dvisional model governance committees for approval The most matenal
changes are referred to the Lloyds Banking Group Model Governance Committee

~ Indvidual credit assessment and sanction Credit nsk in wholesale portfolios 1s subject to individual credit assessments, which consider the strengths and
weaknesses of individual transactions and the balance of nsk and reward Exposure to sndividual counterparties, groups of counterparties or customer risk segments
18 controlled through a tiered hierarchy of delegated sanchoning authorities Approval requirements for each decision are based on the transaction amount, the
custormer’s aggregate facilities, credit nisk ratings and the nature and term of the nsk The Group's credit risk appetite critena for counterparty underwnting are the
same as that for assets intended to be held over the period 1o matunty

- Controls over rating systems An independent team sets common minimum standards, designed to ensure risk models and associated rating systems are developed
consistently, and are of sufficient quality te support business decisions and meet regulatory requirements Internal rating systems are developed by nisk functions
either In the business units or divisions, with the business unit managing directors having ownership of the systems Line management takes respansibulity for
ensuring the validation of the rating systems, supported and challenged by independent specialist functions in their respective dviston

- Cross-border and cross-currency exposures Country imis are authorised by the country limits panel, taking into account economie, financial, political and social
factors Group policies stipulate that these imits must be consistent with, and support the approved business and strategic plans of the Group

— Concentration nsk Credit nsk management includes portiolio controls on certain industries, sectors and product lines to reflect nsk appetite Credit policy 1s aligned
to nisk appetites and restricis exposure to certain high nsk countries and more vuinerable sectors and segments Note 19 1o the financial statements provides an
analysis of loans and advances to customers by industry (for wholesale customers} and product (for retall customers) Exposures are monsdored to prevent an
excessive concentration of nsk These concentration nsk controls are not necessardy n the form of a maximurm hmit on lending, but may mstead require new
business in concentrated sectors to fulfil addibonal hurdle requirements Large exposures are reported (n accordance with reguiatory reporting requirements

— Stress testing and scenarno analysis The credit portfclio 1s also subjected to stress testing and scenario analysis, to simulate outcomes and calculate their associated
impact Events are modelled at a group-wide level, at divisional and business unit level and by rating model and portfoho, for example, within a specific industry
sector

— Speciahist expertise Credit quahty 15 maintained by speciahst units providing, for example intensive management and control, secunty perfection, mamtenance
and retention, expertise In documentation for lending and associated products, sector specific expertise, and legal services applicable 10 the particular market place
and product range offered by the business

— Daily settlement kmits Settlement risk arises i any situation where a payment in cash, secunties or equities (s made (n the expectation of a carresponding receipt
n cash, secunties or equihes Daily settlement hrits are established for each counterparty to cover the aggregate of alt settlement nsk ansing from market
transactions on any single day

- Risk assurance and oversight Oversight teams monitor credit performance trends, review and challenge exceptions to planned outcomes, and test the adequacy
of credit nsk infrastructure and govemance processes throughout the Group This includes tracking portfolio performance against an agreed set of key risk
ndicators  Lloyds Banking Group credit nsk assurance, a group level function compnising expenenced credit professionals, Is also in place In corjunchion with
divisional and group nsk senwor management, this team carnes out independent risk-based credit reviews, providing indmdual business unit assessment of the
effectiveness of nsk management practices and adherence 10 nisk controls across the diverse range of the Group's wholesale and retail businesses and activities,
facilitating a wide range of auds, assurance and review work These inctude cyclical ('standard’) credit reviews, non-standard reviews, project reviews, credit risk
rating model reviews and bespoke assignments, including impairment reviews as required The work of group credit nisk assurance continues to provide executive
and sestior managernent with assurance and gudance on credit quality, effectiveness of credit nsk controls and accuracy of impairments

Collateral
The principal collateral types for loans and advances are

— Mortgages over residential and commarcial real estate,

102




Lloyds TS8 Bank plc
Notes to the accounts

55 Financial nsk management {continued)

— Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory and accounts recevables,
- Charges over financial instruments such as debt secunties and equities, and
- Guarantees receved from third parties

Guidelines cn the acceptability of specific classes of collateral are maintained

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and advances s determined by the nature of the instrument Debt securnities, treasury and other eligible
bulls are generally unsecured, with the exception of asset-backed secunties and similar instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial assets Collateral i1s
generally not held against loans and advances to financial institutions, except where secunties are held as part of reverse repurchase or secunties borrowing
transactions or where a collateral agreement has been entered inte under a master nething agreement  Collateral or other security 15 also not usually obtained for credit
risk exposures on denvative instrurnents, except where the Group requires margin deposits from counterparties

It 15 the Group's policy that collateral should always be reahstically valued by an appropniately qualified source, independent of the customer, at the time of borrowng
Collateral 15 reviewed on a regular basis in accordance with business unit credit policy, which will vary according to the type of lending and collateral involved In
order to minimise the credit loss, additional collateral may be sought from the counterparty as soon as impairment aindicators are identified for the relevant individual
loans and advances

The Group censiders nsk concentrations by collatera) providers and collateral type, as apprepriate, with a view to ensuring that any potential undue concentratrons
of nsk are identified and suitably managed by changes to strategy, policy andfor business plans

Master netting agreements

Where 1t 15 effictent and likely 1o be effective (generally with counterparties with which it undertakes a significant volume of transactrons), master netting agreements
are put in place Although master netting agreements do not generally result in an offset of balange sheet assets and habilities, as transactions are usually settled on
a gross basis, they do reduce the credit 7nisk to the extent that, if an event of default occurs, all amounts with the countéerparty are terminated and settled on a net
basis The Group's overall exposure to credit nisk on derivative instruments subject to master netting agreements can change substantially within a short penod, since
1t 15 affected by each transaction subject to the agreement

Other credit nisk transfers
Asset sales, securitisations and credit dervative based transactions are also undertaken as a means of miigating or reducing credit nisk, taking into account the nature
of assets and the prevailling market conditions

Momitoring

in conjunction with Lloyds Banking Group risk, businesses and dwisions identify and define portfolios of credit and related risk exposures and the key benchmarks,
behaviours and charactenistics by which those portfolios are managed in terms of credit sk exposure This entaifs the production and analysis of regular portfolio
monitoring reports for review by senior management Lloyds Banking Group Risk tn turn produces an aggregated review of credit nsk throughout Lioyds Banking Group,
including reports on significant credit exposures, which are presented to the tloyds Banking Group Credit Risk Committeg, Lloyds Banking Group Business Risk
Committee and Lloyds Banking Group Risk Comemittee

The performance of all rating models 15 momtored on a regular basis, in orger to seek to ensure that modeis provide appropnate nsk difierentiation capabihty, the
generated ratings remain as accurate and robust as practical, and the models assign appropriate risk estimates to grades/pools All models are monitored against a
series of agreed key performance indicators In the event that monthly monitoring identifies matenal exceptions or deviations from expected outcomes, these will be
escalated

{2) Market Risk

Defirition

The risk of reductions in earnings, value and/or reserves, through financial or reputational Yoss, ansing from unexpected changes in financial prices, including interest
rates, wnflation rates, exchange rates, credit spreads and prices for bonds, commodities, equities, property and other instruments It anses tn all areas of the Group's
actwibes and I1s managed by a vanety of different techniques

Risk appehte
Market nsk appetite 1s defined with regard to the quantum and composition of market nisk that exists currently in the Group and the direction in which the Group
wishes to manage this

Exposures
The Group's bankng activities expese It to the nisk of adverse movements in interest rates, credit spreads, exchange rates and equity prices, with little or no exposure
to commodity nisk  The volatility of market vatues ¢an be affected by both the transparency of prices and the amount of liguidity in the market for the relevant asset

Maest of the Group's trading activity 1s undertaken to meet the requirements of wholesale and retai customers for foreign exchange and interest rate progucts
However, some interest rate, exchange rale and credit spread posittons are taken using dervaiives and other on-balance sheet instruments with the objective of
earning a profit from favourable movements in market rates

Market nsk in the Group's retant portfolios and in the Group’s capiial and funding actwvities anses from the different repricing charactenstics of the Group's non-trading
assets and liabthties Interest rate nsk anses predominantly from the mismatch between interest rate insensitive habilities and interest rate sensitive assets

Risk also arises from the margin of interbank rates over central bank rates A further banking nisk anses from competitive pressures on product terms in existing loans
and deposis, which sometimes restricts the Group in s abthty to change interest rates applying to customers in response to changes in tnterbank and central bank
rates

Foreign currency risk also anises from the Group's investment 1n its overseas operations

The Group's insurance activities also expose 1t to market nisk, encompassing interest rate, exchange rate, property, credit spreads and equity nsk
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— With Profit Funds are managed with the aim of generating rates of return consistent with policyholders' expectations and this involves the mismatch of assets and
habilities

— Unit-inked liabihities are matched with the same assets that are used to define the liability but future fee income 1s dependent upon the performance of those assets
{This forms part of the Value of in Force see note 3 )

- For other insurance llabilities the asm 1s to invest 1n assets such that the cash flows on investments will match those on the projected future fiabiities It 1s not
possible to eliminate risk completely as the timing of insured events 1s uncertain and bonds are not available at all of the required matunties As a result, the cash
flows cannot be precisely matched and so sensitivity tests are used to test the extent of the mismatch

~Surplus assets are held pnmarily i four portfolios {a) in the long term funds of Scottish Widows plc, Clerical Medical Investment Group Limited and ther
subsidianes, (b) in the shareholder funds of life assurance comgpanies, (¢} investment portioilos within the general insirrance business and (d) within the main fund
of Heidelberger Lebensversicherung AG

The Group's defined benefit staff pension schemes are exposed to significant nsks from the constituent parts of their assets and from the present value of thetr
habilities, pnmanly equity and real interest rate nsk For further information on pension scheme assets and liabilities please refer to note 42

Measurement
The following market nsk measures are used for nsk reporting and setting risk appetite hmits and triggers

- Value at Risk (VaR} for short term iguid positions a 1-day 95 per cent VaR 1s used, for structural positions a 1-year 95 per cent VaR 1s used
- Standard Stresses Interest Rates 25bp, Equities 10 per cent, Credit Spreads relative 30 per cent widening
— Bespoke Extreme Stress Scenarnos e g stock market crash

Both VaR and standard stress measures are als¢ used in setting divisional market risk appetite imits and triggers

Although an important measure of nisk, VaR has limitations as a result of its use of historical data, assumed distribution, hotding perods and frequency of calculatuon
In addition, the use of confidence levels does not convey any information about potential toss when the confidence level 15 exceeded Where VaR models are less
well suited to the nature of positions, the Group recogruses these limitations and supplements 1its use with a variety of other techniques These reflect the nature of
the business activity, and include imterest rate repricing gaps, open exchange positions and sensitivity analysis Stress testing and scenario analys:s are also used in
certain portfolios and at group level, to simulate extreme conditions to supplement these core measures Trading book VaR (1-day 99 per cent) 1s back-tested daily
against profit and loss

Banking — trading assets and other treasury posiions
It 1s the policy of Lloyds Banking Group to monitor and report its trading and other treasury positions on a consolidated basis to facilitate management and control
and capture diversification benefits 1t 1s therefore not appropnate to report this data separately for Lioyds TSB Bank pic

Banking - non-trading

Market risk in non-trading books consists almost entirely of exposure to changes In interest rates including the margin between interbank and central bank rates This
1s the potential impact on earnings and value that could cccur when, if rates fall, habilities cannot be re-priced as guickly or by as much as assets, or when, f rates
rse, assets cannot be re-prniced as quickly or by as much as habilities

Risk exposure 1s monitored monthly using, primanly, market value sensitivity This methodology considers all re-pricing mismatches in the current balance sheet and
calculates the change in market value that would result from a set of defined interest rate shocks Where re-pnong maturity 1S based on assumptiens about customer
behaviour these assumptions are also reviewed monthly

A limit structure exists to ensure that nsks stemming from residual and temporary positiens or from changes i assumptions about customer behaviour remain within
the Group's nsk appetite

Base case market value 15 calculated on the basis of the Lioyds Banking Group current balance sheet with re-pricing dates adjusted according to behavioural
assumptions The above sensitivities show how this projected market value would change in response 1o an immediate parallel shift to all relevant interest rates —
market and administered

This 15 a nsk based disclosure and the amounts shown would be amortised in the income statement over the duration of the portfolio

The measure, however, 15 simplified in that 1t assumes all interest rates, for all currenctes and matunties, move at the same time and by the same amount

Pension schemes

Management of the assets of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes 1s the responsibility of the Scheme Trustees, who also appoint the Scheme Actuaries to
perform the tnennial valuations The Group monitors its pensions exposure holistically using a vaniety of metncs including accounting and economic deficits and
contribution rates These and other measures are regularty reviewed by the Lloyds Banking Group's Pensians Strategy Committee and used in discussions with the
Trustees, through whom any nsk management and mitigation activity must be conducted

The schemes” main exposures are to equity nisk, real rate nsk and credit spread nisk Accounting for the pension schemes under Intérnational Accounting Standard
(IAS) 19 spreads any adverse Impacts of these rnisks over time
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Insurance partfohios

The Group's market nsk exposure in respect of insurance activities descnbed above 1s measured using EEV as a proxy for economic value The pre-tax sensitivity of
EEV to standardised stresses 1s shown below for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 Foreign exchange nisk anses predominantly from overseas holdings
of equities Impacts have only been shown In one direction but can be assumed to be reasonably symmetncal Operung and closing numbers only have been provided
as this data 15 not volatile and consequently 15 not tracked on a daily basis

2010 2009
As at 31 December £m Em
Equity nsk (impact of 10% fall pre-tax) {367) (196)
Interest rate sk (iImpact of 25 basis point reduction pre-tax) B2 65
Credit spread risk (impact of relative 30% widening) {163) (142)

Mitigation
Vanous mitigation activities are undertaken across the Group to manage portfolios and seek to ensure they remain within approved imits

Banking - non-trading acuvities

Interest rate nsk ansing from the different repricing charactenstics of non-trading assets and habilities, and from the mismatch between interest rate insensiive
hathihes and interest rate sensitive assets, 1s managed centrally Matching assets and liabilities are offset against each other and internal interest rate swaps aie also
used

The corporate and retail businesses incur foreign exchange nisk in the course of providing services to their castomers Al non-structural foreign exchange expasures
in the non-trading book are transferred to the trading area where they are monitored and controlled

Insurance acuvities
Investment holdings are diversified across markets and, within markets, across sectors Heldings are diversified to mimimise specific nisk and the relative size of large
Ingividual exposures 15 monitored closely For assels held outside unit-hinked funds, investments are only permitted n countries and markets which are sufficiently
regulated and lquid

Monitoring

The Lleyds Banking Group Semior Asset and Liability Committee and the Lloyds Banking Group Market Risk Forum regularly review high level market nsk exposure
ncluding, but not imited to, the data described above They also make recommendations to the Lloyds Banking Group Chief Executive concerming overall market
nsk appetite and market sk policy Exposures at lower levels of delegation are mornitored at various intervals according to their volatility, from daily in the case of
trading portfolios to maonthly or quarterly in the case of less volatile portfolios Levels of exposures compared to approved limits are monitored locally by independent
nsk functions and at a high level by Lloyds Bankming Group Risk Where appropnate, escalation procedures are in place

Banking activities

Trading 15 restricted to a number of specialist centres, the mast important centre being the Lloyds Banking Group treasury and trading business in Londen These
centres also manage market nsk in the wholesale non-trading portfolies, both in the UK and internationally The level of exposure 1s strictly contralled and monitored
within approved hmits Active management of the wholesale portfolios 1s necessary to meet customer requirements and changing market circumstances

Market nisk in retail portfolios and in capital and funding actvities 1s managed centrally within imits defined in the detalled Lloyds Banking Group policy for interest
rate nisk in the banking book, which is reviewed and approved annually

Insurance actvities
Market risk exposures from the insurance businesses are controlled via approved investment policies and triggers set with reference to nisk appetdes and regularly
reviewed by the Ltoyds Banking Group Senior Asset and Liabihty Committee and the Uloyds Banking Group Market Risk Forums

- The With Profit Funds are managed i accordance with the relevant fund’s principles and practices of financial management and legal requirements

— The investment strategy for other insurance liabilities i1s determined by the term and nature of the underlying liabilities and asset/liability matching positions are
actively monitored  Actuarial tools are used to project ang match the cash flows

- Investment strategy for surplus assets held in excess of liabilities takes account of the legal, regulatory and internal business requirements for capital to be held to
support the business now and in the future

The Group also agrees strategies for the overall mix of pension assets with the pension scheme trustees

(3) Insurance nsk

Definttion

The nsk of reductions in earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational lgss, due to fluctuations in the iming, frequency and severity of msured/underwntten
events and to fluctuations in the tmang and amount of claim settlements This includes fluctuations in profits due to customer behaviour

Risk appelite

Insurance nsk appetite 15 defined with regard to the quantum and composition of insurance risk that exists currently in the Group and the direction in which the
Group wishes to manage this It takes account of the need for each entity n the Group to maintain solvency in excess of the minimum level required by the entity's
Jurisdictional legal or regulatory requirements

Exposures

The major sources of insurance rsk within the Group are the insurance businesses and the Group's defined benefit staff pension schemes The nature of insurance
business nvolves the accepting of insurance nsks which relate primarily to mortality, longevity, morbichity, persistency, expenses, property damage and unemployment
The pnime insurance risk carned by the Group's staff pension schemes is related to longevity
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Measurement
Insurance rnisks are measured using a vanety of techniques including stress and scenario testing, and, where appropnate, stochastic modelling

Current and potential future nsurance nsk exposures are assessed and aggregated using nsk measures based on 1-in-20 year stresses and other supporting
measures where appropriate

Mitigation

A key element of the controt framework 1S the consideration of insurance nisk by a sunable combmation of high level Committees/Boards For the Ide assurance
businesses the key control bodies are the board of Scottish Widows Group Limited and the board of HBOS Financial Services Limited with the more significant risks
also being subject to review by the Group Executive Commuttee and/or Lioyds Banking Group Board For the general insurance businesses the key control bodies are
the boards of the legal entities including Lloyds TSB General Insurance Limited, St Andrew's Insurance plc and the insh subsidianies, with the more significant risks
again being subject to Group Executive Committee and/or Lloyds Banking Group Board review All Group staff pension schemes 1ssues are covered by the Group
Asset and Liability Commuttee and the Group Business Risk Committee

The overall insurance nisk 1s mitigated through pooling and through dverssfication across large numbers of uncorrelated individuals, geographical areas, and chfferent
types of nsk exposure

Insurance nisk 1s primarily controlled via the following processes

- Underwriting (the process to ensure that new insurance propesals are properly assessed)

— Pricing-to-risk {new insurance proposals are priced to cover the underlying nsks inherent within the products)
— Claims management

- Product design

- Policy wording

- Product management

— The use of reinsurance or other risk mitigation techniques

In addition, limits are used as a control mechanism for insurance nisk at policy level
At all imes, close attention 1s paid to the adequacy of reserves, solvency management and regulatory requirements

The most significant insurance risks in the hife assurance compantes are longevity nisk and persistency nsk The merits of longevity nsk transfer and hedging solutions
are regularly reviewed By their nature persistency risks are difficult to hedge

General msurance exposure to accumulations of risk and possible catastrophes 1s mitigated by reinsurance arrangements which are broadly spread over different
reinsurers  Detailed modelling, including that of the potential losses under vanous catastrophe scenarios, supports the choice of reinsurance arrangements
Approprate remsurance arrangements also apply within the ife and pensions businesses with significant mortality nsk and morbidity risk being transferred to our
chosen reinsurers

Options and guarantees are mcorporated In new Insurance products only after careful consideration of the nsk management 1ssues that they present n respect of
insurance nisks in the staff pension schemes, the Group ensures thai effective communication mechamisms are in place for consultation with the trustees to assist
with the management of nsk in line with the Group's nisk appetite

Monitoring

Cngoing monitoning 1s in place to track the progression of insurance rnisks This normally mvelves momitonng relevant expenences against expectations (for example
claims expenience, option take up rates, persistency experience, expenses, non-disclosure at the point of sale), as well as evaluating the effectiveness of controls put
n place 1o manage insurance rnsk  Reasons for any significant divergence from expenence are investigated and remedial action 1s taken

Insurance nsk exposures are reported and monitored regulardy by the Group Executive Committee

(4) Liqudity ang funding nsk

Defimtion

Liquichty nsk is defined as the nsk that the Group does not have sufficient financial resources to meet its commitments when they fall due, or can secure them only
at excessive cost

Funding nisk 1s further defined as the risk that the Group does not have sufficiently stable and diverse sources of funding or the funding structure s inefficient

Risk appetite
Liquidity and funding risk appetite for the banking businesses 1s defined and reported through vanous metnics that enable the Group 0 manage hquidity and funding
constraints

Exposure
Liguidity exposure represents the amount of potential cutfliows 1n any future period less committed aflows Liquidity 15 considered from both an internal and
regulatory perspective

Measurement

A series of measures are used to monitor both short and long term hquidity including ratios, cash outflow triggers, wholesale funding matunty profile, early warning
indicators and stress test survival pencd toggers Stnct ¢ntena and limits are in place to ensure highly hquid marketable secunties are available as part of the portfolio
of liguid assets
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Mitigation

The Group mitigates the nsk of a hquidity musmatch in excess of its nsk appetite by managing the liquidhty profile of the balance sheet through both short-term
iquidity management and long-term funding strategy Short-term liquidity management 1s considered from two perspectives, business as usual and liquidity under
stressed conditions, both of which relate to funding in the less than one year ime honzon Longer term funding s used to manage the Group's strategic liquidity
profile which 1s determined by the Group's balance sheet structure Longer term 1s defined as having an oniginal matunty of more than one year

The Group's funding and liquidity position is underpinned by its significant customer deposit base, and has been supported by stable funding from the wholesale
markets with a reduced dependence on shori-term funding A substantial proportion of the retall deposit base 15 made up of customers’ current and savings accounts
which, although repayabte on demang, have traditionally i aggregate provided a stable source of funding Additionally, the Group accesses the short-term wholesale
markets to rase inter-bank deposits and 1o 1ssue certificates of deposit and commercial paper to meet short-term obligations The Group's short-term meney market
funding 15 based on a qualitative analysis of the market's capacity for the Group's credit The Group has developed strong relationships with certain wholesale market
segments, ana also has access to corporate customers, to supplement its retail depesit base

Monitoring

Liguidity 1s actively monitored at business unit and Group fevel Routine reporting s 1n place to senior management and through the Group's committee structure,
In particutar the Group Asset and Liability Committee and the Sentor Asset and Liability Commuittee which meet monthly In a stress situation the level of monitoring
and reporting ts increased commensurate with the nature of the stress event Liquidity policies and procedures are subject to independent oversight

Dailly monitaring and control processes are in place to address both statutory and prudential iquidity requirements In additien, the framework has two other
Important components

— Firstly, Lloyds Banking Group stress tests its potential cash flow mismatch position under various $cenanos on an ongaing basis The cash flow mismatch posibion
considers on-balance sheet cash flows, commitments received and granted, and matenial derivative cash flows Specifically, commitments granted include the
pipeline of new business awaiting completion as well as other standby or revolving credit faciities Behavioural adjustments are developed, evaluating how the
cash flow position might change under each stress scenano to derive a stressed cash flow position Scenanos cover both Lloyds Banking Group name specific and
systemic difficulties The scenarios and the assumptions are reviewed at least annually to gain assurance they continue to be relevant to the nature of the business

- Secondly, Lloyds Banking Group has a ceniingency funding plan embedded withun the Lioyds Banking Group Liquidity Policy which has been designed to identify
emerging hquidity concerns at an early stage, so that mitigating actions can be taken to avold a more serious ¢11S1s developing

Dunng the year, the individual entittes within the Group, and the Group, complied with all of the externally impesed hiquidity and funding requirements to which they
are subject

QUANTITATIVE INFORMATION

(1) Credit nsk
The Group's credit nisk exposure anses predominantly in the United Kingdom, the European Union, Austrahia and the United States

The maximum credit nsk exposure of the Group and the Bank 1n the event of other parties failing to perform their obligations 1s detalled below No account 1s taken
of any collateral held and the maximum expasure to 10ss 1S considered to be the balance sheet carrying amount or, for non-dervative off-balance sheet transactions
and financial guarantees, their contractual nominal amounts

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m Em
Loans and receivables

Loans and advances to banks 30,292 175,703 || 152,616 176 705
Loans and advances to customers 629,462 250,039 || 254,324 256,706
Debt securties 26,293 2,881 1,669 3,075
Deposit amounts availabte for offset! {8,105) (4,116) (4,183) (4,112)
Impairment allowances (18,951) (5,207) (3,361) (3,989)
658,991 419,300 401,065 428,385

Available-for-sale financial assets (excluding equity shares) 40,700 26,008 24,878 13,438
Held-to-matunty investments 7,905 - 7,905 -
Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or less {excluding equity shares) 66,008 21,037 4,558 2,629
Dervative assets, before netting 49,600 18,797 21,322 17,937
Amounts available for offset under master netting armangements! (31,740) (1,755) (12,901) (1,755)
17.860 17,042 8,421 16,182

Assets arising from reinsurance coniracts held 2,146 419 - -
Financial guarantees 22,975 9,986 11,143 9,869
Irrevocable loan commtments and other credit-refated contingencies? 67,809 49,067 42,764 43,571
Maximum credit risk exposure 884,394 542,869 500,734 514,074
Maximum credit risk exposure before offset items 924,233 548,740 517,818 519,941

'Deposit amounts availabte for offset and amounts available for offset under master netting arrangements do not meet the cntenia under 1AS 32 to enable loans and
advances and denvative assets respectively to be presented net of these balances in the financial statements

“See note 53 - Contingent hiabiliies and comrmitments for further information
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A general description of collateral held in respect of financial instruments 15 disclosed on page 102

Loans and advances to banks — the Group may require collateral before entening into a credit commitment with another bank, depending on the type of the financial
product and the counterparty nvolved, and netting agreements are obtained whenever pessible and to the extent that such agreements are legatly enforceable

Available-for-sale debt secunties, treasury and other bills, held-to-matunty investments, and trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss ~ the credit quabty of the Group's avallable-for-sale debt securities, treasury and other bills, held-to-matunty investments, and the majority of the Group's trading
and other financial assets at fair value through profit or toss held 1s set out below An analysis of trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss 15 included in note 16 and a similar analysis for available-for-sale financial assets is included in note 24 The Group's held-to-maturity investments are all
government debt secunties The Group's non-particrpating nvestment contracts are all umit-inked Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss which back those investment contracts were £129,792 million (2009 £48,307 million) Movements in the farr value of such assets, ncluding movements
arising from credit nisk, are borne by the contract holders

Denvative assets - the Group reduces exposure to credit nisk by using master netting agreements and by obtaiming collateral in the form of cash or highly liquid
securities An analysis of denvative assets 1s given in note 17 Of the net denvative assets of £17,860 million for the Group and £8,421 millien for the Bank
(2009 £17,042 million for the Group and £16,182 million for the Bank), cash coltateral of £1,429 miltion was held for the Group and £75 million for the Bank
{2009 £2,029 million for the Group and the Bank) and a further £8,385 million for the Group and £5,083 mullion for the Bank was due from CECD banks
{2009 £11,889 million for the Group and £10,478 million for the Bank)

Assets ansing from reinsurance contracts held - of the assets ansing from reinsurance contracts held at 31 December 2010 of £2, 146 million (2009 £419 million),
£671 million (2009 £225 million) were due from insurers with a credit rating of AA or above

Financial guarantees — these represent undertakmgs that the Group will meet a customer's obligation to third parties if the customer fails to do so Commitments to
extend credit represent unused portions of authonsations to extend credit in the form of toans, guarantees or letters of credit The Group 15 theoretically exposed to
loss 1in an amount equal to the total guarantees or unused commitments, however, the likely amount of 1055 1$ expected to be significantly less, most commitments
t0 extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards

Reverse repo and repo transactions — for reverse repo transactions which are accounted for as coilateral loans, it1s the Group's policy ta seek collateral which 1s at
least equal to the amount loaned As at 31 December 2010, the fair value of collateral accepted under reverse repo transactions that the Group 1s permitted by
contract or custom 1o sell or repledge was £21,195 mittion (2009 £nil) and the Bank £62,436 miihon (2009 £mil) Of this, £3,161 milhion (2009 Enil} for the
Group and £nmil {2009 £ril) for the Bank was sold or reptedged as at 31 December 2010 The far value of collateral pledged in respect of repo ransactions,
accounted for as secured borrowings, where the secured party Is permitted by contract ar custom to repledge was £53,781million (31 December 2009 £nl) for the
Group and £42,744 million (2009 £mil} for the Bank

Stock lending — in addition to financial assets on the balance sheet which are subject to repurchase agreements, there were financial assets on the balance sheet
pledged as collateral as part of secuntes lending transaction which amounted to £82,527 million at 31 December 2010 (2009 E£nl) for the Group and
£13,133 million for the Bank

Stock borrowing — Secunties held as collateral as stock borrowed or under reverse repuichase agreements amounted to £93,419 million at 31 December 2010
(2009 £ni) for the Group and £111,844 million (2009 £mil) for the Bank Of which £55,554 mullien at 31 December 2010 (2009 £nil) {or the Group and
£73,938 million (2009 £mil} for the Bank had been resold or repledged as collaleral for sts own transaction

Loans and advances — The Group

Loans and
advances
designated
Loans and advances to customers at fair value
Loans and through
advances Retail - Retall - profit or
to banks mortgages other Wholesale Total loss
£m £m £m £m £m £m

31 December 2010
Neither past due nor impaired 30,259 339,509 45,058 159,274 543,841 12,545
Past due but not imparred - 13,215 1,289 3,427 17,931 -
Impaired — no provision reguired - 2,189 433 5,313 7.935 -
- provision held 20 5,591 5,149 45,931 56,671 -
Gross 30,279 360,504 51,929 213,945 626,378 12,545
Allowance for impairment losses (20 (2,073} (2,587 (24,979 (29,633) -
Fair value adjustments 13 ok ! i {4,146) -
Net 30,272 592,597 12,545
Due from fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings - 18,492 -
30,272 611,089 12,545

The disclosures in the table above are produced under the combined businesses appreach used for the Lloyds Banking Group's segmental reporting The Group
belreves that, for reporting penods immediately following a significant business combenation such as the transfer of HBOS in 2010, this combined businesses basis,
which includes the allowance for loan losses in place at the date of the acquisition of HBOS by the Lloyds Banking Group on a gross basis, more fairly reflecis the
underlying provisioning status of the loans The remaining acquisition-related far value adjustments in respect of thus lending are therefore identified separately n
this table

No impairment allowances have been raised In respect of amounts due from fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings
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Loans and
advances
designated
Loans and Loans and advances to customers at fair value
advances Retail - Retail - through
to banks mortgages other Wholesale Total  profit or loss
£m £m £m £m £m Em

31 December 2008 i
Nesther past due nor wmparred 25,428 110,523 31,651 77,590 219,764 439
Past due but not impaired - 2,794 1,067 413 4,274 -
Impaired — no provision requered - 51% 423 1,688 2,530 -
- provision hed 153 1,513 4,465 3,305 G,283 -
Gross 25,581 115,349 37.606 82,896 235,851 439
Allowance for impairment losses (149} {362} (2,629} {1,822) (4,813) -
Net 25,432 114,987 34,977 81,074 231,038 439
Due frem fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings 150,122 14,188 -
175,554 245,226 439

No impairment allowances have been raised in respect of amounts due from fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings

The analysis of lending between retail and wholesale has been prepared based upon the type of exposure and not the business segment in which the exposure 15
recorded Included within retall are exposures to personal customers and small businesses, whilst included within wholesale are exposures to corporate customers
and other large institutions

The critenia that the Group uses to determine that there 1s objective evidence of an impairment toss are disclosed in note 2h All impaiwred lpans which exceed certain
threshotds, principally within the Group's wholesale and corporate busiesses, are indmidually assessed for impawment by reviewing expected future cash flows
including those that could anise from the realisation of security Included n loans and receivables are advances individually determined to be impatred with a gross
amount before impairment allowances of £51,608 millien (2009 £4,869 million) which have associated collateral with a farr value of £14,869 million
(2009 £661 milien}

Loans and advances which are neither past due nor impaired - The Group

Loans and
advances
designated
Loans and Leans and advances to customers a fatl'r“v:uI::
advances Retail - Retail - profit or
to banks mortgages other Whalesale Total loss
£m £m £m £m £m £m
31 December 2010
Good quality 29,835 332,614 30,076 57,552 ; 12,220
Satsfactory quality 265 5,259 11,084 42,906 g 163
Lower guality 16 834 1,170 45,750 : 83
Below standard, but not impaired 143 802 2,728 13,066 j 79
Total loans and advances which are neither past due nor impaired 30,259 339,509 45,058 159,274 543,841 12,545
31 December 2009
Good quahty 25,261 147,205 20,401 41,210 - 58
Satisfactory quality 141 3,318 8,441 27,668 ; 268
Lower quality 14 - 848 7,631 | 90
Below standard, but not impaireg 12 - 1,961 781 J 23
Total loans and advances which are neither past due nor impaired 25,428 110,523 31,651 77,590 219,764 439

The definiions of good quality, satisfactory quality, lower quality and below standard, but not impasred applying 1o retail and wholesale are not the same, reflecting
the different charactenstics of these exposures and the way they are managed internally, and consequently totals are not provided Wholesale lending has been
classified using internal probability of default rating models mapped so that they are comparable to external credit ratings Geod quality lending comprises the lower
assessed default probabilibies, with other classifications reflecting progressively higher defauit sk Classifications of retail lending incorporate expected recovery levels
for mortgages, as well as probabilities of default assessed using internat rating models
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Loans and advances which are past due but not impaired - The Group

31 December 2010
0-30 days

30-60 days

60-90 days

90-180 days

Over 180 days

Total loans and advances which are past due but not impaired -

Farir value of collateral held
31 December 2009

0-30 days

30-60 days

60-20 days

90-180 days

Over 180 days

Total loans and advances which are past due but not impaired

Fair value of collateral held

Loans and
advances
designated
at fair value
Loans and Loans and advances to customers through
advances Retail — Retail — profit or
to banks mortgages other Wholesale Total loss
£m Em £m £m £m £m
- 6,498 1,004 1,331 8,833 -
- 2,674 246 498 3,418 -
- 1,811 29 394 2,234 -
- 2,223 10 337 2,570 -
- 9 - 867 876 -
13,215 1,289 3,427 17,931 -
11,467 nfa n/a nfa
- 1,325 812 228 2,365 -
- 562 226 37 825 -
- 365 27 86 478 -
- 541 1 21 563 -
- 1 1 41 43 -
- 2,794 1,067 413 4,274 -
2,396 n/a n/a nfa

A financial asset 1s ‘past due’ if a counterparty has falled to make a payment when contractually due

Collateral held against retaill mortgage lending 15 principally comprised of residential properties, their far value has been estimated based upon the last actual
valuation, adjusted to take into account subsequent movements n house prices, after making allowance for indexation error and dilapidations The resulting valuation
has been limited to the principal amount of the outstanding advance 1n order to provide a clearer representation of the Group's credit exposure

Lending decisions are based on an obligor's ability to repay from normal business operations rather than reliance on the disposal of any security provided Collataral
values for non-mortgage lending are assessed more rigorously at the time of loan onigination or when taking enfarcement action and may fluctuate, as in the ¢ase of
floating charges, according to the level of assets held by the customer Whilst collateral 1s reviewed on a regular basis in accordance with business umit credit policy,
this vanes according te the type of lending and collateral invalved It 1s therefore not practicable to estimate and aggregate current fair values of collateral for

non-mortgage tending

Loans and advances - The Bank

31 December 2010
Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired
Impaired — no provision required
— provision held
Gross
Allowance for imparrment 1osses (note 23)
Net
Due from fellow Lloyds Banking Greup undertakings

Loeans and

advances

designated

Loans and Leans and advances to ¢ a ’atl;r\:::::
advances Retail — Retail - profit o
to banks mortgages other Wholesale Total loss
£m £m Em £m £m £m
7,053 94,960 22,257 59,523 176,740 325

- 2,263 562 340 3,165 -

- 620 343 848 1,811 -

20 1,095 2,447 5,027 8,569 -
7,073 98,938 25,609 65,738 190,285 325
(20) {248) (1,016) (1,887) (3,151) -
7,053 98,690 24,593 63,851 187,134 325
145,543 64,039 -
152,596 251,173 325
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Loans and
advances
designated
Loans and Loans and advances to customers at fair value
advances Retail - Retall - through
to banks mortgages other Wholesale Total  profit or loss
£m £m £m £m £m £m

31 December 2009
Neither past due nor impaired 8,338 97 345 23,666 61,515 182,526 439
Past due but not impaired - 2640 732 373 3,745 -
Impaired - no provision required - 490 280 1,535 2,305 -
- provision held 153 1,447 3,033 2,958 7,438 -
Gross 8,491 101,922 27,711 66,381 195,014 439
Allpwance for 1mpairment losses (note 23} (149) (338} (1,642} {1,615) {3.595) -
Net 8,342 101,584 26,069 64,766 192,419 439
Due from fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings 168,214 60,692 -
176,556 253111 439

No impairment altowances have been rassed 1n respect of amounts due from {etiow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings

Included in loans and recewvables are advances individually determined to be impaired with a gross amount before impairment allowances of £5,932 million
(2009 £4,440 milion) which have associated collateral with a fair value of £1,781 mullion (2009 £361 milion)

Loans and advances which are neither past due nor impaired - The Bank

Laans and
advances
designated
Loans and Loans and advances to customers a fa:;“\:;:::
advances Retall - Retall - profit or
to banks mortgages other Wholesale Total loss
£m £m £m Em £m £m
31 December 2010
Good qualty 6,778 93,963 13,947 33,103 -
Satisfactory quality 265 997 6,358 19,748 , 163
Lower quality 7 - 628 5,606 ) 83
Below standard, but not impaired 3 - 1,324 1,066 79
Total loans and advances which are neither past due nor timpaired 7,053 94,960 22,257 59,523 176,740 325
31 December 2009
Good qualty 8,173 94,225 14,779 32,429 58
Satisfactory quality 141 3,120 6,632 23,442 268
Lower quahty 12 - 789 5,076 90
Below standard, but not impaired 12 - 1,466 568 L 23
Totat loans and advances which are neither past due nor impaired 8,338 97,345 23,666 61,515 182,526 439
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Loans and advances which are past due but not imparred - The Bank

Loans and
advances
designated
Loans and Loans and advances to customers a 'at':‘:l:::
advances Retail - Retail - profit or
to banks mortgages cther Wholesale Total loss
£Em £m £m £m £m £m
31 December 2010
0-30 days - 1,136 420 152 1,708 -
30-60 days - 442 132 18 592 -
60-90 days - 292 4 41 337 -
90-180 days - 387 6 22 415 -
QOver 180 days - 6 - 107 113 -
Total loans and advances which are past due but not impaired - 2,263 562 340 3,165 -
Faur value of collateral hetd 2,056 n/a na n/a
31 December 2009
0-30 days - 1,267 489 196 1,952 -
30-60 days - 520 218 30 768 -
60-90 days - 345 24 85 454 -
90-180 days - 508 1 21 530 -
Over 180 days - - - 41 41 -
Total loans and advances which are past due but not impaired - 2,640 732 373 3,745 -
Fair value of collateral held 2,262 n/a nfa n/a

Renegohated loans and advances

Loans and advances that were renegotiated duning the year and that would otherwise have been past due or imparred at 31 December 2010 fotalled £5,475 mullion

(2009 £217 milhon} for the Group and £633 million {2009 £209 million} for the Bank

Repossessed coflateral
Residential property

Cther

Total repossessed collateral

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £Em £m
1,046 210 211 193
32 684 - -
1,078 894 211 193

In respect of retail portfolios, the Group does not normally take physical possession of properfies or other assets hefd as collateral and uses external agents to realise
the value as socon as practicable, generally at auction, to seftle indebtedness Any surplus funds are returned to the borrower ¢r are otherwise dealt with in accordance

with appropriate insolvency regulations

In certain circumstances, the Group takes physical possession of assets held as collateral against whotesale lending In such cases, the assets are camed on the

Group’s balance sheet and are classified according to the Group's accounting palicies

Loan-to-value ratio of mortgage lending

Analysis by loan-to-valug ratio of residential mortgage lending which 15 neither
past due nor impatred

Less than 70 per cent

70 per cent to 80 per cent

80 per cent to 90 per cent

Greater than 90 per cent

Total residential mortgage lending which 1$ neither past due nor impaired
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The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m Em
140,267 53,100 47,956 47 454
57,979 16,865 16,156 15,035
53,732 15,061 13,070 13,370
87,531 25,497 17,778 21,486
339,509 110,523 94,960 97 345
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Debt secunties, treasury and other bills and denvative financial instruments — analysis by credit rating

Rated BB
AAA AA A BEB or lower Not rated Total
The Group £m £m £m £m £m £m Em
As at 31 December 2010
Debi secunties, treasury and other bills held at fawr value through
profit or loss
Trading assels
Gavernment securities 651 888 - 84 - - 1,623
Bank and building socety certrficates of deposit - 3,086 506 100 - - 3,692
Other asset backed securities 191 633 196 - - - 1,020
Corporate and other debt securities 1,205 1,209 1,839 183 13 470 4,919
Total debt secunities held as trading assets 2,047 5,816 2,541 367 13 470 11,254
Treasury bills and other bills 219 8 - - - - 227
Total held as trading assets 2,266 5,824 2,541 367 13 470 11,481
Other assets heid at fair value through profit or 10ss
Governmeni secunties 20,509 1,113 408 33 6 148 22,217
Other public sector secunties 778 62 68 2 - 9 919
Bank and building society certificates of deposit 52 107 447 - - - 606
Asset-backed secunties
Mortgage backed securities 259 68 48 23 - 24 422
QOther asset-backed secunties 298 372 458 384 70 10 1,592
557 440 506 407 70 34 2,014
Corporate and other debt securities 3,870 1,619 4,397 3,269 1,275 1,760 16,190
Total other assets held at fair value through prefit or loss 25,766 3,341 5,826 3,711 1,351 1,951 41,946
28,032 9,165 8,367 4,078 1,364 2,421 53,427
Due from fellow Group undertakings
Corporate and other debt secunties — trading 36
Total held at far vatue through profit or loss 53,463
Denvative financial instruments
Trading 157 18,161 13,486 1,006 86 9,298 42,194
Hedging 57 1,992 4,368 46 - 943 7,406
Total derivative financial instruments 214 20,153 17,854 1,052 86 10,241 49,600
Debt secunities classified as foans and receivables
Asset-backed securities
Mortgage-backed securities 6,524 2,856 1,057 840 222 151 11,650
Other asset-backed securities 7,535 2,514 1,377 475 823 103 12,827
14,059 5,370 2,434 1,315 1,045 254 24,477
Corporate and cther debt securties 163 164 459 106 166 758 1,816
Total debt secunties classified as loans and recewvables 14,222 5,534 2,893 1,421 1,211 1,012 26,293
Available-for-sale financial assets
Debt secunbies
Government securities 12,462 78 - - - 12 12,552
Other public sector secunties - - - - - 29 29
Bank and building society certificates of deposit - 225 162 20 - - 407
Asset-backed secunties
Mortgage-backed securittes 2,809 673 601 202 8 - 4,293
QOther asset-backed securiiies 3625 781 395 115 79 224 5219
6,434 1,454 996 317 87 224 9,512
Carporate and other debt secunties 1,135 4,824 5,150 913 42 68 12,132
Total debt securities 20,031 6,581 6,308 1,250 129 333 34,632
Treasury bills and other bills 4,439 - 1,629 - - - 6,068
Total held as available-for-sale financial assets 24,470 6,581 7,937 1,250 129 333 40,700
Held-te-matunty investments
Government securities 7,905 - - - - - 7,905
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Debt secunties, treasury and other bilis and denvatrve financtal instruments — analysis by credit rating

The Group
As at 31 December 2009
Debt securities held at fair value through profit or loss
Trading assets
Government securities
Other public sector secunbes
Corporate and other debt securities
Total held as trading assets
Other assets held at fair value through profit or loss
Government securities
Other public sector securities
Asset-backed securities
Mortgage-backed secunities
Qther asset-hacked secunties

Corporate and other debt secunties
Total other assets held at fair value through profit or loss
Total held at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments
Trading
Hedging

Due frem fetlow Group undertakings
Total denvative financial instruments

Debt secuntes classified as loans and receivables
Asset-backed secunties

Mortgage-backed secunties

Other asset-backed secunties

Corporate and other debt secunties
Total debt securities classified as loans and receivables

Available-for-sale financial assets
Debt securnties
Government securities
Other public sector securities
Bank and building society certficates of deposit
Asset-backed secunties
Mortgage-backed securities
Other asset-backed secunties

Corporate and other debt secunties
Total debt securities
Treasury bills and other bills

Due from fellow Group undertakings
Corporate and other debt secunties
Total held as available-for-sale financial assets

Rated BB
AAA AA A BBB or lower Not rated Total
Em £m £m £m £m £m £m
42 - - - - 30 72
- - 6 - - - 6
25 12 1 65 44 12 159
67 12 7 65 44 42 237
7,497 139 182 2 - 46 7.866
25 - - - - 9 34
199 127 43 23 - 3 393
254 294 536 302 250 20 1,656
453 421 579 325 250 21 2,049
2,549 582 2,933 2,416 604 1,328 10,412
10,524 1,142 3,694 2,743 854 1,404 20,361
10,591 1,154 3,701 2,808 898 1,446 20,598
84 9,881 2,802 363 51 3.698 16,879
- - - - - 995 995
84 9,881 2,802 363 51 4,693 17,874
923
18,797
231 52 39 39 83 156 500
26 71 [+ 1 209 - 313
257 123 45 40 292 156 913
- 439 823 69 306 331 1,968
257 562 868 109 598 487 2,881
8,192 - 1 - - 149 8,342
- - - - - 31 31
- 357 353 ~ 19 - 729
3,803 555 215 156 35 - 4.764
6,011 721 448 179 186 16 7.561
9814 1,276 663 335 221 16 12,325
9 637 292 - - 165 1,103
18,015 2,270 1,309 335 240 361 22,530
269 2,263 - - - - 2,532
18,284 4,533 1,309 335 240 361 25,062
946
26,008
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Debt secunties, treasury and other bills and denvative financial instruments — analysis by credit rating

The Bank

As at 31 December 2010

Debt securities held at fair value through profit or loss
Trading assets

Government securities

Asset-backed securities — other

Corporate and other debt securities

Total held as trading assets

Other assets held at fair value through profit ar loss
Gavernment securities

Asset-backed secunties — other

Corporate and other debt securities

Jotal other assets held at fair value through profit or loss

Due from fellow Group undertakings — corporate and other
Total held at fair value through profit or loss

Denvative financial instruments
Trading
Hedging

Due from fellow Group undertakings
Total derivative financial instruments

Debt secunties classified as loans and receivables
Asset-backed secunties

Mortgage backed secunties

Other asset-backed secunties

Corporate and other debt securities
Total debt securities classified as loans and recewvables

Available-for-sale financial assets
Debt secunties
Government securities
Other public sector secunties
Bank and building society certificates of depasit
Asset-backed secunties
Mortgage-backed secunties
Other asset-backed securties

Corporate and other debt secunties
Total debt securtties
Treasury bills and other bills

Due from fellow Group undertakings
Corporate and other debt secunties
Total held as available-for-sale financial assets

Held-to-matunty investments
Gavernment secunties

Rated BB
AAA AA A BeBs or lower Not rated Total
£m £m £m £Em £m £m £m
133 3 - 84 - - 220
- - 47 - - - 47
79 1,009 1,428 165 13 473 3,167
212 1,012 1,475 249 13 473 3,434
13 - - - - - 13
- - - 47 - - 47
- - 41 185 349 72 647
13 - 41 232 349 72 707
225 1,012 1,516 481 362 545 4,141
52
4,233
129 12,035 1,475 550 86 4,443 18,718
- 7 30 - - 919 956
129 12,042 1,505 550 86 5,362 19,674
1,648
21,322
165 54 41 41 134 218 653
1 35 10 7 46 - 99
166 89 51 48 180 218 752
163 164 264 91 112 123 917
329 253 315 139 292 341 1,669
12,398 - - - - 7 12,405
- - - - - 29 29
- 225 32 14 - 1 272
571 208 173 12 7 - 971
815 177 159 36 58 9 1,254
1,386 385 332 48 65 9 2,225
- 526 369 59 - 23 977
13,784 1,136 733 121 65 69 15,908
3,235 - 689 - - - 3,924
17,019 1,136 1,422 121 65 69 19,832
5,046
24,878
7,905 - - - - - 7,905
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Debt secunties, treasury and other bills and denvative financial instruments — apalysis by credit rating

Rated BB
AAA AA A BBB or lower Not rated Total
The Bank £m Em £m £m £m £m Em
As al 31 December 2009
Debt secunties held at fair vatue through profit or loss
Trading assets
Government securities 42 - - - - 30 72
Qther public sector secunties - - 6 - - - 6
Corporate and other debt secunties 25 12 1 65 44 12 159
Total held as trading assets 67 12 7 65 44 42 237
Other assefs held at fair value through profit or loss
QOther asset-backed secunties 44 - - - 203 - 247
Corporate and other debt secunties - - 141 788 481 296 1,706
Total other assets held at fair value through profit or loss 44 - 141 788 684 256 1,953
Total held at fair value through profit or loss 111 12 148 853 728 338 2,190
Dernvative financial snstruments
Trading 84 9,374 2,185 363 51 3,704 15,761
Hedging - - - - - 952 952
24 9,374 2,185 363 51 4,656 16,713
Due from fellow Group undertakings 1,224
Total denvative financial instruments 17,937
Debt secunties classified as loans and recewvables
Asset-backed securnties
Mortgage-backed securities 231 52 39 39 73 156 590
Other asset-backed securities 26 110 92 81 209 - 518
257 162 131 120 282 156 1,108
Corporate and other debt securities - 439 823 69 306 330 1,967
Total debt securities classified as loans and recervables 257 601 954 189 588 486 3,075
Available-for-sale financial assets
Debt secunities
Government securities 8,192 - 1 - - 8,200
Other public sector secunities - - - - - 31 31
Bank and building society certificates of deposit - 356 93 - 14 - 463
Asset-backed secunties
Mortgage-backed securities 790 205 59 25 1 - 1,080
Other asset-backed securities 1,686 178 60 65 117 16 2,122
2,476 383 119 90 118 16 3,202
Corporate and other debt secunties 9 637 292 - - 23 961
Totat debt secunites 10,677 1,376 505 90 132 77 12,857
Treasury tills and other bills 71 - - - - - 71
10,748 1,376 505 90 132 77 12,928
Oue from feflow Group underiakings
Corporate and other debt secunities 510
Total held as available-for-sale financial assets 13,438
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Credit market exposures

The Group's credit market exposures prnimarily relate to asset-backed securities held in the non-reta)l businesses These exposures are classified as loans and
recewvables (note 22), available-for-sale financial assets (note 24} or trading and other financtal assets at faw value through profit or loss (note 16) depending on the

nature of the investment

Trading and
other
financial Net exposure Net exposure
assets at far as at as at
Loans and  Available-for-  value through 31 December 31 December
receivables sate profit or loss 2010 2009
Asset-backed secunties - the Group £m £m £m £m £m
Mortgaged-backed secunties
US residential mortgage-backed secunities 4,242 - - 4,242 336
Non-US residential morigage backed secunties 4,916 2,982 - 7,898 3,559
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 2,397 1,119 - 3,516 1,203
11,555 4,101 - 15,656 5,098
Collateralised debt obligations
Corporate 43 - - a3 _
Commercial real estate 306 - - 306 -
Other 106 39 - 145 151
Collateralised loan obligations 3,578 1,108 - 4,686 1,890
4,033 1,147 - 5,180 2,041
Personal sector
Auto loans 569 339 - 908 724
Credit cargs 1,795 338 - 2,133 770
Personal loans 663 263 - 926 230
3,027 940 - 3,967 1,724
Federal family education loan program
Student loans 5,078 2,699 - 7,777 3306
Other asset-backed securities 572 463 - 1,035 776
Total uncovered asset-backed securities 24,265 9,350 - 33,615 12,945
Negative basis! - 42 1,067 1,109 283
Total Whelesale asset-backed securities 24,265 9,392 1,067 34,724 13,228
Direct 15,860 5,369 1,067 22,296 7,831
Conduits 8,405 4,023 - 12,428 5,397
Total Wholesale asset-backed securties 24,265 9,392 1,067 34,724 13,228
"Negative basis means bonds held with separate matching credit default swap protection
The table below sets out the Wholesale division’s net exposure to Non-US residential mortgage-backed securities (RMBS) by vintage
Net exposure MNet exposure
as at as at
31 December 31 December
Pre 2005 2005 2006 2007 2010 2009
The Group £m £Em £m £m £m £m
Asset class
Prime 233 215 66 28 542 15
Alt-A 121 765 1,437 1,377 3,700 321
Sub-pnime - - - - - -
Total net exposure to US RMBS 354 980 1,503 1,405 4,242 336
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Exposures to monolines
During 2009 all exposure to sub-investment grade monotines on CDS contracts was writien down to zero, leaving lsmited exposure to monoline insurers as set out
below

Credit default swaps Wrapped loans and recevables Wrapped bonds

Notional Exposure’ Notional Exposure? Notional Exposure?
The Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Investment grade 1,060 40 330 214 - -
Sub-investment grade - - - - - -
Total monoline insurers 1,060 40 330 214 - -

'The exposure to monolings ansing from credst default swaps 15 calculated as the mark-to marke! of the credit default swap protection purchased from the mencline
after credit valuation adjustments

The exposure to monolines on wrapped foans and receivables and bonds 1s the nternal assessment of amounts that will be recovered from the monoling guarantor on
interest and principal shortialls

*In addition, the Group has £1,985 mullion (2009 £1,196 million} of monoline wrapped bonds and £425 muition (2009 £791 million) of monohne liquidity
commutments on which the Group currently places no reliance on the guarantor

Credit ratings
An analysis of the Wholesale ¢ivision’s asset-backed securities portfolio by credit rating 1s provided below

uposﬁ:: AAR AA A BBB BB B Below B
The Group Em £m £m £m £Em £m Em £m
Asset-class
Mortgage-backed securnties
US residential morigage-backed secunties
Prime 542 312 110 82 26 9 3 -
Alt-A 3,700 2,037 801 591 186 66 19 -
Sub Prime - - - - - - - -
4,242 2,349 911 673 212 75 22 -
Non-US residential mortgage-backed securities 7,898 6,170 1,415 237 76 - - -
Commercial mortgage-backed securittes 3,516 754 1,390 637 585 62 - 88
15,656 9,273 3,716 1,547 873 137 22 88
Collateralised debt obligations
Corporate 43 -] 27 - - - - 11
Commercial real estate 306 18 - - 105 128 27 28
Other 145 - - - - 105 - 40
Collateralised foan cbligations 4,686 760 2,189 1,210 140 234 98 55
5,180 783 2,216 1,210 245 4567 125 134
Personal sector
Auto loans 908 764 68 44 - 32 - -
Credit cards 2,133 1,762 371 - - - - -
Personal loans 926 230 306 325 65 - - -
3,967 2,756 745 369 65 32 - -
Federal family education loan program
Student loans 7,777 7,646 - 48 64 19 - -
Other asset-backed securnties 1,035 114 - 296 517 108 - -
Negative basis!
Monolines 1,067 191 633 243 - - - -
Banks 42 42 - - - - - -
1,109 233 633 243 - - - -
Total as at 31 December 2010 34,724 20,805 7,310 3,713 1,764 763 147 222
Total as at 31 December 2009 13,235 10,030 1,471 825 404 168 39 298

'The external credit rating 1s based on the bond ignoring the benefit of the credit default swap
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{2} Market Risk

Interest rate nsk

In the Group's retail banking business interest rate nsk anses from the different repricing charactenstics of the assets and liabilities  Liabihties are either insensitive
to Interest rate movements, for example inierest free or very low interest customer deposits, or are sensitive to Interest rate changes but bear rates which may be
varied at the Group's discretion and that for competitive reasons generally reflect changes in the Bank of England's base rate There are a relatively small volume of
deposits whose rate 1s contractually fixed for therr term to matunty

Many banking assets are sensitive to interest rate movements, there 1s a large volume of managed rate assets such as vanable rate morigages which may be
considered as a natural offset to the interest rate nisk ansing from the managed rate liabihties However a significant proportion of the Group's lending assets, for
example personal loans and mortgages, bear interest rates which are contractually fixed for penods of up to five years or longer

The Group establishes two types of hedge accounting relationships for interest rate nsk fair value hedges and cash flow hedges The Group 15 exposed to fair value
interest rate nsk on its fixed rate customer loans, (ts fixed rate customer deposits and the majonty of its subordinated debt, and to cash flow interest rate nisk on its
varable rate loans and deposits togather with 1ts floating rate subordinated debt The majorty of the Group's hedge accounting relationships are far value hedges
where interest rate swaps are used to hedge the interest rate risk inherent in the fixed rate mortgage porticho

At 31 December 2010 the aggregate notional principal of interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges was £75 831 milhion (2009 £24,219 millon) for the
Group and £30,777 millon (2009 £23,219 millton) for the Bank with a net far value asset of £3,166 million {2009 asset of £458 million) for the Group and
£338 million {2009 asset of £370 milhen) for the Bank (note 17) The gains recogmsed by the Group on the hedging instruments were £280 millton {2009 losses
of £4 million} The Group’s 1osses ¢n the hedged items attnibutable to the hedged risk were £452 million (2009 gains of £26 mullion)

In addition the Group has a small number of cash flow hedges which are pnmanly used to hedge the vanahility in the ¢ost of funding within the wholesale business
These cash flows are expected to occur over the next six years and the hedge accounting adjustments will be reported in the income statement as the cash flows
anse The notienal principal of the interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges at 31 December 2010 was £112,507 milhon {2009 £659 mithon) for the
Group and £1,557 mithon (2009 £659 nullion) for the Bank with a net fair value hability of £843 muthon {2009 £46 mullion} for the Group and £60 million
(2009 £46 milhon) for the Bank (note 17) In 2010, ineffectiveness recognised 1n the income statement that anses from cash flow hedges was a £160 mullion gan
(2009 £nil} There were no transactions for which cash flow hedge accounting had to be ceased in 2010 or 2009 as a result of the highly probable cash flows no
longer being expected to occur

Currency risk
Foreign exchange exposures comprise those orginating in {reasury trading activities and structural foreign exchange exposures, which anse from investment in the
Group's overseas operations

The corporate and retail businesses incur foreign exchange risk in the course of providing services to thewr customers All non-structural foreign exchange exposures
in the non trading book are transferred to the trading area where they are monitored and controlled These risks reside in the authonsed trading centres who are
allocated exposure lumits  The limits are monitored daily by the local centres and reported to the central market nsk function

Risk anses from the Group’s Investments in Its overseas operations The Group's structural foreign currency exposure s represented by the net asset value of the
foreign curency equity and subordinated debt investments in its subsicharies and branches Gains or losses on structural {oreign currency exposures are taken to
reserves

The Group hedges part of the currency translation nsk of the new investment sn certain foreign operations using currency borrowings and Cross currency denvatives
At 31 December 2010 the aggregate notional pnncipal of these currency borrowings was £5,135 million, the aggregate notional principle of the cross currency
denvatives was £86 million (2009 c¢ross currency swaps £2,507 million) wath a net fair value asset of £2 milhon (2009 asset of £25 mallion) and they were
designated on an after tax basis as hedges of net investments 1n foreign operations In 2010, an neffectiveness loss of £28 millon hefore tax and £20 mullion after
tax (2009 Ll before tax and £n1) after tax) was recogmised on the income statement ansing from net investment hedges
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The Group's main overseas cperations are i the Amencas, Asia, Australasia and Eurcpe  Detars of the Group's structural foreign currency exposures are, after net
investment hedges, as follows

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £Em
Functionat currency of Group operations
Euro
Gross exposure 2,468 113 {4) 62
Net investment hedge (3,270) - - -
{802) 113 {4) 62
US dolar
Gross exposure 47 (122) 53 81
Met snvestment hedge (145) - - -
(98) (122) 53 81
Swiss franc
Gross exposure 53 2,552 31 51
Net investment hedge - {2,467) - -
53 85 31 51
Australian dollar
Gross expasure 1,567 - {4) -
Net investment hedge {1,634) - - -
(67) - {4) -
Japanese yen
Gross exposure 17 3,220 17 12
Net investment hedge - (3,207) - -
17 13 17 12
Other non-sterling 155 318 343 281
Total structural foreign currency exposures, after net investment hedges (742) 407 436 487
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(3} Liquidity nisk

The 1ables below analyse financial instrument labiities of the Group and the Bank, excluding those ansing from insurance and participabing investment contracts,
on an undiscounted future cash flow basis according to contractua! matunty, into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaiming perod at the balance sheet
date, balances with no fixed matunty are in¢luded in the over 5 years category

The Group

As at 31 December 2010

Deposits from banks

Customer deposits

Trading and other financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss
Debt secunties in 1ssue

Lrabilities ansing from non-participating investment contracts
Subordinated liabilities

Total non denvative financial liabilities

Denvative financial liabilities

Gross settled denvatives — outflows
Gross settled dervatives — inflows
Gross settled denvatives — net flows
Net settled dervative l1abihities
Total denvative financial liabilities

As at 31 December 2009

Deposits from banks

Customer depasits

Trading and other financial habihties at fair value through arofit or loss
Debt securities in ssue

Liabiities arising from non-participating investment contracts
Subeordinated liabilities

Total non-derivative financial habiliies

Denvative financial habilities

Gross settled denvatives — cutflows
Gross settled denvatives — inflows
Gross settled derivatives — net flows
Net seitled derwvative habilities

Total denvative financial habihties

Upto 1-3 312 15 Qver 5
1 month months months years years Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
24,938 11,804 4,301 10,557 920 52,520
307,622 15,136 33,132 43,516 24,415 423,821
11,293 2,218 5,125 5,544 3,633 27,813
31,225 41,143 52,549 91,166 35,202 251,285
12,944 91 265 1,743 36,320 51,363
178 1,005 4,087 12,746 21,381 39,397
388,200 71,397 99,459 165,272 121,871 846,199
41,594 34,665 19,089 103,600 52,449 251,397
(17,094) (34,823) (19,211} {103,563) (51,815) (226,506)
24,500 (158) (122) 37 634 24,891
3,001 2,204 6,479 13,537 5,524 30,745
27,501 2,046 6,357 13,574 6,158 55,636
76,070 51,297 11,852 327 455 140,001
152,423 8,554 9,844 9,438 13,412 193,671
716 141 1,582 3,222 1,275 6,936
26,315 26,187 16,281 49,460 5,869 124,112
15,734 - - - - 15,734
i51 70 623 4,659 18,012 23,515
271,409 86,249 40,182 67,106 39,023 503,969
4,907 943 365 122 9856 7,323
{901) (607) {189) {157} (385) (2,239}
4,006 336 176 (35) 601 5,084
14,817 - - - - 14,817
18,823 336 176 {35) 601 19,901

The pnncipal amount for undated subordinated habilities with no redemption option is included withun the over 5 years column interest of approximately £146 million
(2009 £216 million} per annum for the Group and £43 million {2009 £216 mullion) for the Bank which js payable in respect of those instruments for as long as

they rematn tn 1ssue 15 not included beyond 5 years
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The Bank

As at 31 December 2010

Depaosits from banks

Customer deposits

Trading and other financial iabiities at fair value through profit or 10ss
Debt securities in 1ssue

Subordinated habilities

Total non-derivatwe financial habilities

Gross settled derivatives — outflows
Gross settled dervatives — inflows
Gross settled derivatives — net flows
Net settled derwvative labilities
Total denvative financial liabilities

As at 31 December 2009

Deposits from banks

Customer deposits

Trading and other financial habulities at fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities in i1ssug

Subardinated hatilities

Total non-denvative financial habihties

Gross settled derivatives — outflows
Gross settled derivatives — inflows
Gross settled denvatives — net flows
Net settled derivative habibties
Total derivative financial habilities

Liabitities of the Group anising from nsurance and participating invesiment contracts are analysed on a behavioural basis, as permitted by IFRS 4, as follows

As at 31 December 2010
As at 31 December 2009

122

Up to 13 312 1-5 Over §
1 month months months years years Total
£m Em £m £m £m £m
88,314 23,566 16,300 14,115 6,328 148,623
148,295 13,449 20,939 19,566 18,550 220,799
428 132 2,773 5,442 3,632 12,407
9,028 25,513 33,242 35,664 19,371 122,818
157 889 590 6,199 15,622 23,457
246,222 63,549 73,844 80,986 63,503 528.104
28,795 21,366 10,414 54,276 22,675 137,526
(4,520) (21,336) (10,502) (54,117) (21,787) {112,262}
24,275 30 (88) 159 B88 25,264
955 596 595 1,568 2,057 5771
25,230 626 507 1,727 2,945 31,035
Upto 1-3 312 1-5 Over 5
1 manth months months years vears Total
£m £m £m Em £m £m
87,385 57,981 12,960 3,625 3,837 165,788
146,010 9,668 18,774 14,463 13,905 202,820
716 141 1,582 3,222 1,275 6,936
21,533 23,315 16,205 46,354 5,641 113,048
144 81 595 4,544 17,519 22,883
255,788 91,186 50,116 72,208 42,177 511,475
4,244 368 227 126 686 5,651
- (1) (120} (442) (364) (927)
4,244 367 107 (316) 322 4,724
15,021 - - - - 15,021
19,265 367 107 (316) 322 19,745
Up to 1-2 312 1-5 Over 5
1 month months months yaars years Total
Em £m £Em £m £m £Em
2,481 1,459 5,072 18,431 53,306 80,749
485 1,203 1,885 7.983 25,394 36,960
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The fotlowing tables set out the amounts and residual matunties of off balance sheet contingent Liabihities and commiiments

The Group

31 December 2010

Acceptances

QOther contingent habilibes

Total contingent liabihties

Lending commitments

Other commitments

Total commitments

Total contingents and comnutments

31 December 2009

Acceptances

Qther contingent habilihies

Total contingent habilities

Lending commitments

Other commutments

Total commitments

Total contingents and commitments

The Bank

31 December 2010

Acceptances

Other contingent liabiities

Total contingent habilitees

Lending commutments

Other commitments

Total commitments

Total contingents and commitments

31 December 2009

Acceptances

Qther contingent liabilities

Total contingent liabilies

Lending commitments

Other commitments

Total commitments

Total contingents and commitments

Within 13 3-5 Over §
1 year years years years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
48 - - - 48
1,897 1,248 269 717 4,131
1,945 1,248 269 717 4,179
76,456 22,537 13,424 3,739 116,156
1,038 61 - 43 1,142
77,494 22,598 13,424 3,782 117,298
79,439 23,846 13,693 4,499 121,477
53 - - - 53
2,181 1,302 379 825 4,687
2,234 1,302 379 825 4,740
46,662 17,205 7.253 2,408 73,528
866 1905 - 6 977
47 528 17,310 7,253 2414 74,505
49762 18,612 7,632 3,239 79,245

Wwithin 13 3-5 Over 5
1 year years years years Total
Em £m £m £m £m
50 - - - 50
1,425 1,199 171 639 3,434
1,475 1,199 171 639 3,484
54,152 18,898 6,490 1,695 81,235
1,910 51 - 3 1,964
56,062 18,949 6,490 1,698 83,199
57,537 20,148 6,661 2,337 86,683
54 - - - 54
1,537 1,292 379 840 4,048
1,591 1,292 379 840 4,102
53,007 16,439 6,836 2079 78,361
3,48! 105 = 6 3,592
56,488 16,544 6,836 2.085 81,953
58,079 17,836 7,215 2,925 86,055

123




Lloyds TSB Bank plc
Notes to the accounts

56 Capital

Caprtal 1s actively managed at an appropriate level of frequency and regulatory ratios are a key factor in the Group's budgeting and planning processes with updates
of expected ratios reviewed regularly during the year by the Lloyds Banking Group Asset and Liability Committee Capital raised takes account of expected growth
and currency of nisk assets Capital policies and pracedures are subject to independent oversight

The Group's regulatory capital  divided into tiers defined by the European Community Banking Consohdation Directive as implemenied in the UK by the Financial
Services Authonty's (FSA) Generat Prudent:al Sourcebook Tier 1 capital compnses mainly shareholders’ equity, tier 1 capital instruments and non-controlling
nterests, after deducting goodwill, other intangible assets and 50 per cent cf the net excess of expected losses over accounting provisions and certatn securitisatian
positions During the year the FSA has defined Core Tier 1 capital Accounting equity 1s adjusted in accordance with FSA requirements, particularly in respect of
pensions and available for-sale assets Tier 2 capital mainly comprises qualifying subosdinated debt after deducting 50 per cent of the excess of expected tosses over
accountng provisions, and certain secuntisation pesitions The amount of qualifying tier 2 capital cannot exceed that of tter 1 capital Total capital ts reduced by
deducting investments in subsidiaries and associates that are not consolidated for regulatory puipeses In the case of the Lioyds TSB Bank Group, this means that
the net assets of its hife assurance and general insurance businesses are excluded from its total regulatory capiial

2010 2003

Em £m

Tier 1 capital 49,375 18,153
Tier 2 capital 21,073 7.700
, 70,448 25,853

Supervisory deductions (13,112) (5,182)
Total capital 57,336 20,671

Restated to reflect a prior year adjustment to avatable-for-sale revaluation reserves (note 1)

A number of imits are imposed by the FSA on the proportion of the regulatory capital base that can be made up of subordinated debt and preferred secunties The
unpredictable nature of movements in the value of the investments supporting the long-term assurance funds could cause the amount of qualfying tier 2 capital to
be restricted because of falling tier 1 resources The Group seeks to ensure that even in the event of such restricticns the total capital ratic will remain adequate

The FSA sets Indiwidual Capitat Guidance (ICG) for each UK bank calibrated by reference to its Capital Resources Requirement (CRR), broadly eguivalent to
8 per cent of nsk-weighted assets and thus representing the capital required under Pillar 1 of the Basel 1l framework Also a key input into the FSA's CG setting
process, which addresses the requirements of Prllar 2 of the Basel H framework, ts each bani’s Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process The FSA'S approach
1S to monitor the avatlable capital resources In relation to the ICG requirement Lloyds Banking Group has been given ICG by the FSA and the board has also agreed
a formal buffer to be maintaned in addition to this requirement  Any breaches of the formal buffer must be notified to the FSA, together with proposed remedial
action The FSA has made it ¢clear that each 1CG remains a confidential matter between each bank and the FSA

During the year, the indmwdual entittes within the Group and the Group complied with all of the externally imposed capital requirements to which they are subject

57 Cash flow statements

a Change in operating assets

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Change In loans and receivables 40,624 (149,606} 26,753 (155,255)
Change in dervative financial instruments, trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {8,092) 6,473 {5,342) 9,767
Change n other operating assets (660) 228 (408) 1,578
Change In operating assets 31,872 (142,905) 21,003 (143910)
b Change in operating liabilities
The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Change 1n deposits from banks (32,355) 73,678 (42,164) 80,534
Change in customer deposiis (12,620) 21,046 22,617 17,377
Change in debt secunties in issue (6,155) 47,238 4,233 53,469
Change 0 derivative financial instruments, trading and other financial hizbilites at fair value
through profit or loss 183 (11,835) 8,334 {13,282
Change in investment contract iatulities 8,160 2,982 - -
Change in giher operating liabilities (2,774) (674) 376 (1,440}
Change in operating habilities (45,561) 132,435 (6,604) 136,658
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¢ Non-cash and other items

Depreciatien and amortisation

Impairment of fixed assets

Revaluation of investment properties
Allowance for loan losses

White-off of allowance for loan losses
Impairment of available-for sale securities
Impatrment of goodwill

Change 1n insurance contract habilities
Customer goodwll payments provision
Cther provision movements

Net (credit) charge in respect of defined benefit schemes
Contributions to defined benefit schemes
Other non-cash items

Total non cash itemns

Interest expense on subordinated habilities
Other

Total other items

Non-cash and other items

d Analysis of cash and cash equivalents as shown in the balance sheet
Cash and balances with central banks
Less mandatory reserve deposits?

Loans and advances to banks

Less amounts with a matunty of three months or more and balances due from fellow Lloyds Banking Group
undertakings

Total cash and cash equivalents

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
2,432 733 373 339
202 - - -
(434) 145 - -
10,771 4,353 2,371 3,635
(6,909) (2,786} {2,911) (2,512)
106 21 21 16
- 240 - -
4,029 3,173 - -
500 - - -
49 159 36 163
(455) 275 {205) 213
(653) (1,574) {187) (1,438)
{3,214) (1,033) 417 (1,843)
6,424 3,706 (85) (1,427)
3,217 984 936 o656
857 (7) 78 24
4,074 977 1,014 980
10,498 4,683 929 (447)
The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m Em £Em
38,115 36,089 35,585 35,964
{1,089) {392) (732} (372)
37,026 35,697 34,853 35,592
30,272 175,554 152,596 176,556
{4,998)| | (154,645)| | {147,060} | (169,941)
25,274 20,909 5,536 6,615
62,300 56,606 40,389 42,207

*Mandatory reserve deposits are held with local central banks in accordance with statutory requirements, these deposits are not available to finance the Group's

day-to-day operations

Included within cash and cash equivalents of the Group at 31 December 2010 15 £14,694 milion (2009 £10,358 million) held wathin the Group's hfe funds,

which 1s not immediately availabte for use 1n the business
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e Analysis of changes in financing during the year

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Share capiial (including share premium account and merger reserve)
At 1 January 10,102 4,502 10,102 4,502
Adjustment on transfer of HBOS 27,742 - 21,394 -
Issue of ordinary shares 5,611 5,600 5,611 5,600
At 31 December 43,455 10,102 37,107 10,102
The Group
2009 2008
£m £m
Non-controlling interests
At 1 January 293 306
Exchange and other adjustments (5) (19
Adjustment on transfer of HBOS 1,271 -
Extinguishment of non-controlling interests (735) -
Change in non-contralling interests 2 -
Minornity share of profit after tax 62 24
Dividends paid to non-contralling interests {47) {18)
At 31 December 841 293
The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Subordinated habilities
At 1 January 15,999 17,389 15,456 16,853
Exchange and other adjustments {6,034) {2,735) (2,766) (2,742)
Adjustment on transfer of HBOS 17,091 - - -
Proceeds from issue of subordinated habilities 3,237 3,187 3,237 3,187
Repayments of subordmated liabilites (684) {1,842) (353) (1,842)
At 31 December 29,609 15,599 15,574 15,456
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f Acquisition of group undertakings and businesses

Net assets transferred in respect of HBOS

Cash and balances at central banks

Dervatives, trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loans and recevables

Availlable-for-sale financial assets

Deposits from banks

Customer deposits

Denvatives, frading and other financial liabdities at far value through profit or loss
Debt securities in 1ssue

Insurance contract liabilities

Subordinated liabilsties

Amounts with other Lioyds Banking Group undertakings (net)

Non-controlling interests

Other assets (net)

Total net assets transferred

Satisfied by

Issue of shares

Merger reserve ansing on transfer

Cash and cash equivalents acquired

Net cash inflow arsing from transfer of HBOS

Additienai capial injections to subsidiaries

Acquisition of and additional investment in associates and joint ventures
Net cash inflow (outflow) arising from acquisitions in the year

Paymentis to former members of Scottish Widows Fund and Life Assurance Society acquired during 2000

Net cash nflow

For more details on the assets and liabilities relating to the transfer of HBOS see note 31

g Disposal of group undertakings and businesses

The Group

The Bank

2010
£m

2009 2010
Em £m

2009
Em

2,905
132,038
435,875

21,459
(29,600
(232,091)
47,710)
(112,815)
(70,617)
(14,653)
(63,419)
(1,271

7,641

27,742

(21,394)
(6,348)
9,084

9,084

(65)

- (219)

9,019
(8)

- (219)
(35) -

9,011

{35) (219)

The Group generated cash inflows of £428 million {2009 £nil} and the Bank generated cash inflows of £18 mdlion (2009 £33 million) from the disposal and

hquidation of subsidiary undertakings
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The follewing pronouncements will be relevant to the Group but were not effective 2t 31 December 2010 and have not been applied 1n preparning these financial

statements The full impact of these accounting changes 1s being assessed by the Group

Pronouncement

Nature of change

Effective date

Amendment to IAS 32 Financal Instruments
Fresentation — ‘Classification of Rights Issues’

Requires nghts 1ssues denominated 1n a currency other than the
functional currency of the issuer 10 be classified as equny regardless of
the currency in which the exercise price is denominated

Annual pericds beginning on or after
1 February 2010

Improvements to IFRSs (1ssued May 2010)

Sets out mtngr amendmaents to IFRS standards as part of the annual
Improvements process

Dealt with on a standard by
standarg basis but not earlier than
annual penods beginming on or after
1 July 2010

IFRIC 19 Extingusshing Financial Liabihties with Equity
Instruments

Clanfies that when an entity renegotiates the terms of its debt with the
result that the hability 1s extinguished by the debtor issutng its own
equaly Instruments to the creditor, a gain ar loss is recognised In the
income statement representing the difference between the carrying
value of the fmancial hatihity and the fair vatue of the equity
instruments ssued, the fair vatue of the financial hability 15 used to
measure the gain or loss where the fair value of the equity instruments
cannot be reliably measured This interpretation 1s consistent with the
Group's existing accounting policy

Annual penods beginning on or after
1 July 2010

Amendment to IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a Mimmum
Funding Requirernent

Applies when an enbify 1s subject to mintmum funding requirements in
respect of its defined benefit plans and makes an early payment of
contnbubions to cover those requirements and perrmits such an entity
to treat the benefit of such an early payment as an asset

Annual penods beginning on or after
1 January 2011

Amendments to IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

Simplifies the definition of a related party and provides a parbal
exemption from the disclosure sequuements for related party
transactions with government related entities

Annual penods beginaing on or after
1 january 2011

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments
Disciosures — Disclosures-Transfers of Financial Assets’

Requires additional disclosures in respect of nsk exposures ansmg
from transferred financial assets

Annual penods beginmng on ar after
1 July 2011

Amandments to IAS 12 fncome Taxes — Defarred Tax
Recovery of Underlying Assets’

Introduces a rebuftable presumption that investment property
measured at fair value 15 recovered entirely through sale and that
deferred tax in respect of such investment property 1s recognised en
that basis

Annual penods beginning on of after
1 January 2012

IFRS @ Financral Instruments!

Replaces those parts of I1AS 39 financial Instruments Recognition
and Measurement relating to the classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and habilites Requires financial
assets to be classified into two measurement categories, fair value and
amortsed cost on the basis of the objectives of the entity's business
madel for managing 1ts financial assets and the ¢ontractual cash flow
characteristics of the instrument The available-for-sale financial asset
and held-to-matunty investment categones in the existing 1AS 39 will
be eliminated The requirements for financial labilities and
derecogmition are broadly unchanged from IAS 39

Annual penods beginmng on or after
1 January 2013

HFRS 9 15 the nital stage of the project to replace 1AS 39 Future siages are expected to result In amendments to [FRS 9 to deal with changes to the impairment of financial assets measured at amadysed
cost and hedge accounting Until all stages of the replacement project are complete 135 not possible to delermine the overall impact on the financial statements of the replacement of IAS 39 The effective
date of the standard 15 annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

At the date of this report, IFRS 9, the Amendments to IFRS 7 and the Amendments to [AS 12 are awaiting EU endarsement

59 Post balance sheet events

The Lloyds Banking Group has been in discussion with the FSA regarding the application of an interest variation clause tn certain Bank of Scotland pic vanable rate
maerigage contracts where the wording In the offer documents received by certain customers had the potential to cause confusicn The relevant mortgages were
wantten between 2004 and 2007 by Bank of Scotland plc under the ‘Halifax’ brand In February 2011, the Group reached agreement with the FSA in relation to
imtiating a customner review and contact programme and making goodwill payments to affectad customers In order to make these goodwill payments, Bank of
Scotland plc has applied for a Voluntary Vanation of Permission to carry out the customer review and contact pragramme to bring it within section 404F(7) of FSMA
2000 The Group has made a provision of £500 million in relation to this programme
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60 Approval of the financial statements and other information

The financial statements were approved by the directors of Lioyds TSB Bank plc on 24 February 2011

Lloyds TSB Bank plc and its subsidiaries form a leading UK-based financial services group, whose businesses provide a wide range of banking and financial services
in the UK and in certain locations overseas

Lloyds TSB Bank plc's ultimate parent undertaking and controliing party 1s Lloyds Banking Group plc which 1s incorporated in Scotland Copies of the consolidated
annual report and accounts of Lloyds Banking Group plc may be obtained from Lloyds Banking Group's head office at 25 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7HN or
downloaded via www lloydsbankinggroup com

129




